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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

XI ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE

ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission File No. 814-00735
(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its chaet)
Delaware 20-595115C
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)
295 Madison Avenue, 6th Floor
New York, New York 10017
(Address of principal executive offices)
(212) 455-8300
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dlfie Act:
Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Shares, par value $0.01 per sha The NASDAQ Global Select Market

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) tfie Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a walbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405c08#turities Act.  Yed No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 o) %f the Act. YesO No

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant ék)filed all reports required to be filed by Sewcti® or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 modh$or such shorter period that the Registrart vemjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementstfe past 90 days: YEXI NO O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquitiers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiorkS8229.405 of this chapter) is not contai
herein, and will not be contained, to the bestgistrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or infoation statements incorporated by reference
in Part 11l of this Form 10-K or any amendmenthgstForm 10-K. X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, noa-accelerated filer. See definition of
“accelerated filer” and “large accelerated filen"Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated fileld Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer Smaller Reporting Compan

(Do not check if a
smaller reporting compan’

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Actyes O No

The aggregate market value of the voting and namg@ommon stock held by non-affiliates of theistgnt as of June 29, 2007 was
approximately $277 million based upon a closinggof $18.55 reported for such date by The NASDAQb@ Select Market. Common
shares held by each executive officer and direatdrby each person who owns 5% or more of theandstg common shares have been
excluded in that such persons may be deemed tHilies. This determination of affiliate statusnot necessarily a conclusive determination
for other purposes.

The number of outstanding common shares of thetragit as of March 1, 2008 was 18,094,306.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Documents incorporated by referencePortions of Kohlberg Capital Corporation’s Proxgatement for its 2008 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on June 13, 2008 (the {P8tatement”) are incorporated by reference in Almisual Report on Form 1R-in respons
to Part I, ltems 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14.

NOTE ABOUT REFERENCES TO KOHLBERG CAPITAL CORPORATI ON

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “Annual Retj), the “Company”, “we”, “us” and “our” refer t&ohlberg Capital Corporation,
its subsidiaries and its wholly-owned portfolio quamy, Katonah Debt Advisors, L.L.C. (“Katonah D&lolvisors” or “KDA”) and related
companies, unless the context otherwise requires.

NOTE ABOUT TRADEMARKS

Kohlberg Capital Corporation, our logo and othademarks of Kohlberg Capital Corporation are ttepprty of Kohlberg Capital
Corporation. All other trademarks or trade namésrred to in this Annual Report are the propertyhair respective owners.

NOTE ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report includes forward-looking statetsewithin the meaning of Section 27A of the Sd@esiAct and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act. The matters discussetisnAnnual Report, as well as in future oral andtem statements by management of
Kohlberg Capital Corporation, that are forward-lomkstatements are based on current managementtatipes that involve substantial risks
and uncertainties which could cause actual resultéffer materially from the results expressedanimplied by, these forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements relatettodievents or our future financial performance. §gaerally identify forward-looking
statements by terminology such as “may,” “will,’htauld,” “expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “could;intends,” “target,” “projects,”
“contemplates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predi¢t§potential” or “continue” or the negative of theserms or other similar words. Important
assumptions include our ability to originate neweistments, achieve certain margins and levelsafftability, the availability of additional
capital, and the ability to maintain certain debasset ratios. In light of these and other uno#its, the inclusion of a projection or forward-
looking statement in this Annual Report should m@tegarded as a representation by us that ous plaobjectives will be achieved. The
forward-looking statements contained in this AnrRaport include statements as to:

» our future operating result

» our business prospects and the prospects of ostirexand prospective portfolio compani

» the impact of investments that we expect to m

» our informal relationships with third partie

» the dependence of our future success on the gesmyabmy and its impact on the industries in whiehinvest;

» the ability of our portfolio companies to achieheit objectives

» our expected financings and investme

e our regulatory structure and tax treatmu

» our ability to operate as a BDC and a R

» the adequacy of our cash resources and workingedaaind

» the timing of cash flows, if any, from the operasmf our portfolio companies, including KatonahbbAdvisors.

For a discussion of factors that could cause otwahcesults to differ from forward-looking statemt& contained in this Annual Report,

please see the discussion under “Risk Factorgem [LA. You should not place undue reliance ongleswvard-looking statements. The

forward-looking statements made in this Annual Repelate only to events as of the date on whiehsttatements are made. We undertake no
obligation to update any forward-looking statemterteflect events or circumstances occurring dfterdate of this Annual Report.
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PART |
Item 1. Business
KOHLBERG CAPITAL CORPORATION

We are an internally managed, non-diversified desed investment company that has elected to héategl as a business development
company (“BDC") under the Investment Company AcLl8fi0, as amended (the “1940 Act”). We originatieicture and invest in senior
secured term loans, mezzanine debt and selectétyt egaurities primarily in privately-held middlearket companies. We define the middle
market as comprising companies with earnings befiegest, taxes, depreciation and amortizatiorichvive refer to as “EBITDA,” of $10
million to $50 million and/or total debt of $25 rimin to $150 million. In addition to our middle ni@at investment business, our wholly-owned
portfolio company, Katonah Debt Advisors and itfliates (collectively, “Katonah Debt Advisors”),anage collateralized loan obligation
funds (“CLO Funds”) that invest in broadly syndedioans, high-yield bonds and other corporateiciestruments. We acquired Katonah
Debt Advisors and certain related assets prioutaratial public offering from affiliates of Kohkrg & Co., LLC (“Kohlberg & Co.”)a leading
private equity firm focused on middle market inviegt As of December 31, 2007, Katonah Debt Advidwd approximately $2.1 billion of
assets under management.

Our investment objective is to generate currerime and capital appreciation from our investmeéms.also expect to continue to
receive distributions of recurring fee income amdi¢nerate capital appreciation from our investntetite asset management business of
Katonah Debt Advisors. Our investment portfolionsd| as the investment portfolios of the CLO Fuidsvhich we have invested and the
investment portfolios of the CLO Funds managed hyolah Debt Advisors consist exclusively of cramtruments and other securities iss
by corporations and do not include any asset-baskedrities secured by commercial mortgages, reSaenortgages or other consumer
borrowings.

As a Regulated Investment Company (“RIC”), we intém distribute to our stockholders substantiallypfour net taxable income and
the excess of realized net short-term capital gawes realized net long-term capital losses. Tdifyjuas a RIC, we must, among other things,
meet certain source-of-income and asset diversidicaequirements. Pursuant to these electiongyemerally will not have to pay corporate-
level taxes on any income that we distribute tostackholders.

Our common stock is traded on The NASDAQ Globak8eMarket under the symbol “KCAP.” The net assdtig per share of our
common stock at December 31, 2007 was $14.38. @arbDier 31, 2007, the last reported sale pricesbigae of our common stock on The
NASDAQ Global Select Market was $12.(

CORPORATE HISTORY AND OFFICES

We were formed in August 2006 as a Delaware limiiegdallity company. In December 2006, we compleded initial public offering
(“IPO”), which raised net proceeds of approximateA00 million after the exercise of the underwstever-allotment option. In connection
with our IPO, we issued an additional 3,484,333 ehaf our common stock to affiliates of KohlbergC&mpany in exchange for the
ownership interests of Katonah Debt Advisors anskicurities issued by CLO Funds managed by Kat®wdit Advisors and two other asset
managers. We are an internally managed, non-dfiextsclosed-end investment company that has ald@otbe regulated as a BDC under the
1940 Act.

Our principal executive offices are located at 2&&dison Avenue, & Floor, New York, New York 10017 and our telephonenter is
(212) 455-8300. Information about us may also kaiobd from the Securities and Exchange Commissiwebsite fttp://www.sec.goy. We
maintain a website on the Internetp://www.kohlbergcapital.cominformation contained in our website is not immmated by reference ir
this Annual Report, and that information should b@tconsidered as part of this Annual Report. Wkengavailable free of charge on our
website our Annual Report on Form 10-K, quarteelgarts on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8#¢, @l amendments to those reports as
soon e;s reasonably practicable after such materééctronically filed with or furnished to the cseities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”).
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KEY QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE FINANCIAL MEASURES AND INDICATORS
Net Asset Value

Our net asset value (“NAV”) per share was $14.38$%14.29 as of December 31, 2007 and Decembel088, 2espectively. As we must
report our assets at fair value for each repoiegod, NAV also represents the amount of stockérddequity per share for the reporting
period. Our NAV is comprised mostly of investmessets less debt and other liabilities:

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Fair Value per Share Fair Value per Share
Investments at fair valu
Investments in debt securiti $410,954,08 $ 22.81 $190,767,38 $ 10.6¢
Investments in CLO Fund securiti 31,020,00 1.72 20,870,00 1.1¢
Investments in equity securiti 4,752,25I 0.27 — —
Investments in asset manager affilie 58,585,36! 3.2t 37,574,99 2.0¢
Cash and cash equivalel 12,088,52 0.67 32,404,49 1.81
Other asset 15,741,73 0.87 758,97! 0.04
Total Asset: $533,141,95 $ 29.5¢ $282,375,84 $ 15.7:
Borrowings $255,000,00 $ 14.1¢ $ — $ —
Other liabilities 19,073,79 1.0¢€ 25,975,42. 1.44
Total Liabilities $274,073,79 $ 15.21 $ 25,975,42 $ 1.4
NET ASSET VALUE $259,068,16 $ 14.3¢ $256,400,42 $ 14.2¢

Please refer to the “Investment Portfolio” for atfier description of our investment portfolio ahé fair value thereof.

Leverage

We use borrowed funds, known as “leverage,” to makestments and to attempt to increase returositehareholders by reducing our
overall cost of capital. As a BDC, we are limitedhe amount of leverage we can incur under th® ¥34. We are only allowed to borrow
amounts such that our asset coverage, as defirted 940 Act, equals at least 200% after suclholong. As of December 31, 2007, we had
$255 million of outstanding borrowings and our asserage was 202%. Our borrowings are made puotsaa revolving credit facility
which permits maximum borrowings of up to $275 milland has a final maturity on October 1, 2012.

Investment Portfolio Summary Attributes as of and br the Year Ended December 31, 2007

Our investment portfolio generates net investmeabime which is generally used to fund our divideddr investment portfolio consists
of three primary components: debt securities, Clud=securities and our investment in our wholly ediasset manager, Katonah Debt
Advisors. We also have investments in equity séiesrof approximately $5 million, which comprisgspeoximately 1% of our investment
portfolio. Below are summary attributes for eactoof primary investment portfolio components (sewéstment Portfolio” and “Investments
and Operations” for a more detailed descriptiondfaand for the year ended December 31, 2007:

Debt Securitie:
» represent approximately 81% of total investmentfpbo;
* represent credit instruments issued by corporatebers;
* no ass¢-backed securities such as those secured by conaheraitgages or residential mortgages and no coesborrowings
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» primarily senior secured and junior secured lo&384 and 28% respectively
» spread across 26 different industries and 91 diffeentities

e average balance per investment of approximateinifion;

« all investments current on their debt service alans;

» weighted average interest rate of 9.t

CLO Fund Securitiegas of last monthly trustee report prior to Decenfife 2007 unless otherwise specified)
* represent approximately 6% of total investmentfpba at December 31, 200
* represent investments in subordinated securitiegjoity securities issued by CLO Fun
* all CLO Funds invest primarily in credit instrumsrgsued by corporate borrowe
* no ass¢-backed securities such as those secured by conaheraitgages or residential mortgages and no coesborrowings
» all CLO Funds have made all required cash payntera#i classes of investor
» No ratings downgrade-all CLO Funds have maintained their original isstedit ratings on all rated classes of securi
» eight different CLO Fund securities; four of suchGCFunds are managed by Katonah Debt Advis
* provided a 28% cash return on investment during’2

Katonah Debt Advisor
* represents approximately 12% of total investmentfpio;
» represents our 100% ownership of the equity intexkea profitable CLO Fund manager focused on cagocredit investing
» Katonah Debt Advisors has approximately $2.1 hillad assets under manageme
» receives contractual and recurring asset managdemnbased on par value of managed investrr
» typically receives a oI-time structuring fee upon completion of a new CL@,

* may receive an incentive fee upon liquidation @l2D Fund provided that the CLO Fund achieves ammimn designated return «
investment

» dividends paid by Katonah Debt Advisors are recpgghias dividend income from affiliate asset managesur statement ¢
operations and are an additional source of incanpay our dividend

Revenue

Revenues consist primarily of investment incomenfinterest and dividends on our investment powfalid various ancillary fees rela
to our investment holdings.

Interest from Investments in Debt Securiti¥de generate interest income from our investmiendebt securities which consist primarily
of senior and junior secured loans. Our debt sgesportfolio is spread across multiple industaes geographic locations, and as such, w
broadly exposed to market conditions and businegsaments. As a result, although our investmengésexposed to market risks, we
continuously seek to limit concentration of exp@sur any particular sector or issuer.

6
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Dividends from Investments in CLO Fund Securitid& generate dividend income from our investmantie most junior class of
securities of CLO Funds (typically preferred sharesubordinated securities) managed by Katonah Rétisors and selective investments in
securities issued by funds managed by other asmeagement companies. CLO Funds managed by KatosbhAdvisors invest primarily in
broadly syndicated non-investment grade loans,-figlil bonds and other credit instruments of cospmissuers. The Company distinguishes
CLO Funds managed by Katonah Debt Advisors as “@u@ securities managed by affiliatd.he underlying assets in each of the CLO Fi
in which we have any investment are generally dified secured or unsecured corporate debt andi@gxchortgage pools or mortgage
securities (residential mortgage bonds, commens@tgage backed securities, or related asset-bas@dities), debt to companies providing
mortgage lending and emerging markets investméns CLO Fund securities are subordinate to serdadiholders who typically receive a
fixed rate of return on their investment. The CL@n#s are leveraged funds and any excess cash fltexcess spread” (interest earned by the
underlying securities in the fund less paymentsertadsenior bond holders and less fund expensemandgement fees) is paid to the holders
of the CLO Fund’s subordinated securities or prefishares.

Dividends from Affiliate Asset Manag&¥e generate dividend income from our investmemtatonah Debt Advisors, an asset
management company, which is a wholly-owned padfobmpany that manages CLO Funds that invest pilyria broadly syndicated non-
investment grade loans, high yield bonds and athestit instruments issued by corporations. As aaganof CLO Funds, Katonah Debt
Advisors receives contractual and recurring manageees as well as an expected one-time strugtem from the CLO Funds for its
management and advisory services. In addition, iatdebt Advisors may also earn income relatedtanmerest on assets accumulated for
future CLO issuances on which it has provided st foss guaranty in connection with loan wareharsangements for its CLO Funds. Kato
Debt Advisors generates annual operating incomalgqguhe amount by which its fee income exceedgdrating expenses. The annual
management fees which Katonah Debt Advisors reseive generally based on a fixed percentage gidhgalue of assets under management
and are recurring in nature for the term of the Giund so long as Katonah Debt Advisors managefutite As a result, the annual
management fees earned by Katonah Debt Advisonsadrgubject to market value fluctuations in thelentying collateral. In future years,
Katonah Debt Advisors may receive incentive feesnughe liquidation of CLO Funds it manages, prodidach CLO Funds have achieved a
minimum investment return to holders of their suldoated securities or preferred shares.

Capital Structuring Service Fee$Ve may earn ancillary structuring and other fedasted to the origination and or investment intdeiul
investment securities.

Expenses

Expenses consist primarily of interest expenseuwstanding borrowings, compensation expense anergkeand administrative expens
including professional fees.

Interest and Amortization of Debt Issuance Cositderest expense is dependent on the averageuodiisg balance on our revolving
credit facility and the base index rate for theigeerDebt issuance costs represent fees and oiteet dosts incurred in connection with the
Company’s borrowings. These amounts are capitabimeldamortized ratably over the contractual terthefborrowing.

Compensation Expens€ompensation expense includes base salariessésmtock compensation, employee benefits andogepl
related payroll costs. The largest componentstaf tmmpensation costs are base salaries and rgeseerally, base salaries are expensed as
incurred and bonus expenses are estimated andedcasibonuses are paid annually. Our compensatiamggments with our employees
contain a significant profit sharing and/or perfamoe based bonus component. Therefore, as ougveriues increase, our compensations
may also rise. In addition, our compensation expgemsay also increase to reflect increased invedtmgrersonnel as we grow our products
and businesses.
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Professional Fees and General and Administrativeefises The balance of our expenses include professieeal occupancy costs and
general administrative and other costs.

Net Unrealized Appreciation on Investments

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Coypavestments had an increase in net unrealippdegiation of approximately $3
million. The increase in net unrealized appreciafir the year ended December 31, 2007 is primdirily to i) an approximate $12 million net
decrease in the market value of certain broadlylisated loans as a result of current market cambt{there are no non-performing loans in
our portfolio that impact market value — all loaesain current on interest and principal paymerijsyn approximate $5 million decrease in
the net value of CLO equity investments as a resfudurrent market conditions (there are no CLOd=uim default—all CLO Funds are
providing a current cash return and have maintathei original ratings); and, iii) an approxim&21 million increase in the value of Katonah
Debt Advisors due to an increase in assets undeagement from $1.4 billion at December 31, 200$2d. billion at December 31, 2007.

Net Increase in Stockholders’ Equity Resulting FromOperations

The net increase in stockholders’ equity resulfiogh operations for the year ended December 317 2@k approximately $26 million,
or $1.45 per outstanding share.

Net Investment Income and Net Realized Gains

Net investment income and net realized gains repteghe net increase in stockholders’ equity leef@t unrealized appreciation or
deprecation on investments. For the year endedrBleee31, 2007, net investment income and realizéusgvere approximately $23 million,
or $1.28 per share. Generally, we seek to funddawdend from net investment income and net redligains. For the year ended Decembe
2007, dividend distributions totaled approximat®®6 million or $1.40 per share.

Dividends

We intend to continue to distribute quarterly damdls to our stockholders. To avoid certain ex@ged imposed on RICs, we currently
intend to distribute during each calendar yearranunt at least equal to the sum of:

*  98% of our ordinary net taxable income for the cdbe year
* 98% of our capital gains, if any, in excess of talposses for the o-year period ending on October 31 of the calendar;yand
« any net ordinary income and net capital gainsHergreceding year that were not distributed dusinch year

8
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Generally, we seek to fund our dividend from GAARrent earnings, primarily from net interest anddind income generated by our
investment portfolio and without a return of capdaa high reliance on realized capital gains. Tdil®wing table sets forth the dividends
declared by us since our initial public offeringhish represent an amount equal to our estimatethnestment company income for the
specified quarter plus a portion of the undistrfibamount of 2006 net investment company income:

Declaration
Record Pay
Dividend Date Date Date
2007:

Fourth quarte $ 0.3¢ 12/14/07  12/24/0° 1/24/0¢
Third quartel 0.37 9/24/07  10/10/0°  10/26/0;
Second quarte 0.3t 6/8/07 7/9/07 7/23/07
First quarte! 0.2¢ 3/13/07 4/6/07 4/17/07

Total declared for 200 $ 1.4C

Due to our ownership of Katonah Debt Advisors aedain timing, structural and tax considerationsdividend distributions may
include a return of capital for tax purposes. Katobebt Advisors earned approximately $3 milliorG#AP net income and distributed
$500,000 in dividends to us; dividends are recoredeclared by Katonah Debt Advisors as incomeunrstatement of operations. The
Company intends to distribute, in the form of aiditnd, the accumulated net income of Katonah Deligors in the future. For 2007,
approximately 4.7% of our total 2007 dividend digitions were deemed a return of capital for tasppees. Such return of capital for tax
purposes may receive a more favorable tax treatnedattve to the portion deemed a distribution frordinary income.

Please refer to “Distributions” and “Certain U.&deral Income Tax Considerations” for further imfiation regarding our dividend
distributions.

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
Investment Objective

Our investment objective is to generate curreriime and capital appreciation from the investmeraderby our middle market business
in senior secured term loans, mezzanine debt dadted equity investments in privately-held middiarket companies, and from our
investment in Katonah Debt Advisors. We intendtawgour portfolio of assets by raising additionapital, including through the prudent use
of leverage available to us. We will primarily irstén first and second lien term loans which, beesaf their priority in a company’s capital
structure, we expect will have lower default reaad higher rates of recovery of principal if thexa default and which we expect will create a
stable stream of interest income. While our primamestment focus is on making loans to, and setketjuity investments in, privately-held
middle market companies, we may also invest inrdtheestments such as loans to larger, publiclggchcompanies, high-yield bonds and
distressed debt securities. We may also receiveawtsror options to purchase common stock in cdiorewith our debt investments. In
addition, we may also invest in debt and equityusées issued by CLO Funds managed by Katonah Bdbisors or by other asset managers.
However, our investment strategy is to limit théueaof our investments in the debt or equity seémsiissued by CLO Funds to not more than
15% of the value of our total investment portfolde invest almost exclusively in credit instrumeistied by corporations and do not inves
asset-backed securities such as those securedidgngal mortgages or other consumer borrowings.

9
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The following table shows the Company’s portfolipgecurity type at December 31, 2007 and Decembe2(B6:

December 31, 200 December 31, 200!

Security Type Cost Fair Value % 1 Cost Fair Value % 1
Senior Secured Loé $265,390,84 $260,138,67 51.5% $163,313,49 $163,313,49 65.52%
Junior Secured Loa 120,620,71  113,259,29 22.4 27,453,89 27,453,89 11.C
Mezzanine Investmel 32,418,97 33,066,11 6.5 — — —
Senior Subordinated Bor 3,009,23I 2,490,001 0.t — — —
Senior Unsecured Bor 2,000,00i! 2,000,001 0.4 — — —
CLO Fund Securitie 36,061,26. 31,020,00 6.1 20,870,00 20,870,00 8.4
Equity Securities 5,043,95! 4,752,25I 1.C — — —
Affiliate Asset Manager 33,469,99 58,685,36 11.€ 33,394,99 37,574,99  15.1

Total $498,014,97 $505,311,69 100.(% $245,032,37 $249,212,37 100.(%

1 Represents percentage of total portfolio at faluea

Investment Securities

We invest in senior secured loans and mezzanineasheh in the future and to a lesser extent, equapital, of middle market companies
in a variety of industries. We generally target pamies that generate positive cash flows becaudeokeo cash flows as the primary source
for servicing debt. However, we may invest in otimelustries if we are presented with attractiveapmities.

Kohlberg Capital’'s Board of Directors is ultimatelpd solely responsible for making a good faitledwatnation of the fair value of
portfolio investments on a quarterly basis. DufP&elps, LLC, an independent valuation firm, prodidieird party valuation consulting servi
to Kohlberg Capital’s Board of Directors which cated of certain limited procedures that the ComyfmBoard of Directors identified and
requested them to perform. Kohlberg Capital’s BasrBirectors may consider other methods of vatrathan those set forth above to
determine the fair value of investments as appatgiin conformity with GAAP. Due to the inherentertainty of determining the fair value
investments that do not have a readily availablekatavalue, the fair value of our investments méfedsignificantly from the values that
would have been used had a ready market existesifdr investments, and the differences could benaht

The Company'’s portfolio investments at fair valoereased from $249 million at December 31, 20086@6 million as of December 31,
2007. The net increase in portfolio size was fungiéaharily with borrowings under our new credit ilitg and with the proceeds of the over-
allotment option exercised in connection with owcBmber 2006 IPO. During the year ended Decemhet(®¥, the Company also sold some
of its initial portfolio of primarily first lien lans that were accumulated prior to completion eflBO in order to move towards our targeted
portfolio mix of first and second lien loans, meziree finance and equity securities.

At December 31, 2007, the Company’s investmentsans and debt securities, excluding CLO Fund seéesirhad a weighted average
interest rate of approximately 9.5%.

The unaudited characteristics of investment sdearét fair value, excluding CLO equity securitiase presented in the following table
of the end of each quarter end from December 316 #rough December 31, 2007:

4Q07 3Q07 2Q07 1Q07 40Q06
Security Type ($ in millions) $ % $ % $ % $ _$ $ %
First Lien $260.1 63% $190.2 55% $164.: 58% $150.¢ 69% $163.: 86%
Second Lien/Mezzanine/Bor 150.¢ 36 148.¢ 43 110.¢ 40 64.c 30% 27.5 14
Equity 48 1 5 2 3C 1 3. 1% = =
Total $415.% @% $343.¢ @% $278.1 @% $217.5 @% $190.¢ @%
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The unaudited industry concentrations, based ofeihgalue of the Company’s investment portfoloaf December 31, 2007 and
December 31, 2006, were as follows:

December 31, 200° December 31, 200!
Security Type Cost Fair Value % ! Cost Fair Value % !
Aerospace and Defen $ 32,583,71 $ 32,481,81 6.5% $ 10,066,69 $ 10,066,69 4.C%
Asset Management Companfes 33,469,99 58,585,36 11.€ 33,394,99 37,574,99 15.1
Automobile 5,286,73. 5,147,01 1.C 9,192,10. 9,192,10: 3.7
Beverage, Food and Tobac — — — 2,586,02: 2,586,02. 1.C
Broadcasting and Entertainme 2,978,99! 2,782,50! 0.€ — — —
Buildings and Real Estate 37,726,39 34,944,222 6.C 19,288,90 19,288,90 7.7
Cargo Transpol 14,967,36 14,958,78 3.C 6,361,11. 6,361,11. 2.€
Chemicals, Plastics and Rubl 3,956,58: 3,220,00! 0.€ — — —
CLO Fund Securitie 36,061,26. 31,020,00 6.1 20,870,00 20,870,00 8.4
Containers, Packaging and Gl 8,895,05! 8,895,05! 1.8 4,869,08. 4,869,08: 2.C
Diversified/Conglomerate Manufacturi 8,931,34. 8,718,85! 1.7 6,001,21! 6,001,21! 2.4
Diversified/Conglomerate Servit 17,962,72 17,303,96 3.4 5,517,322, 5,517,322, 2.2
Ecological 3,937,85! 3,937,85! 0.8 3,985,09! 3,985,09! 1.€
Electronics 15,830,38 15,158,50 3.C 7,511,95! 7,511,95! 3.C
Farming and Agricultur 4,800,65: 4,058,83! 0.8 4,913,211 4,913,21( 2.C
Finance 11,590,69 11,209,82. 2.2 10,220,46 10,220,46 4.1
Healthcare, Education and Childc: 46,715,87 46,637,70 9.2 28,937,86 28,937,86 11.
Home and Office Furnishings, Housewares, and Dal

Consumer Good 24,091,18 23,265,81 4.€ 2,985,001 2,985,00! 1.2
Hotels, Motels, Inns and Gamil 9,364,16! 9,091,04. 1.8 — — —
Insurance 24,346,88 23,941,76 4.7 12,115,20 12,115,20 4.6
Leisure, Amusement, Motion Pictures, Entertainn 18,402,60 18,402,60 3.€ 7,034,76: 7,034,76. 2.8
Machinery (No-Agriculture, Nor-Construction, No-

Electronic) 39,573,33 39,483,41 7.8 6,855,87! 6,855,87! 2.8
Mining, Steel, Iron and N¢-Precious Metal 16,338,44 16,069,75 3.2 4,004,61. 4,004,61. 1.€
Oil and Gas 5,997,87. 5,960,00! 1.2 — — —
Personal and Non Durak
Consumer Products (Mfg. Onl 17,315,77 14,750,09 2.6 5,371,09 5,371,009 2.2
Personal, Food and Miscellaneous Serv 13,918,65 13,765,20 2.7 — — —
Personal Transportatic — — — 4,000,001 4,000,00! 1.€
Printing and Publishin 21,622,99 21,236,47 4.2 8,819,39! 8,819,39! 3E
Retail Store: 4,962,50I 4,813,62! 1.C 1,958,33: 1,958,33: 0.8
Utilities 16,384,93 15,471,59 3.1 18,172,04 18,172,04. 7.3

Total $498,014,97 $505,311,69 100.(% $245,032,37 $249,212,37 100.(%

1 Represents percentage of total portfolio at faluea
2 Represents Katonah Debt Advisors and affiliate@tassnagers.

8 Buildings and real estate relate to real estateeostip, builders, managers and developers anddelmortgage debt investments and
mortgage lenders or originators. As of Decembe2807 and December 31, 2006, we had no exposumetigage securities (residential
mortgage bonds, commercial mortgage backed sex3rdr related asset backed securities) or companiwiding mortgage lending.
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We employ a disciplined approach in the selectimh monitoring of our investments. Generally, we¢rinvestments that will provide a
current return through interest income to proviokestability in our net income and place less rel@on realized capital gains from our
investments. Our investment philosophy is focusegr@serving capital with an appropriate returrfifgoelative to risk. Our investment due
diligence and selection generally focuses on arnyidg issuer’s net cash flow after capital expamres to service its debt rather than on
multiples of net income, valuations or other brbadchmarks which frequently miss the nuances ésurer’'s business and prospective
financial performance. We also avoid concentratioreny one industry or issuer. We manage riskughoa rigorous credit and investment
underwriting process and an active portfolio maniitp program.

The investment portfolio (excluding the Companyigastment in Katonah Debt Advisors and CLO Funtigear end is spread across 26
different industries and 91 different entities waih average balance per investment of approximételiwillion. As of December 31, 2007, all
portfolio companies were current on their debt merebligations. The Company’s portfolio, includitige CLO Funds in which it invests, and
the CLO Funds managed by Katonah Debt Advisorsisbaknost exclusively of credit instruments isstigccorporations and do not include
investments in asset-backed securities, such as serured by commercial mortgages, residentigigages or other consumer borrowings.

We may invest up to 30% of our investment portfai@pportunistic investments in high-yield bondsbt and equity securities in CLO
Funds, distressed debt or equity securities ofipaloimpanies. We expect that these public compaygasrally will have debt that is non-
investment grade. We also may invest in debt ofdleidharket companies located outside of the Uriades, which investments are not
anticipated to be in excess of 10% of our investrpertfolio at the time such investments are madéecember 31, 2007, approximately 1
of our investments were foreign assets (includiaginvestments in CLO Funds, which are typicallymdigled outside the U.S. and represent
approximately 6% of our portfolio). As a resultrefyulatory restrictions, we are not permitted teest in any portfolio company in which
Kohlberg & Co. or any fund that it manages haseagxisting investment.

At December 31, 2007, our ten largest portfolio pamies represented approximately 29% of the tatavalue of our investments. Our
largest investment, Katonah Debt Advisors whicbuswholly-owned portfolio company, represented 1@0the total fair value of our
investments. Excluding Katonah Debt Advisors andDdtund securities, our ten largest portfolio conmganepresent approximately 17% of
the total fair value of our investments.
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CLO Fund Securities

We typically make a minority investment in the stdinated securities or preferred stock of CLO Furaised and managed by Katonah
Debt Advisors and may selectively invest in se@sitssued by CLO Funds managed by other assetgaarent companies. As of
December 31, 2007, we had $31 million investedli®®und securities, including those issued by fumdsaged by Katonah Debt Advisors.
In addition, in connection with the closing of Katth Debt Advisor's most recent CLO Fund on Jan@8y2008, we invested approximately
$29 million to acquire all of the shares of the tjasior class of securities of the CLO Fund. Adaficember 31, 2007, all of the CLO Fund
which the Company holds investments maintainectiggnal issue credit ratings on all rated classfetheir securities, were distributing cash
flows to all classes of investors and were perfagnin line with expectations with no breach of angterial covenants. During the year ended
December 31, 2007, our CLO Fund securities for tvinie had a full year’'s payments returned an ave2&88& cash-on-cash return. Our CLO
Fund securities as of December 31, 2007 and 2@06safollows:

December 31, 200 December 31, 200

CLO Fund Securities Investment %_1 Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Grant Grove CLO, Ltd Subordinated Securitie 22.2% $ 4,415,581 $ 4,250,000 $ — 3 —
Katonah IlI, Ltd. Preferred Share 23.1 4,500,00!I 2,810,00! 4,500,001 4,500,001
Katonah 1V, Ltd. Mezzanine Investmel 17.1 3,150,00! 2,420,00! 3,150,00! 3,150,00!
Katonah V, Ltd. Preferred Share 26.7 3,320,00! 420,00( 3,320,00! 3,320,00!
Katonah VII CLO Ltd.2 Subordinated Securitie 16.4 4,500,00!I 3,950,00! 4,500,00!I 4,500,001
Katonah VIII CLO Ltd.2 Subordinated Securitie 10.2 3,400,00! 3,290,00! 3,400,00! 3,400,00!
Katonah IX CLO Ltd? Preferred Share 6.9 2,000,001 2,000,001 2,000,00! 2,000,00!
Katonah X CLO Ltd?2 Subordinated Securitie 33.2 10,775,68 11,880,000 — —

Total $36,061,26 $31,020,000 $20,870,000 $20,870,00

1 Represents percentage of class held.
2 An affiliate CLO Fund managed by Katonah Debt Advss

The CLO Funds managed by Katonah Debt Advisorssinpemarily in broadly syndicated non-investmergdge loans, high-yield bonds
and other credit instruments of corporate issugte.underlying assets in each of the CLO Fundshithvwe have any investment are gene
diversified secured or unsecured corporate deld.urtderlying assets in our CLO Funds exclude mgegmols or mortgage securities
(residential mortgage bonds, commercial mortgag&dxhsecurities, or related asset-backed secyritiebt to companies providing mortgage
lending and emerging markets investments. The taddewv summarizes certain attributes of each CL@dFRas per their December 2007 tru
report:

Number of Number of Number of Average Security Average Issue
CLO Fund Securities Securities Issuers Industries Position Size Position Size
Grant Grove CLO, Ltd 24% 17¢ 32 $ 1,170,001 $ 1,640,00!
Katonah 111, Ltd. 30¢ 214 30 1,220,001 1,740,001
Katonah IV, Ltd. 35C 24¢€ 30 970,00( 1,390,001
Katonah V, Ltd. 382 262 30 620,00( 910,00(
Katonah VII CLO Ltd. 23¢ 17€ 32 1,410,001 1,850,001
Katonah VIII CLO Ltd 22¢€ 17C 31 1,650,001 2,200,001
Katonah IX CLO Ltd 21€ 16E 33 1,780,001 2,330,00!
Katonah X CLO Ltc 21C 157 32 2,060,001 2,750,001

Katonah Debt Advisors

Katonah Debt Advisors is our whollywned asset management company that manages CLd3 Ehat invest in broadly syndicated loz
high yield bonds and other credit instruments. Th® Funds managed by Katonah Debt Advisors coesgidusively of credit instruments
issued by corporations and do not invest in asaekdd securities secured by commercial mortgageilantial mortgages or other consumer
borrowings. As of December 31, 2007, Katonah Delbtigors had approximately $2.1 billion of assetderrmanagement, and was valued at
approximately $59 million.
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As a manager of the CLO Funds, Katonah Debt Adsiseceives contractual and recurring managemestafeavell as a one-time
structuring fee from the CLO Funds for its managenamd advisory services. In addition, Katonah Diidbtisors may also earn income rela
to net interest on assets accumulated for futur® Gsuances on which it has provided a first laggrgnty in connection with loan warehouse
arrangements for its CLO Funds. Katonah Debt Adgiggnerates annual operating income equal tontloeiiat by which its fee income
exceeds it operating expenses. The annual managé&esrwhich Katonah Debt Advisors receives areeggdly based on a fixed percentage of
the par value of assets under management andcaneing in nature for the term of the CLO Fund @nd as Katonah Debt Advisors manages
the fund. As a result, the annual management faeged by Katonah Debt Advisors are not subjectaoket value fluctuations in the
underlying collateral. Katonah Debt Advisors getesannual operating income equal to the amoumttigh its fee income exceeds it
operating expenses. In future years, Katonah Dedbtsrs may receive accrued incentive fees upotighi&ation of CLO Funds it manages,
provided such CLO Funds have achieved a minimurastmaent return to holders of their subordinatedisges or preferred shares. For more
information regarding Katonah Debt Advisors, se8VESTMENT AND OPERATIONS—Investment in Katonah Dédvisors.”

For the year ended December 31, 2007, Katonah Bdkisors had after-tax net income of approximag&3ymillion.

INVESTMENTS AND OPERATIONS
Overview

We are an internally managed, non-diversified adesed investment company that has elected to hdategl as a BDC under the 1940
Act. We originate, structure and invest in senerwsed term loans, mezzanine debt and selectetyessuaiurities in primarily privately-held
middle market companies. We define the middle ntaakecomprising companies with EBITDA of $10 millico $50 million and/or total debt
of $25 million to $150 million. In addition to omniddle market investment business, our wholly-owperdfolio company, Katonah Debt
Advisors, manages CLO Funds that invest in broaghdicated loans, high-yield bonds and other catgocredit instruments. We acquired
Katonah Debt Advisors and certain related assébs for our initial public offering from affiliateef Kohlberg & Co., a leading private equity
firm focused on middle market investing. As of Dexdter 31, 2007, Katonah Debt Advisors had approxtga2.1 billion of assets under
management.

Our investment objective is to generate currerime and capital appreciation from the investmeradarby our middle market
investment business in senior secured first andrgktien term loans, mezzanine debt and selecteitlyeqvestments primarily in privately-
held middle market companies. We also expect ttirmoa to receive distributions of recurring feednte and to generate capital appreciation
from our investment in the asset management busifd§atonah Debt Advisors. Our investment portfas well as the investment portfolios
of the CLO Funds in which we have invested andrkiestment portfolios of the CLO Funds managed hyoliah Debt Advisors consist
exclusively of credit instruments and other se@sitssued by corporations and do not include asgtebacked securities secured by
commercial mortgages, residential mortgages o atbesumer borrowings.

As of December 31, 2007, we had total secured team, mezzanine debt, bond and equity investmdrapmroximately $415 million,
total investments in CLO Fund securities managedursywholly-owned portfolio company Katonah Debtwgbrs and three other asset
managers of approximately $31 million, and totakistment in 100% of Katonah Debt Advisors’ assatagament company of approximately
$59 million

As of December 31, 2007, we had a portfolio of Btaeent securities that included first and secosd $iecured loans. Our investments
generally averaged between $1 million to $10 millialthough particular investments may be largesnaaller. The size of individual
investments will vary according to their priority & company’s capital structure, with larger inugetts in more secure positions in an effort to
maximize capital
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preservation. We expect that the size of our imaests and maturity dates will vary as follows:
» senior secured term loans from $10 to $20 millicaturing in five to seven year
» second lien term loans from $5 to $20 million metgrin six to eight years
» senior unsecured loans $5 to $10 million maturingix to eight years
* mezzanine loans from $5 to $10 million maturingé@ven to ten years; a
e equity investments from $1 to $5 millic

When we extend senior secured term loans, we eilegally take a security interest in the availadsets of the portfolio company,
including the equity interests of their subsidiariwhich we expect to help mitigate the risk thatwill not be repaid. Nonetheless, there is a
possibility that our lien could be subordinateattaims of other creditors. Structurally, mezzardebt ranks subordinate in priority of payment
to senior term loans and is often unsecured. Reladi equity, mezzanine debt ranks senior to comamzhpreferred equity in a borrower’s
capital structure. Typically, mezzanine debt hasneints of both debt and equity instruments, oftgtire fixed returns in the form of interest
payments associated with a loan, while providingportunity to participate in the capital appréoia of a borrower, if any, through an eqt
interest that is typically in the form of equitynghased at the time the mezzanine loan is repaicharants to purchase equity at a future date at
a fixed cost. Mezzanine debt generally earns adnigiturn than senior secured debt due to its higéle profile and usually less restrictive
covenants. The warrants associated with mezzawribeade typically detachable, which allows lenderseceive repayment of their principal
an agreed amortization schedule while retaining #guity interest in the borrower. Mezzanine dalsb may include a “put” feature, which
permits the holder to sell its equity interest backhe borrower at a price determined throughgreed formula.

Investment Objective

Our investment objective is to generate currerime and capital appreciation from the investmeraderby our middle market business
in senior secured term loans, mezzanine debt dadted equity investments in privately-held middiarket companies, and from our
investment in Katonah Debt Advisors. We intendtawgour portfolio of assets by raising additionapital, including through the prudent use
of leverage available to us. We will primarily irstén first and second lien term loans which, bsesaf their priority in a company’s capital
structure, we expect will have lower default reded higher rates of recovery of principal if thev@ default and which we expect will create a
stable stream of interest income. While our primamestment focus is on making loans to, and setketjuity investments in, privately-held
middle market companies, we may also invest inrdtheestments such as loans to larger, publiclge¢thcompanies, high-yield bonds and
distressed debt securities. We may also receiveaw@ror options to purchase common stock in cdiorewith our debt investments. In
addition, we may also invest in debt and equityusées issued by CLO Funds managed by Katonah Bdbisors or by other asset managers.
However, our investment strategy is to limit théuesof our investments in the debt or equity semgiissued by CLO Funds to not more than
15% of the value of our total investment portfolde invest almost exclusively in credit instrumeistied by corporations and do not inves
asset-backed securities such as those securedryarial or residential mortgages or other consumerowings.

Credit and Investment Process

We employ the same due diligence intensive investrsteategy that our senior management team, KhtDedbt Advisors and
Kohlberg & Co. have used over the past 21 years. Dwur ability to source transactions throughtipl@ channels, we expect to maintain a
substantial pipeline of opportunities to allow cargtive risk return analysis and selectivity. Bgdsing on the drivers of revenue and cash
flow, we develop our own underwriting cases, andtiple stress and event specific case scenariogdoh company analyzed.

We focus on lending and investing opportunities in:

e companies with EBITDA of $10 to $50 millio
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e companies with financing needs of $25 to $150 onit|

* companies purchased by top tier equity spon:

* nor-sponsored companies with successful managemersyatems

» high-yield bonds and broadly syndicated loans to lacgenpanies on a selective basis;

e equity c-investment in companies where we see substantromity for capital appreciatio

We expect to source investment opportunities from:
e private equity sponsor
» regional investment banks for r-sponsored companie
» other middle market lenders with whom we ¢“cluk” loans;
» Katonah Debt Advisors with regard to h-yield bonds and syndicated loans;

» Kohlberg & Co. with regard to selected private ¢guivestment opportunitie:
In our experience, good credit judgment is based thorough understanding of both the qualitativé quantitative factors which
determine a company’s performance. Our analysigbegith an understanding of the fundamentals efitidlustry in which a company
operates, including the current economic envirortraed the outlook for the industry. We also focagite company’s relative position within

the industry and its historical ability to weat&onomic cycles. Other key qualitative factorsudel the experience and depth of the
management team and the financial sponsor, if any.

Only after we have a comprehensive understandinigeofiualitative factors do we focus on quantitativetrics. We believe that with the
context provided by the qualitative analysis, we gain a better understanding of a company’s firsperformance. We analyze a potential
portfolio company’s sales growth and margins indbetext of its competition as well as its abilitymanage its working capital requirements
and its ability to generate consistent cash floas&l upon this historical analysis, we developt afgerojections which represents a reasonable
underwriting case of most likely outcomes for teenpany over the period of our investment. UsingMaximum Reasonable Adversity
model, we also look at a variety of potential doidascases to determine a company’s ability to serits debt in a stressed credit environment.

Elements of thgualitative analysisve use in evaluating investment opportunities idelthe following:
e Industry fundamental:
» Competitive position and market sha
» Past ability to work through historical do-cycles;
* Quality of financial and technology infrastructu
» Asian sourcing risks and opportunitit
e Labor and union strateg
» Technology risk
» Diversity of customer base and product lir
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Quality and experience of managems
Quality of financial sponsor (if applicable); a
Acquisition and integration histor

Elements of thguantitative analysisve use in evaluating investment opportunities idelthe following:

Income statement analysis of growth and margindse

Balance sheet analysis of working capital efficigr

Cash flow analysis of capital expenditures and éa&sh flow;

Financial ratio and market share standing amongpenable companie
Financial projections: underwriting versus stresseg

Event specific Maximum Reasonable Adversity cretiideling;
Future capital expenditure needs and asset sais;

Downside protection to limit losses in an eventlefault;

Risk adjusted returns and relative value analysid

Enterprise and asset valuatio

The origination, structuring and credit approvalgasses are fully integrated. Our credit teamrisctly involved in all due diligence and
analysis prior to the formal credit approval praces

Credit Monitoring

Our management team has significant experiencetororg portfolios of middle market investments dhid is enhanced by the credit
monitoring procedures of Katonah Debt Advisors.gjavith origination and credit analysis, portfolimnagement is one of the key elements
of our business. Most of our investments will netlioguid and, therefore, we must prepare to aatkduiif potential issues arise so that we can
work closely with the management and private eggjtynsor, if applicable, of the portfolio companytake any necessary remedial action
quickly. In addition, most of our senior managemeain, including the credit team at Katonah Debtigats, have substantial workout and
restructuring experience.

In order to assist us in detecting issues withfpliotcompanies as early as possible, we perfomoathly financial analysis of each
portfolio company. This analysis typically includes

reviewing financial statements with comparisongrior year financial statements, as well as thessurbudget including key
financial ratios such as debt/EBITDA, margins aimeéd charge coverag

independently computing and verifying compliancéhwfinancial covenants

reviewing and analyzing monthly borrowing baserif;

a monthly discussion of MD&A with company managetremd the private equity sponsor, if applical
determining if current performance could causertifinancial covenant defau

discussing prospects with the private equity sprriapplicable;
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» determining if a portfolio company should be adttedur”watch lis” (companies to be reviewed in more dep

» if a company is not meeting expectations, revievdgriginal underwriting assumptions and determirifrejther enterprise value
asset value has deteriorated enough to warratigiugiction; ant

» a monthly update to be reviewed by both the Chiefdbtive Officer “CEC”) and Chief Investment Office" CIO").

Investment Securities

We invest in senior secured loans and mezzanineasheh in the future and to a lesser extent, equapital, of middle market companies
in a variety of industries. We generally target pamies that generate positive cash flows becaudeokeo cash flows as the primary source
for servicing debt. As of December 31, 2007, togethith our wholly-owned portfolio company KatonBlebt Advisors, we had a staff of 20
investment professionals who specialize in spedifitistries and generally seek to invest in comgmabout which we have direct expertise.
However, we may invest in other industries if we presented with attractive opportunities. Thedsallelow show our investments by security
type and industry as a percentage of total investsn&or more information regarding our investrsaturities, see the “INVESTMENT
PORTFOLIO—Investment Securities.”

CLO Fund Securities

As of December 31, 2007, we had $31 million inveésteCLO Fund securities, including those issuedumds managed by Katonah D
Advisors. CLO Funds managed by Katonah Debt Adsgigorest primarily in broadly syndicated non-invesnt grade loans, high-yield bonds
and other credit instruments of corporate issugrs.underlying assets in each of the CLO Fundshithvwe have any investment are gene
diversified secured or unsecured corporate debeanldide mortgage pools or mortgage securitiesd@gatal mortgage bonds, commercial
mortgage backed securities, or related asset-bad@dities), debt to companies providing mortgagding and emerging markets
investments.

The CLO Funds are leveraged funds and any excsbsfloav or “excess spread” (interest earned byutiderlying securities in the fund
less payments made to senior bond holders anduedsxpenses and management fees) is paid todusther the holders of the CLO Fund’s
subordinated securities or preferred stock basdti@proportionate share of such class. Duringy#ze ended December 31, 2007, our CLO
Fund securities for which we had a full year’s qeidy payments returned an average 28% cash-onrefigim.

The securities issued by CLO Funds managed by Kat@ebt Advisors are primarily held by third pastids of December 31, 2007, we
had $10 million invested at fair value in four thparty managed CLO Funds. We typically make a nitjngvestment in the subordinated
securities or preferred stock of CLO Funds raisatiraanaged by Katonah Debt Advisors and may se&dgtinvest in securities issued by
CLO Funds managed by other asset management coesp&or more information regarding our investmecusities, see thdNVESTMENT
PORTFOLIO—Investment in CLO Fund Securities.”

Katonah Debt Advisors

Katonah Debt Advisors is our whollywned asset management company that manages CLd3 Ehat invest in broadly syndicated loz
high yield bonds and other credit instruments. Th® Funds managed by Katonah Debt Advisors coegidusively of credit instruments
issued by corporations and do not invest in asaekdd securities secured by commercial mortgagseilantial mortgages or other consumer
borrowings. As of December 31, 2007, Katonah Delbtigors had approximately $2.1 billion of assetderrmanagement, and was valued at
approximately $59 million.

As a manager of the CLO Funds, Katonah Debt Adsiseceives contractual and recurring managemestafeavell as a one-time
structuring fee from the CLO Funds for its managenaad advisory services. In
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addition, Katonah Debt Advisors may also earn ineoslated to net interest on assets accumulatddtime CLO issuances on which it has
provided a first loss guaranty in connection wiahn warehouse arrangements for its CLO Funds. ldat@ebt Advisors generates annual
operating income equal to the amount by whichesifhcome exceeds it operating expenses. The amauwelgement fees which Katonah Debt
Advisors receives are generally based on a fixedgoeage of the par value of assets under managemerare recurring in nature for the term
of the CLO Fund so long as Katonah Debt Advisoraages the fund. As a result, the annual managef@esnearned by Katonah Debt
Advisors are not subject to market value fluctuadiin the underlying collateral. Katonah Debt Advisgenerates annual operating income
equal to the amount by which its fee income excéemzerating expenses. In future years, Katonaht Belvisors may receive accrued
incentive fees upon the liquidation of CLO Fundsiénages, provided such CLO Funds have achievadimmom investment return to holders
of their subordinated securities or preferred stock

We expect to continue to make investments in CL@&d8umanaged by Katonah Debt Advisors, which weelelivill provide us with a
current cash investment return. We believe thatelhevestments will provide Katonah Debt Advisoithwgreater opportunities to access new
sources of capital which will ultimately increasatinah Debt Advisors’ assets under managementesndting management fee income. We
expect to continue to receive distributions of reiag fee income and to generate capital appregigtiom our investment in Katonah Debt
Advisors.

The revenue that Katonah Debt Advisors generatesigfin the fees it receives for managing CLO Fumdbkadter paying the expenses
associated with its operations, including compeéoraif its employees, may be distributed to us.hGdistributions of Katonah Debt Advisors’
net income is recorded as dividends from affiledset manager when declared. As with all othersinvents, Katonah Debt Advisors’ fair
value is periodically determined. The valuatiob@sed primarily on a percentage of its assets undaagement and/or based on Katonah
Advisors’ estimated operating income. Any changedtue from period to period is recognized as uized gain or loss.

As a separately taxable corporation, Katonah Deligors is taxed at normal corporate rates. Foptaposes, any distributions of
taxable net income earned by Katonah Debt Advigpts would generally need to be distributed tosiackholders. Katonah Debt Advisors’
taxable net income differs from GAAP net incomelfoth deferred tax timing adjustments and permataenadjustments. Deferred tax timing
adjustments may include differences between leasle payments to GAAP straight line expense andstidgnts for the recognition and timi
of depreciation, bonuses to employees, stock ogtiqpense, and interest rate caps. Permanent diffesenay include adjustments, limitations
or disallowances for meals and entertainment ex@emesenalties and tax goodwill amortization.

Goodwill amortizable for tax was created upon thechase of 100% of the equity interests in Katobaht Advisors prior to our initial
public offering in exchange for shares of our steakued at $33 million. Although this transactioasia stock transaction rather than an asset
purchase and thus no goodwill was recognized foABAurposes, for tax purposes such exchange wasdesad a taxable asset purchase
under the Code. At the time of the transfer, KatoDabt Advisors had equity of approximately $1 ioill resulting in tax goodwill of
approximately $32 million which will be amortizedrftax purposes on a straight-line basis over Hsyeesulting in an annual difference
between GAAP income and taxable income by approein&2 million per year over such period.

Revenues

We generate revenue in the form of interest incomdebt securities and capital gains, if any, orravds or other equity-related
securities that we acquire in our portfolio comganin addition, we generate revenue in the foreoaimitment and facility fees and, to a
lesser extent, due diligence fees. Any such fedwigenerated in connection with our investmemis recognized as earned or, in some Ci
recognized over the life of the loan. We expectiouestments generally to have a term of betweendnd eight years and bear interest at
various rates ranging from 2% to 10% over the plienpmarket rates for Treasury securities. Where
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applicable, we seek to collateralize our investméytobtaining security interests in our portfalmmpanies’ assets. Interest on debt securities
will generally be payable monthly or quarterly, lwamortization of principal typically occurring aviiae term of the security. In those limited
instances where we choose to defer amortizatidheofoan for a period of time from the date of ithi§al investment, the principal amount of
the debt securities and any accrued but unpaidesttevill generally become due at the maturity date

We also generate dividend income from our investrirteGLO equities. These subordinated securitieslae most junior class of
securities issued by the CLO Funds and are sulatedirin priority of payment to each other classesfurities issued by these CLO Funds.
Dividends on CLO equities are generally paid qugrte

Expenses

Because we are an internally managed BDC, we waillthe costs associated with employing investmeartagement professionals and
other employees as well as running our operations.primary non-interest expenses will include ewypk salaries and benefits, the costs of
identifying, evaluating, negotiating, closing, mimning and servicing our investments and our relateerhead charges and expenses, including
rental expense and any interest expense incurreshinection with borrowings. Because we are infgrmaanaged, we do not pay any
management fees to any third party.

Our Strategic Relationship with Kohlberg & Co.

We believe that we derive substantial benefits foamstrategic relationship with Kohlberg & Co. TBhairman and co-managing
partners of Kohlberg & Co., each of whom is a mendf@ur Board of Directors, and, in the case &f th-managing partners, are also
members of our Investment Committee. Through saetigipation, we have access to the expertiseeddtindividuals in the middle market
and leveraged investing, which we believe enhanoegapital raising, due diligence, investmentaida and credit analysis activities.
Affiliates of Kohlberg & Co., including those whersye on our Board of Directors and on our Investn@mmittee, own, in the aggregate,
approximately 17% of our outstanding common sté@dhlberg & Co. is a leading U.S. private equityrfivhich manages investment funds
that acquire middle market companies. Since itading in 1987, Kohlberg & Co. has organized sixaté equity funds, through which it has
raised approximately $3.5 billion of committed dapand completed more than 80 platform and addenuisitions with an aggregate value of
approximately $7 billion.

Because we are an internally managed BDC, we dpayotiny fees to Kohlberg & Co. or any of its @ifiés. Under the 1940 Act, we are
generally prohibited from buying or selling any sety from or to any portfolio company of a privaquity fund managed by Kohlberg & Co.
without the prior approval of the Securities andange Commission (the “SEC”). In addition, we naayinvest on a concurrent basis with
Kohlberg & Co. or any of our affiliates, subjectdaompliance with existing regulatory guidance, &atile regulations and our allocation
procedures. Certain types of negotiated co-investsmaay be made only if we receive an order fromSEC permitting us to do so. There can
be no assurance that any such order will be oldaine

LEVERAGE

In addition to funds available from the issuancewf common stock, we use borrowed funds, knowteasrage,” to make investments
and to attempt to increase returns to our sharemloly reducing our overall cost of capital. As2®B we are limited in the amount of lever:
we can incur under the 1940 Act. We are only alldteeborrow amounts such that our asset coveragadefned in the 1940 Act, equals at
least 200% after such borrowing. The amount ofriege that we employ at any time depends on ousassnt of the market and other factors
at the time of any proposed borrowing. As of Decen#i, 2007 and December 31, 2006, we had $25®Hmdhd no outstanding borrowings,
respectively.
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On February 14, 2007, we entered into a secuiitizaevolving credit facility (the “Facility”) undewhich we had a right to obtain up to
$200 million in financing. On October 1, 2007, waended the Facility to increase our borrowing capdimom $200 million to $275 million,
extend the maturity date from February 12, 201@d¢tober 1, 2012 and increase the interest spremdiett on outstanding borrowings by 15
basis points, to 0.85%. In addition, the amendmevised the method for determining the requiredtggqontribution from Kohlberg Capital 1
KCAP Funding. Subject to certain thresholds, tlgiied equity contribution will be increased frodS$million to $60 million, depending on
the amount of outstanding borrowings Advances utfteFacility are used primarily to make additiomsestments.

The Facility is secured by loans acquired by us Wit advances under the Facility. We borrow utigeFacility through our wholly-
owned, special-purpose bankruptcy remote subsidiaiilberg Capital Funding LLC | (*KCAP FundingUnder the Facility, funds are
loaned by or through BMO Capital Markets Corp., ldrader, based on prevailing commercial paper matei$ the commercial paper market is
at any time unavailable, at prevailing LIBOR rafesgach case plus an applicable spread.

Under the Facility, we are subject to limitatiorssta how borrowed funds may be used, includingir&gns on geographic and industry
concentrations, loan size, payment frequency aatdsstaverage life, collateral interests and invest ratings. We are also subject to
regulatory restrictions on leverage which may dffee amount of funding that we can obtain underRhcility. The Facility also includes
certain requirements relating to portfolio perforroe, including required minimum portfolio yield alhitations on delinquencies and charge-
offs, a violation of which could result in the gadmortization of the Facility, limit further advess and, in some cases, result in an event of
default. The interest charged on borrowed fundmised on prevailing commercial paper rates plus%.8r, if the commercial paper market is
at any time unavailable, prevailing LIBOR ratesspéun applicable spread. The interest charged aowed funds is payable monthly. We w
required to pay a one-time, 0.50% structuring teth@time we originally entered into the Faciliag well as a one-time, 1% structuring fee on
the $75 million increase in borrowing availabilimder the Facility at the time we entered intoRheility amendment. Additionally, we are
also required to pay an annual commitment fee, ldayaonthly, equal to 0.225% for any unused portibthe Facility.

The pool of loans securing the Facility is requitedneet certain eligibility criteria specifiedtine documents governing the Facility.
There can be no assurance that we will be abler@l the amounts anticipated under the Facility.

We estimate that the portfolio of loans securingdredit facility will be required to generate amaal rate of return of approximately 3%
to cover annual interest payments on obligationsrired under the credit facility.

COMPETITION

Our primary competitors provide financing to progjpee portfolio companies and include commerciaikkss specialty finance
companies, hedge funds, structured investment fandsnvestment banks. Many of these entities lga@ater financial and managerial
resources than we have, and the 1940 Act impostrceegulatory restrictions on us as a BDC toalihihany of our competitors are not
subject. For additional information concerning tlmenpetitive risks we face, see “Risk Factors—RREktated to Our Business—We operate in
a highly competitive market for investment oppoities.”

We believe that we provide a unique combinatioarogxperienced middle market origination and crediin, an existing credit platform
at Katonah Debt Advisors that includes experiedeaders with broad industry expertise and an Imaest Committee that includes co-
managing partners of Kohlberg & Co., a leading elgmeed and successful middle market private edinity. We believe that this combinati
of resources provides us with a thorough credit@ss and multiple sources of investment opporesitth enhance our asset selection process.
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COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES
We believe that we can successfully compete witleroproviders of capital in the markets in whicheeenpete for the following reasor

Internally managed structure and significant managenent resources. We are internally managed by our executive offiaende
the supervision of our Board of Directors and dodepend on a third party investment advisor. Assallt, we do not pay
investment advisory fees and all of our incomevailable to pay our operating costs and to makeibligions to our stockholders.
We believe that other substantial benefits to aterhally managed structure inclut

. our investment professionals do not serve as advtscany other investment funds other than thoseaged by us

. we leverage our management resources and thosatofi&h Debt Advisors across our portfolio of inwestts and the
investments of the CLO Funds managed by Katonal Bétisors; anc

. a significant portion of the compensation of ourisemanagers is tied to the performance of ouestiments, resulting in an
alignment of interests between our management laaueBolders

Multiple sourcing capabilities for assets. We have multiple sources of loans, mezzaninesimvents and equity investme!
through our industry relationships, Katonah Debviédrs and our strategic relationship with Kohlb&rgo.

Disciplined investment proces:. We employ a rigorous credit review process argldiligence intensive investment strategy wi
our senior management has developed over more2thgears of lending. For each analyzed companyjevelop our own
underwriting case and multiple stress case scearid an event-specific financial model reflectogipany, industry and market
variables. Generally, both we and the CLO Fundsaged by Katonah Debt Advisors have decided natutest in highly leverage
or “covenant ligh” credit facilities.

Katonah Debt Advisors’ credit platform . Katonah Debt Advisors serves as a source of mectdnvestment opportunities, and
certain credit analysts employed by Katonah Debtigats who also serve as officers of the Companyige credit analysis to u

Investments in a wide variety of portfolio companis in a number of different industries with no exposre to mortgage-
backed securities Our investment portfolio (excluding our investrteeim Katonah Debt Advisors and CLO Fund seculjities
spread across 26 different industries and 91 @iffeentities with an average balance per investimeapproximately $5 million.
Our investment portfolio as well as the investrmantfolios of the CLO Funds in which we have inessand the investment
portfolios of the CLO Funds managed by Katonah D¥htisors consist exclusively of credit instrumeatsl other securities issu
by corporations and do not include any asset-baskedrities secured by commercial mortgages, resadenortgages or other
consumer borrowing:

Strategic relationship with Kohlberg & Co . We believe that Kohlberg & Co. is one of the sldend most we-known private
equity firms focused on the middle market, and wgeet to continue to derive substantial benefisnflour strategic relationship
with Kohlberg & Co. The Co-managing partners of Kang & Co. serve on our Board of Directors andan Investment
Committee, and they and other Kohlberg & Co. affds own approximately 17% of our outstanding comstock.

Significant equity ownership and alignment of incetives. Our senior management team, the senior manageeasntof Katona
Debt Advisors and affiliates of Kohlberg & Co. tdlger have a significant equity interest in the Camp(who own, in the
aggregate, approximately 17% of our outstandingmomstock) ensuring that their incentives are gfiypaligned with those of ot
stockholders

22



Table of Contents

DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE

We determine the net asset value per share ofamnmon stock quarterly. The net asset value peeskarqual to the value of our total
assets minus liabilities and any preferred stodktanding divided by the total number of sharesashmon stock outstanding. As of
December 31, 2007, we did not have any preferieekstutstanding.

Value, as defined in Section 2(a)(41) of 1940 Ac(1) the market price for those securities foiolira market quotation is readily
available and (2) for all other securities and &sdair value as determined in good faith by ooaRl of Directors pursuant to procedures
approved by our Board of Directors. Our quartedjuation process begins with each portfolio compamiypvestment being initially valued by
the investment professionals responsible for thf@m investment. Preliminary valuation conclusgare then documented and discussed
our senior management. The Valuation CommitteeuoBwmard of Directors reviews these preliminaryuaions and makes recommendations
to our Board of Directors. Where appropriate, ttadudtion Committee may utilize an independent viédunafirm selected by our Board of
Directors. The Valuation Committee has selectethdapendent valuation firm to assist with the paidovaluation of our illiquid securities.
Our Board of Directors discusses valuations andrdehes the fair value of each investment in outfplio in good faith based on the
recommendations of the Valuation Committee.

Because of the inherent uncertainty of determitlivegfair value of investments that do not haveaalitg available market value, the fair
value of our investments determined under our ghaes may differ significantly from the values thatuld have been used had a ready
market existed for the investments or from the @althat would have been placed on our assets by wtarket participants, and the differen
could be material.

For those investments for which a market quotadioabservable market prices do not exist, thermisingle standard for determining
fair value. As a result, determining fair valueuggs that judgment be applied to the specificfartd circumstances of each portfolio
investment. Unlike banks, we are not permittedrtivigle a general reserve for anticipated loan mssestead, we must determine the fair vi
of each individual investment on a quarterly baéis. record unrealized depreciation on investmeimsnave believe that an investment has
decreased in value, including where collection tifaan or realization of an equity security is ddubtConversely, we record unrealized
appreciation if we believe that as a result ouegiment has appreciated in value, for example,usecthe underlying portfolio company has
appreciated in value.

As a BDC, we may invest in illiquid securities, linding loans to and warrants of private companies@her illiquid securities, such as
CLO Funds securities and our investment in Katddeht Advisors. Our investments are generally sulifgcestrictions on resale and genel
have no established trading market. Because df/pgeeof investments that we make and the natumipbusiness, our valuation process
requires an analysis of various factors. Our vadnamnethodology includes the examination of, amotiger things, the underlying investment
performance, financial condition and market chaggiuents that impact valuation.

With respect to private debt and equity investmesash investment is valued using industry valuatienchmarks, and, where
appropriate, such as valuing private warrantsirthaet value in our valuation model may be assigaeliscount reflecting the illiquid nature of
the investment and our minority, non-control pasitiWwhen a qualifying external event such as aifsigmt purchase transaction, public
offering or subsequent loan or warrant sale ocahbespricing indicated by the external event issidered in determining our private debt or
equity valuation. Securities that are traded indher-the-counter market or on a stock exchangergdly are valued at the prevailing bid price
on the valuation date. However, restricted or thtrdded public securities may be valued at distofrom the public market value due to
limitations on our ability to sell the securities.

Our investments in CLO Fund securities are caraigf@ir value, which is based either on (i) the amstet value of the CLO Fund for CLO
Funds which are approaching or past the end of thivestment period and therefore begin to sséts and/or use repayments of principal to
pay-down Fund debt, or (ii) a discounted cash
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flow model for more recent CLO Funds that utilipgspayment and loss assumptions based on histesipatience and projected performai
economic factors, the characteristics of the uydeglcash flow and comparable yields for similants or preferred shares to those in which
we have invested. We recognize unrealized appiegiat depreciation on our investments in CLO Feadurities as comparable yields in the
market change and/or based on changes in netvadges or estimated cash flows resulting from clearig prepayment or loss assumptions in
the underlying collateral pool. As each investrmiar€LO Fund securities ages, the expected amouloseés and the expected timing of
recognition of such losses in the underlying cellalt pool is updated and the revised cash flowsisee in determining the fair value of the
CLO Investment. We determine the fair value of iowestments in CLO Fund securities on an individseadurity-by-security basis.

Our investment in Katonah Debt Advisors is caragdair value and is based on multiple approacbestue which involve value drivers
such as assets under management (“AUM”"), cash fiod,earnings before income taxes, depreciatioraamaitization (“EBITDA”). These
value drivers are analyzed in the context of bathngjifiable historical experience and projectedgrenance. AUM or earnings multiples from
peer comparables are then applied to the valuermdrto determine fair value. Our investments inolkah Debt Advisors and CLO Fund
securities are reviewed quarterly by Duff & PhelgsC, a third-party valuation consultant, who penfs certain limited procedures that the
Company’s Board of Directors identified and reqadsand whose conclusion is that the fair valuého$e investments subjected to the limited
procedures did not appear to be unreasonable.

ELECTION TO BE REGULATED AS A BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT COMPANY AND A REGULATED INVESTMENT
COMPANY

Our elections to be regulated as a BDC and todzded as a RIC have a significant impact on owréubperations:
We report our investments at market value or faalue with changes in value reported through our &aent of operations.

We report all of our investments, including deltestments, at market value or, for investmentsdbatot have a readily available
market value, at their “fair value” as determinedypod faith by our Board of Directors pursuanptocedures approved by our Board of
Directors. Changes in these values are reportedghrour statement of operations under the capfidnet unrealized appreciation
(depreciation) on investments.” See “Determinatbilet Asset Value.”

Our ability to use leverage as a means of financiogr portfolio of investments is limited.

As a BDC, we are required to meet a coverage adtiotal assets to total senior securities of asi®00%. For this purpose, senior
securities generally include all borrowings, guéeas of borrowings and any preferred stock we rasiye in the future. Our ability to utilize
leverage as a means of financing our portfolimeEstments is limited by this asset coverage test.

We intend to distribute substantially all of our héaxable income to our stockholders. We generallyl be required to pay U.S. federal
income taxes only on the portion of our net taxabieome and gains that we do not distribute to #tbolders.

We have elected to be treated as a RIC for U.r&dhcome tax purposes, commencing with our teexadar ended December 31, 2(
As a RIC, we intend to distribute to our stockhatdgubstantially all of our net investment comparmpme. In addition, we may retain certain
net longterm capital gains and elect to treat such netalbgains as distributed to our stockholders. i§ thtappens, you will be treated as if y
received an actual distribution of the capital gand reinvested the net after-tax proceeds iNas.also may be eligible to
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claim a tax credit against your U.S. federal incdeeliability (or, in certain circumstances, a ta&fund) equal to your allocable share of the
we pay on the deemed distribution. See “Certain BeSleral Income Tax Considerations.”

As a RIC, we generally are required to pay U.Seffalincome taxes only on the portion of our ngabde income and gains that we do
not distribute (actually or constructively). KaténBebt Advisors, our wholly-owned taxable portfotiompany, receives fee income earned
with respect to its management services. We expatKatonah Debt Advisors will form additional @it or indirect subsidiaries which will
receive similar fee income. Some of these subsidianay be treated as corporations for U.S. fedecalme tax purposes, and as a result, such
subsidiaries will be subject to income tax at ragabrporate rates, for U.S. federal and stateqaap although, as a RIC, dividends and
distributions of capital received by us from ourahle subsidiaries and distributed to our stockéxddvill not subject us to U.S. federal income
taxes. As a result, the net return to us on suebsiiments held by such subsidiaries will be reducdle extent that the subsidiaries are subject
to income taxes.

In addition, due to the asset coverage test afipdida us as a BDC, we may be limited in our abtiit make distributions. See
“Distributions.” Also, restrictions and provisionsour Facility may limit our ability to make digtutions. See “Obligations and Indebtedness.”

We are required to comply with the provisions o&tth940 Act applicable to BDCs.

As a BDC, we are required to have a majority ofcliors who are not “interested” persons under 8 Act. In addition, we are
required to comply with other applicable provisiarighe 1940 Act, including those requiring the piilan of a code of ethics, fidelity bond and
custody arrangements. See also “Regulation.”

REGULATION

The following discussion is a general summary efis@f the material prohibitions and restrictionsgming BDCs generally. It does not
purport to be a complete description of all thedamd regulations affecting BDCs.

A BDC is a unique kind of investment company thénarily focuses on investing in or lending to [@ig companies and making
managerial assistance available to them. A BDCigasvstockholders with the ability to retain thguiidity of a publicly traded stock, while
sharing in the possible benefits of investing ireeging-growth or expansion-stage privately-ownechganies. The 1940 Act contains
prohibitions and restrictions relating to transaigsi between BDCs and their directors and officads@incipal underwriters and certain other
related persons and requires that a majority oflitextors be persons other than “interested psr%as that term is defined in the 1940 Act. In
the ordinary course of business, we may entertiattsactions with portfolio companies that may besidered related party transactions. We
have implemented certain procedures, both writtehumwritten, to ensure that we do not engage ynpaohibited transactions with any
persons affiliated with us. If such affiliationsedpbund to exist, we seek Board and/or committeeveand approval or exemptive relief for
such transactions, as appropriate.

In addition, the 1940 Act provides that we may clzinge the nature of our business so as to ceése ¢o to withdraw our election as, a
BDC unless approved by a majority of our outstagdiating securities. A majority of the outstandi@ing securities of a company is defined
under the 1940 Act as the lesser of (i) 67% or nebich company’s shares present at a meetingpoesented by proxy if more than 50% of
the outstanding shares of such company are presegpresented by proxy or (i) more than 50% ef dtluitstanding shares of such company.
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Qualifying Assets

Under the 1940 Act, a BDC may not acquire any asthetr than assets of the type listed in Sectiqa)58 the 1940 Act, or “qualifying
assets,” unless, at the time the acquisition isepagualifying assets” represent at least 70% efdbmpany’s total assets. The principal
categories of “qualifying assets” relevant to ousibess are the following:

» Securities of a’“eligible portfolio compan” purchased in transactions not involving any pubffering. An“eligible portfolio
compan” is defined in the 1940 Act as any issuer wh

(@) is organized under the laws of, and has its pradgyace of business in, the United Sta

(b) is not an investment company (other than aldmainess investment company wholly-owned by tBe&CBor a company
that would be an investment company but for cematlusions under the 1940 Act; &

(c) satisfies any of the following
(i) does not have outstanding any class of securitigsraspect to which a broker or dealer may extaadgin credit

(ii) is controlled by a BDC or a group of companiestdaig a BDC and the BDC has an affiliated persoo sha directo
of the eligible portfolio compan

(iii) is a small and solvent company having totsdets of not more than $4 million and capital amglsis of not less than
$2 million; or

(iv) does not have any class of securities listed catiamal securities exchanc
» Securities of any eligible portfolio company tha wontrol;

» Securities purchased in a private transaction fadthS. issuer that is not an investment companyisamdbankruptcy and subject to
reorganization

» Securities received in exchange for or distribudedr with respect to securities described abovpucsuant to the conversion
warrants or rights relating to such securit

» Cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government secuoitibgjh-quality debt securities maturing in oneryaaless from the time of
investment; an

» Under certain circumstances, securities of comathiat were eligible portfolio companies at theetiof the initial investment but
that are not eligible portfolio companies at tmaetiof the follov-on investment

On October 25, 2006, the SEC reproposed a rulerdhdel 940 Act that would further expand the défam of an “eligible portfolio
company” to include certain domestic operating cams that list their securities on a national s&es exchange.

Significant Managerial Assistance

A BDC must have been organized and have its prglace of business in the United States and busiperated for the purpose of
making investments in the types of securities deedrabove. However, to count portfolio securiigs'qualifying assetsfor the purpose of tt
70% test, the BDC must either control the issughefsecurities or must offer to make availablthissuer of the securities (other than small
and solvent companies described above) significeamtagerial assistance; except that, where the B€hpses such securities in conjunction
with one or more other persons acting together,afrtiee other persons in the group may make aveilsdich managerial assistance. Making
available significant managerial assistance meamsng other things, any arrangement whereby the,BidGugh its directors, officers or
employees, offers to provide, and, if acceptedsdmeprovide, significant
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guidance and counsel concerning the managemenmgtape or business objectives and policies ofréf@m company through monitoring of
portfolio company operations, selective participatin board and management meetings, consultingawt advising a portfolio company’s
officers or other organizational or financial guida.

Temporary Investments

Pending investment in other types of “qualifyingets,” as described above, our investments maystaisash, cash equivalents, U.S.
government securities or high quality debt se@sithaturing in one year or less from the time wégtment, which we refer to, collectively, as
temporary investments, so that at least 70% ofssets are “qualifying assets.” Typically, we irtvadJ.S. treasury bills or in repurchase
agreements, provided that such agreements arechllteralized by cash or securities issued byut& government or its agencies. A
repurchase agreement involves the purchase byastor, such as us, of a specified security andithaltaneous agreement by the seller to
repurchase it at an agreed upon future date aag@te which is greater than the purchase pricarbgmount that reflects an agreed-upon
interest rate. There is no percentage restrictiothe proportion of our assets that may be inveistsdch repurchase agreements. However, if
more than 25% of our total assets constitute rd@se agreements that are treated, under appligabtales, as being issued by a single
counterparty, we would not meet the diversificatiests imposed on us by the Code to qualify fotteatment as a RIC for U.S. federal
income tax purposes. Thus, we do not intend torémte repurchase agreements treated as issuedr apglicable tax rules, by a single
counterparty in excess of this limit. Thus, we @ intend to enter into repurchase agreementsavitingle counterparty in excess of this limit.
We monitor the creditworthiness of the counterpartiith which we enter into repurchase agreemans#ctions.

Senior Securities; Coverage Ratio

We are permitted, under specified conditions, soésmultiple classes of indebtedness and one afatsck senior to our common stock
if our asset coverage, as defined in the 1940ia¢tt least equal to 200% immediately after eadh $ssuance. In addition, with respect to
certain types of senior securities, we must makeipions to prohibit any dividend distribution tarcstockholders or the repurchase of certain
of our securities, unless we meet the applicaldetaoverage ratios at the time of the dividenttidigtion or repurchase. We may also borrow
amounts up to 5% of the value of our total assatseimporary purposes. For a discussion of the @sisociated with the resulting leverage, see
“Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Business—Thé de&bincur could increase the risk of investingpur Company.”

Code of Ethics

We adopted and maintain a code of ethics pursoaRtte 17j-1 under the 1940 Act that establishesguiures for personal investments
and restricts certain personal securities transastiPersonnel subject to the code may investcariies for their personal investment accot
including securities that may be purchased or bglds, so long as such investments are made indamoce with the code’s requirements. We
may be prohibited under the 1940 Act from condgrtiartain transactions with our affiliates withloe prior approval of our directors who .
not interested persons and, in some cases, thegmiooval of the SEC. You can obtain a copy ofdbae of ethics by any of the methods
described under “Available Information.”

Privacy Principles

We are committed to maintaining the privacy of stackholders and safeguarding their non-publicqreakinformation. The following
information is provided to help you understand whertsonal information we collect, how we proteettimformation and why, in certain cases,
we may share information with select other parties.
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Generally, we do not receive any non-public perborfarmation relating to our stockholders, althbugpme non-public personal
information of our stockholders may become avaddblus. We do not disclose any non-public persimfiatmation about our stockholders or
former stockholders to anyone, except as is negessaervice stockholder accounts, such as tarster agent, or as otherwise permitted by
law.

We restrict access to non-public personal inforamagibout our stockholders to our employees witgitimate business need for the
information. We maintain physical, electronic amdgedural safeguards designed to protect the nbfieguersonal information of our
stockholders.

Proxy Voting Policy and Procedures

Although most of the securities we hold are notngpsecurities, some of our investments may entgléo vote proxies. We vote proxies
relating to our portfolio securities in the bedeiest of our stockholders. We review on a casedse basis each proposal submitted to a
stockholder vote to determine its impact on thefpbo securities held by us. Although we generalbte against proposals that we believe |
have a negative impact on our portfolio securities,may vote for such a proposal if we believedhetists a compelling long-term reason to
do so.

Our proxy voting decisions are made by our Investn@mmittee, which is responsible for monitoriragle of our investments. To
ensure that our vote is not the product of a condif interest, we require that (1) anyone involuethe decision making process disclose to
CCO any potential conflict that he or she is awafrand any contact that he or she has had withrdeyested party regarding a proxy vote; and
(2) employees involved in the decision making psscar vote administration are prohibited from réwgghow we intend to vote on a proposal
to reduce any attempted influence from interestatigs.

Other
We will be periodically examined by the SEC for q@irance with the 1940 Act.

We will not “concentrate” our investments, thatirsjest 25% or more of our assets in any particildustry (determined at the time of
investment).

We are required to provide and maintain a bonceiddwy a reputable fidelity insurance company tdgaous against larceny and
embezzlement. Furthermore, as a BDC, we are ptelifiom indemnifying any director or officer agstirny liability to our stockholders
arising from willful misfeasance, bad faith, graggligence or reckless disregard of the dutieslimebin the conduct of such person’s office.

We are required to adopt and implement writtengiedi and procedures reasonably designed to preisdation of the federal securities
laws and to review these policies and procedurasgally for their adequacy and the effectivenestheir implementation. We have a
designated CCO who is responsible for administettiege policies and procedures.

CERTAIN UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERAT IONS

The following discussion is a general summary ofade material U.S. federal income tax consideretiapplicable to us and to an
investment in our shares. This summary does n@gotito be a complete description of the incomectaxsiderations applicable to such an
investment. For example, we have not describeddazequences that we assume to be generally knpwmvéstors or certain considerations
that may be relevant to certain types of holdebjesu to special treatment under U.S. federal ine¢ax laws, including stockholders subjec
the alternative minimum tax, tax-exempt organizaidnsurance companies, regulated investment colegpalealers in securities, pension
plans and trusts, and financial institutions. Tusmmary assumes that investors hold our commok s®capital assets (within the meaning of
the Code). The discussion is based upon the Cadasiiry regulations, and administrative and jutlioi@rpretations, each as in effect as of
date of this filing and all of which are subjectcttange, possibly retroactively, which could affiset continuing

28



Table of Contents

validity of this discussion. This summary does dgistuss any aspects of U.S. estate or gift tawm@idn, state or local tax. It does not discuss
the special treatment under U.S. federal incomdatas that could result if we invested in tax-exémsgeurities or certain other investment
assets in which we do not currently intend to iwes

A “U.S. stockholder” generally is a beneficial owrnd shares of our common stock who is for U.Sefadlincome tax purposes:

» acitizen or individual resident of the United &&including an alien individual who is a lawfurp@nent resident of the Units
States or meets tt“substantial presen” test in Section 7701(b) of the Cot

» acorporation or other entity taxable as a corpamafor U.S. federal income tax purposes, createatrganized in or under the laws
of the United States or any political subdivisibereof;

e atrust over the administration of which a courthia U.S. has primary supervision or over which.p&sons have control;
* an estate, the income of which is subject to UeBefal income taxation regardless of its sot

A “Non-U.S. stockholder” is a beneficial owner dfeses of our common stock that is neither a U@&k$tolder nor a partnership for U.S.
federal income tax purposes. If a partnership (idicig an entity treated as a partnership for Ue8efal income tax purposes) holds shares of
our common stock, the tax treatment of a partnénérpartnership will generally depend upon théustaf the partner and the activities of the
partnership. A prospective stockholder who is drparof a partnership holding shares of our comstonk should consult his, her or its tax
advisors with respect to the purchase, ownerstdpdéposition of shares of our common stock.

Tax matters are very complicated and the tax caresszps to an investor of an investment in our shaik depend on the facts of his,
or its particular situation. We encourage investorsonsult their tax advisors regarding the specibnsequences of such an investment,
including tax reporting requirements, the appliigbof U.S. federal, state, local and foreign taws, eligibility for the benefits of any
applicable tax treaty and the effect of any possiilanges in the tax laws.

Election to be Taxed as a Regulated Investment Corapy

As a BDC, we have elected to be treated as a Rtlérudubchapter M of the Code commencing with oxaltée year ended December
2006. As a RIC, we generally will not have to payporate-level taxes on any income or gains thatlis&ibute to our stockholders as
dividends. To qualify for treatment as a RIC, westnamong other things, meet certain source-ofrreeand asset diversification requirements
(as described below). In addition, to qualify fardtment as a RIC, we must distribute to our stoltdrs, for each taxable year, at least 90% of
our “net investment company income,” which is gatlgrthe sum of our net investment income plusekeess, if any, of realized net short-
term capital gains over realized net long-term teposses (the “Annual Distribution Requirement”).

Taxation as a Regulated Investment Company

For any taxable year in which we qualify as a Ri@ aatisfy the Annual Distribution Requirement, gemerally will not be subject to
U.S. federal income tax on the portion of our inment company taxable income and net capital gaé (net realized long-term capital gains
in excess of net realized short-term capital Iosaesdistribute to stockholders with respect td tresar. We will be subject to U.S. federal
income tax at the regular corporate rates on ahgnanary income or capital gain not distributed deemed distributed) to our stockholders.
As a RIC, we will be subject to a 4% nondeductlbl8. federal excise tax on certain net taxablestriduted income unless we distribute in a
timely manner an amount at least equal to the dufh)®8% of our net ordinary income for each cdlnyear, (2) 98% of our capital gain net
income for the 1-year period ending October 3hat talendar year and (3) any net income realtzenot distributed, in the preceding
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year. We will not be subject to excise taxes onamon which we are required to pay corporaterretax (such as retained net cag

gains). We currently intend to make sufficient digitions each taxable year and/or pay sufficiemporate income tax to avoid any excise tax
liability, although we reserve the right to payeatise tax rather than make an additional distidouivhen circumstances warrant (e.g., the
payment of an excise tax amount that we deem ttelrainimis).

To qualify for tax treatment as a RIC for U.S. fedéncome tax purposes, in addition to satisfyimg Annual Distribution Requirement,
we must, among other things:

» have in effect at all times during each taxabler yeaelection to be regulated as a BDC under tH® 1t;

* in each taxable year, derive at least 90% of oosgincome from (a) dividends, interest, paymeritls Kgspect to certain securiti
loans, gains from the sale of stock or other séesrior other income derived with respect to ausiess of investing in such stock
or securities and (b) net income derived from aerast in a “qualified publicly traded partnersh{p% defined by the Code) (all
such income¢ Qualifying Incom"); and

« diversify our holdings so that at the end of eaghrter of the taxable year: (i) at least 50% ofuthkele of our assets consists of ci
cash equivalents, U.S. government securities, gegxsuof other RICs, and other securities if sutieo securities of any one issuer
do not represent more than 5% of the value of eset® or more than 10% of the outstanding voticgritéees of such issuer; and
(i) no more than 25% of the value of our assetavssted in the securities, other than U.S. gawemt securities or securities of
other RICs, of (a) one issuer, (b) two or moreeéssuhat are controlled, as determined under egdgkctax rules, by us and that are
engaged in the same or similar or related tradésisinesses or (¢) one or more “qualified publichded partnerships” (the
“Diversification Test").

We conduct the business of Katonah Debt Advisaiauth direct or indirect subsidiaries. Some of swlsidiaries are treated as
corporations for U.S. federal income tax purpogesa result, such subsidiaries will be subjecetodt regular corporate rates. We will
recognize income from these subsidiaries to thergxhat we receive dividends and distributionsaydital from these subsidiaries. Some of the
wholly-owned subsidiaries may be treated as disdeghentities for U.S. federal income tax purposesa result, we may directly recognize
fee income earned by these subsidiaries. Fee intmameve recognize directly through entities thattacated as disregarded entities for U.S.
federal tax purposes will generally not constitQigalifying Income. We intend to monitor our reca@nm of fee income to ensure that at least
90% of our gross income in each taxable year idifpirg Income.

We may be required to recognize taxable incomérgumstances in which we do not receive cash. kamgle, if we hold debt
obligations that are treated under applicable ti¢esras having original issue discount (such asidetruments with PIK interest or, in certain
cases, with increasing interest rates or thatsseeid with warrants), we must include in incoméigaar a portion of the original issue discc
that accrues over the life of the obligation, religss of whether cash representing such inconecaved by us in the same taxable year.
Because any original issue discount accrued wilhblided in our investment company taxable incdonghe year of accrual, we may be
required to make a distribution to our stockholdersatisfy the Annual Distribution Requirementeathough we will not have received an
amount of cash that corresponds with the incomeuadc

We could also be subject to a U.S. federal incamdincluding interest charges) on distributionseieed from investments in passive
foreign investment companies “PFICs” (defined bglowon proceeds received from the dispositionhafres in PFICs, which tax cannot be
eliminated by making distributions to our stockhatsl A PFIC is any foreign corporation in which{§% or more of the gross income for the
taxable year is passive income, or (ii) the averzyeentage of the assets (generally by valuehypatjusted tax basis
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in certain cases) that produce or are held foptbduction of passive income is at least 50%. Galygpassive income for this purpose means
dividends, interest (including income equivaleninti@rest), royalties, rents, annuities, the excégmins over losses from certain property
transactions and commaodities transactions, andgio@irrency gains. Passive income for this purpluses not include rents and royalties
received by the foreign corporation from activeibass and certain income received from relatedomstdf we are in a position to treat and so
treat such a PFIC as a “qualified electing fundQEF") we will be required to include our share loé tompany’s income and net capital gain
annually, regardless of whether we receive anyidigion from the company. Alternately, we may makeelection to mark the gains (and to a
limited extent losses) in such holdings “to the kedras though we had sold and repurchased ouirtgddn those PFICs on the last day of our
taxable year. Such gains and losses are treatedliasry income and loss. The QEF and mark-to-nmalextions may have the effect of
accelerating the recognition of income (without teeeipt of cash) and increasing the amount reduadoe distributed for us to avoid taxation.

We may also invest in “controlled foreign corpooat” (“CFCs”). A non-U.S. corporation will be a CHCU.S. Shareholders” ie.,
each U.S. investor that owns (directly or by atttibn) 10% or more of the interests in the non-W@poration (by vote)) own (directly or by
attribution) more than 50% (by vote or value) & thutstanding interests of the non-U.S. corporatfone are a U.S. Shareholder with respect
to a non-U.S. corporation, we will be required egehr to include in income our pro rata share efdbrporation’s “Subpart F income” (as
defined in the Code). Therefore, investments in €£/@y have the effect of accelerating the recagmitif income (without the receipt of cash)
and increasing the amount required to be distribtde us to avoid taxation.

We are authorized to borrow funds and to sell agsetatisfy the Annual Distribution Requiremend &m avoid any excise tax liability.
However, under the 1940 Act, we are not permitteth&ike distributions to our stockholders while debt obligations and other senior
securities are outstanding unless certain “assedrage” tests are met. See “Regulation—Senior 8&sjrCoverage Ratio.” Moreover, our
ability to dispose of assets to meet the Annuatribistion Requirement and to avoid any excise talility may be limited by (1) the illiquid
nature of our portfolio, or (2) other requiremergkating to our tax treatment as a RIC, including Diversification Tests. If we dispose of
assets to meet the Annual Distribution Requiremantkto avoid any excise tax liability, we may makeh dispositions at times that, from an
investment standpoint, are not advantageous.

Gain or loss realized by us from the sale or exgbasf warrants acquired by us as well as any Itieb@able to the lapse of such
warrants generally will be treated as capital gaifoss. Such gain or loss generally will be loagst or short-term, depending on how long we
held a particular warrant. Our transactions in@mij futures contracts, hedging transactions amagfa contracts will be subject to special tax
rules, the effect of which may be to acceleraterne to us, defer losses, cause adjustments totimd periods of our investments, convert
long-term capital gains into short-term capitalngaiconvert short-term capital losses into longateapital losses or have other tax
consequences. These rules could affect the amiimirig and character of distributions to stockhotd&Ve do not currently intend to engag
these types of transactions.

A RIC is not permitted to deduct expenses in exoéds “investment company taxable income” (whishgenerally, ordinary income
plus net short-term capital gains in excess ofar@-term capital losses). If our expenses in &igiyear exceed investment company taxable
income (e.g., as the result of large amounts of equity-basedpemsation), we would experience a net operatisg flor that year. However, a
RIC is not permitted to carry forward net operatiogses to subsequent years. In addition, expexasebe used only to offset investment
company taxable income, not net capital gain (hahe excess of net long-term capital gains tivemet short-term capital losses). Due to
these limits on the deductibility of expenses, wayrfor tax purposes have aggregate taxable incammezoperiod of several years that we are
required to distribute and that is taxable to daclsholders even if such income is greater tham#téncome we actually earned during those
years in the aggregate. Such required distributioag be made from our cash assets or by liquidationvestments, if necessary. We n
realize gains or losses from such liquidationghlevent we realize net
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capital gains from such transactions, you may wecailarger capital gain distribution than you wblive received in the absence of such
transactions. Assuming we qualify for tax treatmeshfa RIC, our corporate-level U.S. federal incéaxeshould be substantially reduced or
eliminated, and, as explained below in “—TaxatiétJd5. Stockholders,” a portion of our distributioar deemed distributions may be
characterized as long-term capital gain in the baridgtockholders. Except as otherwise provideslréimainder of this discussion assumes that
we qualify for tax treatment as a RIC and haves§atl the Annual Distribution Requirement.

Failure to Qualify as a Regulated Investment Compay

If we were to fail to qualify for tax treatment aRRIC (including if our Board of Directors electedtemporarily or permanently revoke
our RIC election), we would be subject to tax droabur taxable income at regular corporate rafés.would not be able to deduct
distributions to stockholders, nor would distrilous be required to be made. Such distributions dvbaltaxable to our stockholders as divic
income to the extent of our current and accumulagedings and profits and (if made during a taxgbber beginning before January 1, 2011)
provided certain holding period and other requiretaevere met, could potentially qualify for treatrhas “qualified dividend income” in the
hands of stockholders taxed as individuals eligibiehe 15% maximum rate. Subject to certain latins under the Code, corporate
distributees may be eligible for the dividends reee deduction with respect to our dividend disitibns. Distributions in excess of our curr
and accumulated earnings and profits would beedefatst as a return of capital to the extent ef skockholder’s tax basis, and any remaining
distributions would be treated as a capital gamrdqualify as a RIC in a subsequent taxable yearyvould be required to satisfy the RIC
qualification requirements for that year and digposany earnings and profits from any year in Wwhie failed to qualify for tax treatment as a
RIC. Subject to a limited exception applicable i€&that qualified as such under Subchapter M @fGbde for at least one year prior to
disqualification and that requalify as a RIC n@fahan the second year following the nonqualifyyegr, we could be subject to tax on any
unrealized net builin gains in the assets held by us during the peanathich we failed to qualify for tax treatment@a®IC that are recogniz:
within the subsequent 10 years, unless we made@aselection to pay corporate-level tax on sugtitfin gain at the time of our
requalification as a RIC.

Taxation of U.S. Stockholders

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, distributionsis generally are taxable to U.S. stockholdersrdinary income or capital gains.
Distributions of our “investment company taxabledme” (which is, generally, our ordinary incomeghet realized shoterm capital gains i
excess of net realized long-term capital losselbbwitaxable as ordinary income to U.S. stockhade the extent of our current or
accumulated earnings and profits, whether paid#hor reinvested in additional common stock thhooigr dividend reinvestment plan. For
taxable years beginning before January 1, 201the@xtent such distributions paid by us are attable to dividends from U.S. corporations
and certain qualified foreign corporations, sudtriiutions may be designated by us as “qualifiedtidnd income” eligible to be taxed in the
hands of non-corporate stockholders at the ratplcaple to long-term capital gains, provided hotglperiod and other requirements are met at
both the stockholder and company levels. In thisre, it is anticipated that distributions paidusygenerally will not be attributable to
dividends and, therefore, generally will not beldigal dividend income. Distributions of our netpital gains (which is generally our realized
net long-term capital gains in excess of realizedshort-term capital losses) properly designatedsias “capital gain dividends” will be
taxable to a U.S. stockholder as long-term cagiéths (currently at a maximum rate of 15% in theecaf individuals, trusts or estates),
regardless of the U.S. stockholder’s holding pefarchis, her or its common stock and regardlesstadther paid in cash or reinvested in
additional common stock. Distributions in excesswif current and accumulated earnings and prafgswill reduce a U.S. stockholder’s
adjusted tax basis in such stockholder's commorckstod, after the adjusted basis is reduced tq réllcconstitute capital gains to such U.S.
stockholder.

We may retain some or all of our realized net lezign capital gains in excess of realized net stewrty capital losses and designate the
retained net capital gains as a “deemed distribdtim that case, among other consequences, weayittax on the retained amount, each U.S.
stockholder will be required to include his, her
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or its share of the deemed distribution in incoméf & had been actually distributed to the Ut8ckholder, and the U.S. stockholder will be
entitled to claim a credit equal to his, her orall®cable share of the tax paid thereon by us.dreunt of the deemed distribution net of such
tax will be added to the U.S. stockholder’s costi®éor his, her or its common stock. Since we ekpe pay tax on any retained net capital
gains at our regular corporate tax rate, and dimatrate is in excess of the maximum rate curygrdlable by individuals on long-term capital
gains, the amount of tax that individual stockhoddaill be treated as having paid and for whichythél receive a credit will exceed the tax
they owe on the retained net capital gain. Suclegxgenerally may be claimed as a credit agaiadt/18. stockholder’s other federal income
tax obligations or may be refunded to the exteakiteeds a stockholder’s liability for U.S. federmlome tax. A stockholder that is not subject
to U.S. federal income tax or otherwise requirefiléoa U.S. federal income tax return would beuieed to file a U.S. federal income tax ret
on the appropriate form to claim a refund for tivees we paid. For U.S. federal income tax purpdkesax basis of shares owned by a
stockholder generally will be increased by an anmegual to the difference between the amount ofatribduted capital gains included in the
stockholder’s gross income and the tax deemedipaitie stockholder as described in this paragréphutilize the deemed distribution
approach, we must provide written notice to oucldtolders prior to the expiration of 60 days after close of the relevant taxable year. We
cannot treat any of our investment company taxglgeme as a “deemed distribution.” We may also nekaal distributions to our
stockholders of some or all of realized net longrteapital gains in excess of realized net shomteapital losses.

For purposes of determining (1) whether the AnmRiatribution Requirement is satisfied for any yaad (2) the amount of capital gain
dividends paid for that year, we may, under certiicumstances, elect to treat a dividend thatid guring the following taxable year as if it
had been paid during the taxable year in questiome make such an election, the U.S. stockholdérstill be treated as receiving the divide
in the taxable year in which the distribution isdeaHowever, any dividend declared by us in OctoNevember or December of any calendar
year, payable to stockholders of record on a sieglcffate in such a month and actually paid durargudry of the following year, will be treat
as if it had been received by our U.S. stockholder®ecember 31 of the year in which the dividerad weclared. A U.S. stockholder gener
will recognize taxable gain or loss if the U.S.cétioolder sells or otherwise disposes of his, hetsoshares of our common stock. Any gain
arising from such sale or disposition generallyl by treated as long-term capital gain or loskéflt).S. stockholder has held his, her or its
shares for more than one year. Otherwise, it véiltlassified as shotérm capital gain or loss. However, any capitatlassing from the sale
disposition of shares of our common stock heldsfermonths or less will be treated as long-termteafwss to the extent of the amount of
capital gain dividends received, or undistributagdital gain deemed received, with respect to shahes. In addition, all or a portion of any
loss recognized upon a disposition of shares otoarmon stock may be disallowed if other sharesuofcommon stock are purchased
(whether through reinvestment of distributions tireswise) within 30 days before or after the disfias. In such a case, the basis of the newly
purchased shares will be adjusted to reflect thalldiwed loss. For taxable years beginning befanidry 1, 2011, individual U.S. stockhold
are subject to a maximum U.S. federal income tex@815% on their net capital gaing., the excess of realized net long-term capital gain
over realized net short-term capital loss for abd& year) including any long-term capital gainided from an investment in our shares. Such
rate is lower than the maximum rate on ordinarpime currently payable by individuals. Corporate .$t8ckholders currently are subject to
U.S. federal income tax on net capital gain atnttaimum 35% rate also applied to ordinary incomen{dorporate stockholders with net
capital losses for a year.€., capital losses in excess of capital gains) géigareay deduct up to $3,000 of such losses agdiest ordinary
income each year ($1,500 for married individudladi separately); any net capital losses of a nmmparate stockholder in excess of $3,000
($1,500 for married individuals filing separateignerally may be carried forward and used in sulmsstioyears as provided in the Code.
Corporate stockholders generally may not deductratyapital losses for a year, but may carry tsagh losses for three years or carry
forward such losses for five years.

Distributions are taxable to stockholders evehéfytare paid from income or gains earned by usrbefstockholder’s investment (and
thus were included in the price the stockholded)df an investor purchases shares of our comnmekshortly before the record date of a
distribution, the price of the shares will include
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the value of the distribution and the investor Wil subject to tax on the distribution even thoegbnomically, it may represent a return of his,
her or its investment. Distributions are taxableetiler stockholders receive them in cash or reirthesh in additional shares through the
Dividend Reinvestment Plan. A stockholder whoséritistions are reinvested in shares will be treatedhaving received a dividend equal to
either (i) the fair market value of the shareseésisto the stockholder (if we issue new sharedljj)ahe amount of cash allocated to the
stockholder for the purchase of shares on its béifiale purchase shares on the open market). Wesend to each of our U.S. stockholders
promptly as possible after the end of each calepear, a notice detailing, on a per share and ig@ittition basis, the amounts includible in
such U.S. stockholder’s taxable income for suchr gsardinary income and as long-term capital daiaddition, the U.S. federal tax status of
each year’s distributions generally will be repdrte the IRS (including the amount of dividendsarify, eligible for the 15% “qualified

dividend income” rate). Distributions may also lject to additional state, local and foreign tastepending on a U.S. stockholdeparticula
situation. Dividends distributed by us generallyl wot be eligible for the corporate dividends-rieeel deduction or the preferential rate
applicable to “qualified dividend income.”

We may be required to withhold U.S. federal incdame(“backup withholding”), currently at a rate 28%, from all distributions to any
non-corporate U.S. stockholder (1) who fails tonfsh us with a correct taxpayer identification n@mnbr a certificate that such stockholder is
exempt from backup withholding, or (2) with resptctvhom the IRS notifies us that such stockholdes failed to properly report certain
interest and dividend income to the IRS and toaedo notices to that effect. An individual’s tayer identification number is his or her
social security number. Any amount withheld undaeckup withholding is allowed as a credit againstthS. stockholder’s federal income tax
liability, provided that proper information is prided to the IRS.

Under Treasury regulations, if a stockholder recogma loss with respect to our shares of $2 mikiomore for an individual
stockholder or $10 million for a corporate stocktes| the stockholder must file with the IRS a discre statement on Form 8886. Direct
stockholders of portfolio securities are in mangasaexcepted from this reporting requirement, bdeu current guidance, stockholders of a
RIC are not excepted. Future guidance may extemdulrent exception from this reporting requiremergtockholders of most or all RICs.
The fact that a loss is reportable under thesdlatigns does not affect the legal determinatiowbéther a taxpayer’s treatment of the loss is
proper. Stockholders should consult their tax amgiso determine the applicability of these redgafet in light of their individual
circumstances.

Taxation of Non-U.S. Stockholders

Whether an investment in the shares is appropiéate non-U.S. stockholder will depend upon thaspa’s particular circumstances.
Non-U.S. stockholders should consult their tax adwdmfore investing in our common stock. In genetigidend distributions (other than
certain distributions derived from net lotgrmn capital gains, certain interest income andtdleom capital gains, as described below) paidi$
to a non-U.S. stockholder are subject to withhadih U.S. federal income tax at a rate of 30% davdr applicable treaty rate) even if they are
funded by income or gains that, if paid to a . stockholder directly, would not be subjectvithholding. If the distributions are effective
connected with a U.S. trade or business of thelh@-stockholder, (and, if an income tax treatyli@gpattributable to a permanent
establishment in the United States), we will notduired to withhold federal tax if the non-U.&ckholder complies with applicable
certification and disclosure requirements, althotighdistributions will be subject to U.S. federalome tax at the rates applicable to U.S.
stockholders. (Special certification requirememiglgto a non-U.S. stockholder that is a foreigrtqership or a foreign trust and such entities
are urged to consult their tax advisors.) For téxgbars beginning prior to January 1, 2008, exasgirovided below, we generally will not be
required to withhold any amounts with respect taaie distributions of (1) U.S.-source interestdnte that meets certain requirements, and
(2) net short-term capital gains in excess of oegjiterm capital losses, in each case to the extemqtroperly designate such distributions. We
intend to make such designations. In respect dfilbligions described
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in clause (1) above, however, we will be requiteevithhold amounts with respect to distributionstoon-U.S. stockholder:
» that has not provided a satisfactory statementttteabeneficial owner is not a U.S. pers

» to the extent that the dividend is attributableedtain interest on an obligation if the 1-U.S. stockholder is the issuer oris a 1
stockholder of the issue

« that is within certain foreign countries that havadequate information exchange with the UnitedeStaor

» to the extent the dividend is attributable to iettpaid by a person that is a related persoreofith-U.S. stockholder and the r-
U.S. stockholder is “controlled foreign corporatic’ for U.S. federal income tax purpos

Actual or deemed distributions of our net capitahgo a non-U.S. stockholder, and gains realized bonU.S. stockholder upon the s
of our common stock, will not be subject to U.Sldeal withholding tax and generally will not be gdt to U.S. federal income tax unless the
distributions or gain, as the case may be, aretdffdy connected with a U.S. trade or businesthefnon-U.S. stockholder (and, if an income
tax treaty applies, are attributable to a permaastablishment maintained by the non-U.S. stocldrdldthe U.S.), or in the case of an
individual stockholder, the stockholder is predarthe U.S. for a period or periods aggregating d&gs or more during the year of the sale or
capital gain dividend and certain other conditiars met. If we distribute our net capital gaintie form of deemed rather than actual
distributions, a non-U.S. stockholder will be datitto a U.S. federal income tax credit or tax nefequal to the stockholder’s allocable share
of the tax we pay on the capital gains deemed ve baen distributed. To obtain the refund, the o8- stockholder must obtain a U.S.
taxpayer identification number and file a U.S. fedléncome tax return even if the non-U.S. stockleolwould not otherwise be required to
obtain a U.S. taxpayer identification number cg &l U.S. federal income tax return. For a corparateU.S. stockholder, distributions (both
actual and deemed), and gains realized upon teeo§alur common stock that are effectively conngdtea U.S. trade or business may, under
certain circumstances, be subject to an additithrahch profits tax” at a 30% rate (or at a lowaterif provided for by an applicable treaty).

A non-U.S. stockholder who is a non-resident aiiigtividual, and who is otherwise subject to withdinly of U.S. federal tax, may be
subject to information reporting and backup witlthiog of U.S. federal income tax on dividends unkessnon-U.S. stockholder provides us or
the dividend paying agent with an IRS Form W-8BEKgn acceptable substitute or successor form)hareise meets documentary evidence
requirements for establishing that it is a non-WiSckholder or otherwise establishes an exemit@n backup withholding. Investment in the
shares may not be appropriate for a non-U.S. stiddkh Non-U.S. persons should consult their taksas with respect to the U.S. federal
income tax and withholding tax, and state, local foreign tax consequences of an investment irshiages.

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

We have adopted a dividend reinvestment plan ttmatighes for reinvestment of our distributions orh&l of our stockholders, unless a
stockholder elects to receive cash as providedabeds a result, if our Board of Directors authoszand we declare, a cash dividend, then our
stockholders who have not “opted out” of our divideeinvestment plan will have their cash divideadtomatically reinvested in additional
shares of our common stock, rather than receiviagcash.

No action is required on the part of a registetedkholder to have their cash dividend reinvesteshiares of our common stock. A
registered stockholder may elect to receive ameedtvidend in cash by notifying American Stock iséer & Trust Company, the plan
administrator and our transfer agent and registmawyriting so that such notice is received by phen administrator no later than the record «
for dividends to stockholders. The plan administratill set up an account for shares acquired thhathhe plan for each stockholder who has
not elected to receive dividends in cash and hadth shares in non-certificated form. Upon
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request by a stockholder participating in the ptaneived in writing not less than ten days priothe record date, the plan administrator will,
instead of crediting shares to the participantoaat, issue a certificate registered in the pigiiat’'s name for the number of whole shares of
our common stock and a check for any fractionatesha

Those stockholders whose shares are held by arwolkeher financial intermediary may receive dasds in cash by notifying their
broker or other financial intermediary of theiralen.

We intend to use primarily newly issued sharesrplément the plan, whether our shares are tradiagpeemium or at a discount to net
asset value. However, we reserve the right to @aelshares in the open market in connection witlingplementation of the plan. The number
of shares to be issued to a stockholder is detewiny dividing the total dollar amount of the diefdtl payable to such stockholder by the
market price per share of our common stock at liteecof regular trading on The NASDAQ Global Seldetrket on the dividend payment
date. Market price per share on that date willhgedosing price for such shares on The NASDAQ @l&elect Market or, if no sale is
reported for such day, at the average of theirnteddid and asked prices. The number of sharesrofommon stock to be outstanding after
giving effect to payment of the dividend cannoteséablished until the value per share at whichtemtdil shares will be issued has been
determined and elections of our stockholders haen babulated.

There are no brokerage charges or other charg#edkholders who participate in the plan. The gldministrator’s fees under the plan
are paid by us. If a participant elects by writterice to the plan administrator to have the plmiaistrator sell part or all of the shares helt
the plan administrator in the participant’'s accoamd remit the proceeds to the participant, tha ptiministrator is authorized to deduct a
$15.00 transaction fee plus a $0.10 per share tagkecommission from the proceeds.

If your dividends are reinvested, you will be ragdito pay tax on the distributions in the samemeaas if the distributions were
received in cash. The taxation of dividends wilt he affected by the form in which you receive th&ee “Certain U.S. Federal Income Tax
Considerations.”

Participants may terminate their accounts undepltie by notifying the plan administrator via itelsite at www.amstock.com, by filli
out the transaction request form located at bottbtheir statement and sending it to the plan adtrator at the address set forth below or by
calling the plan administrator at 1-866-668-8564.

The plan may be terminated by us upon notice itingrimailed to each participant at least 30 dayer fio any record date for the
payment of any dividend by us. All correspondenmacerning the plan should be directed to, and ewhdit information about the plan may be
obtained from, the plan administrator by mail at&ioan Stock Transfer & Trust Company, Attn. DivideReinvestment Department, P.O.
Box 922, Wall Street Station, New York, NY 1026960%r by telephone at 1-866-668-8564.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in our common stock involves a high degrferisk. The risks set forth below are not thiy eisks we face. If any of the
following risks occur, our business, financial cdimh and results of our operations could be matllyi adversely affected. In such case,
net asset value and the trading price of our comstonk could decline.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS
We have a limited operating history.

We were organized in August 2006 to continue thedfiei market investment business and asset managbosness of Katonah Debt
Advisors, which was organized in 2005 by Kohlberg&. Katonah Debt Advisors commenced its asset geanant operations with the hiring
of E.A. Kratzman, its President (who also servesuasVice President and a member of our Investr@ammittee), in June 2005 and began its
middle market lending operations in February 20 the hiring of Dayl W. Pearson, who serves asRngsident and CEO, and R. Jon
Corless, who serves as our CIO. In December 2086;ompleted an initial public offering of our commstock and our common stock was
listed on The NASDAQ Global Select Market. We havemited operating history. As a result, we hawated operating results which
demonstrate our ability to manage our businessaWeubject to all of the business risks and uat#igs associated with any new business
enterprise, including the risk that we will not @are our investment objective and that the valugoofr investment in us could decline
substantially.

We are dependent upon senior management for ouufetsuccess, and if we are unable to hire and ratgualified personnel or if we lose
any member of our senior management team, our dpito achieve our investment objective could bendfigantly harmed.

We depend on the members of our senior manageraevtlhas other key personnel for the identificatifinal selection, structuring,
closing and monitoring of our investments. Thesglegees have critical industry experience and ialahips that we rely on to implement
business plan. Our future success depends on tii@eed service of our senior management team an8oard of Directors. The departure of
any of the members of our senior management ayrafisiant number of our senior personnel could haweaterial adverse effect on our abi
to achieve our investment objective. As a resuttmay not be able to operate our business as veegxgnd our ability to compete could be
harmed, which could cause our operating resulssiter.

We operate in a highly competitive market for iniegent opportunities.

A large number of entities compete with us to meleetypes of investments that we plan to make asjpective portfolio companies. We
compete with other BDCs, as well as a large nurobewestment funds, investment banks and othercesuof financing, including traditional
financial services companies, such as commercigtdand finance companies. Many of our competaoessubstantially larger and have
considerably greater financial, technical, marlgetind other resources than we do. For example, someetitors may have a lower cost of
funds and access to funding sources that are adgable to us. This may enable some of our comgrstiib make commercial loans with
interest rates that are comparable to or lower thamates we typically offer. We may lose prospegportfolio investments if we do not match
our competitors’ pricing, terms and structure. & do match our competitors’ pricing, terms or stutes, we may experience decreased net
interest income and increased risk of credit losiseaddition, some of our competitors may havébigisk tolerances or different risk
assessments, which could allow them to considdadarwariety of investments, establish more refaiups and build their market shares.
Furthermore, many of our potential competitors hgneater experience operating under, or are ngésuto, the regulatory restrictions that the
1940 Act imposes on us as a BDC. As a result gfacbmpetition, there can be no assurance that Weevable
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to identify and take advantage of attractive inrestt opportunities or that we will be able to fullyest our available capital. If we are not ¢
to compete effectively, our business and finanmiaidition and results of operations will be adviraéfected. Although Kohlberg & Co. has
agreed to notify us of equity investment opportiesithat are presented to Kohlberg & Co. but ddfihthie investment profile of Kohlberg &
Co. or its affiliates, no such referral to date remulted in an investment by us or Katonah Debtigats.

If we are unable to source investments effectivelig may be unable to achieve our investment objex

Our ability to achieve our investment objective eleghs on our senior management team'’s ability totifye evaluate, finance and invest
in suitable companies that meet our investmengrizit Accomplishing this result on a cost-effectasis is largely a function of our marketing
capabilities, our management of the investmentgsecour ability to provide efficient services @t access to financing sources on
acceptable terms. In addition to monitoring thefgranance of our existing investments, members ofrsanagement team and our investment
professionals may also be called upon to provideagerial assistance to our portfolio companiessé&leemands on their time may distract
them or slow the rate of investment. To grow, wech® continue to hire, train, supervise and mamageemployees and to implement
computer and other systems capable of effectivetpmmodating our growth. However, we cannot asgouethat any such employees will
contribute to the success of our business or tieawill implement such systems effectively. Failtwemanage our future growth effectively
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrfggncial condition and results of operations.

There is a risk that we may not make distributions.

We intend to continue to make distributions on artprly basis to our stockholders. We may not be tthachieve operating results that
will allow us to make distributions at historical any specific levels or to increase the amourhe$e distributions from time to time. In
addition, due to the asset coverage test appli¢ahis as a BDC, we may be limited in our abildyrtake distributions. See “Distributions.”
Also, restrictions and provisions in our Facilitaynlimit our ability to make distributions. See “@ations and Indebtedness.” If we do not
distribute a certain percentage of our income allynuae could fail to qualify for tax treatment asRIC and we would be subject to corporate
level U.S. federal income tax. See “Certain U.Sidfal Income Tax Considerations.” We cannot enthatwe will make distributions at
historical or any other specified levels or at all.

We may have difficulty paying our required distribions if we recognize income before or without régag cash equal to such income.

In accordance with accounting principles generatlgepted in the United States (“GAAP”) and the Cegeinclude in income certain
amounts that we have not yet received in cash, asidontracted payment-in-kind (“PIK”) interest,ialhrepresents contractual interest added
to the loan balance and due at the end of thetkram In addition to the cash yields received onloans, in some instances, certain loans may
also include any of the following: end of term paants, exit fees, balloon payment fees or prepayfieest The increases in loan balances as a
result of contracted PIK arrangements are includaédcome for the period in which such PIK interests received, which is often in advance
of receiving cash payment, and are separatelyifteghbn our statements of cash flows. We also tmayequired to include in income certain
other amounts that we will not receive in cash. Amyrrants that we receive in connection with ostdevestments generally are valued as
of the negotiation process with the particular fadid company. As a result, a portion of the agategpurchase price for the debt investments
and warrants is allocated to the warrants thategeive. This generally results in “original issugcdunt” for tax purposes, which we must
recognize as ordinary income, increasing the ansowetare required to distribute to qualify as a BIi@ible for pass-through tax treatment.
Because such original issue discount income migteed the amount of cash received in a given yé@arrespect to such investment, we
might need to obtain cash from other sources isfgatuch distribution requirements. Other featwkthe debt instruments that we hold may
also cause such instruments to generate origisaé idiscount,
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resulting in a dividend distribution requirementixcess of current cash received. Since in cec&ses we may recognize income before or
without receiving cash representing such incomemag have difficulty meeting the requirement tarilaite at least 90% of our net ordinary
income and realized net short-term capital gairextess of realized net long-term capital losgemy. If we are unable to meet these
distribution requirements, we will not qualify ftax treatment as a RIC or, even if such distributiequirement is satisfied, we may be subject
to tax on the amount that is undistributed. Acaogtyi, we may have to sell some of our assets, eadsitional debt or equity securities or
reduce new investment originations to meet thestilolition requirements and avoid tax. See “Certh®. Federal Income Tax
Considerations.”

We may incur losses as a result of “first loss” agments into which we or Katonah Debt Advisors nesiyer in connection with
warehousing credit arrangements which we put in péaprior to raising a CLO Fund and pursuant to whiove agree to reimburse credit
providers for a portion of losses (if any) on warelise investment:

We and Katonah Debt Advisors have entered intet'fsss”agreements in connection with warehouse credis lestablished by Katon
Debt Advisors to fund the initial accumulation o&h investments for future CLO Funds that KatonabhtDAdvisors will manage, and may
enter into similar agreements in the future. Supte@ments (referred to as “first loss agreementsfirst loss obligations” herein) relate to
() losses as a result of individual loan investisdyeing ineligible for purchase by the CLO Furnygbigally due to a payment default on such
loan) when such fund formation is completed or gldr to completion of such fund, (i) if the CLIRund has not been completed before the
expiration of the warehouse credit line, the laékarfy, and net of any accumulated interest incoomedhe resale of such loans funded by the
warehouse credit line. As a result, we may incesés if loans and debt obligations that had beerhpsed in the warehouse facility become
ineligible for inclusion in the CLO Fund or if agrined CLO Fund does not close. See “ManagemengtmuBsion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Commitments@ffeBalance Sheet Arrangements.”

Any unrealized losses we experience on our loantfio may be an indication of future realized loss, which could reduce our incorn
available for distribution.

As a BDC, we are required to carry our investmantmarket value or, if no market value is ascedilie, at the fair value as determined
in good faith by our Board of Directors pursuanptocedures approved by our Board of Directors.rBeses in the market values or fair val
of our investments will be recorded as unrealizex$és. Any unrealized losses in our loan portfodiold be an indication of a portfolio
company’s inability to meet its repayment obligasdo us with respect to the affected loans. Taidgccresult in realized losses in the future
and ultimately in reductions of our income avait@afur distribution in future periods.

We may experience fluctuations in our quarterly amehnual operating results and credit spreads.

We could experience fluctuations in our quarterig annual operating results due to a number obfacsome of which are beyond our
control, including our ability to make investmeitscompanies that meet our investment criteriajtberest rate payable on the debt securities
we acquire, the default rate on such securities|ghel of our expenses, variations in and thentinaf the recognition of realized and unreali
gains or losses, the degree to which we encountapetition in our markets and general economic itmmd. As a result of these factors,
results for any period should not be relied upobeisg indicative of performance in future periods.

We are exposed to risks associated with changesterest rates and spreads.

Changes in interest rates may have a substangiatime impact on our investments, the value ofammmon stock and our rate of return
on invested capital. A reduction in the interesesps on new investments could also have an adwepsest on our net interest income. An
increase in interest rates could decrease the wélamey investments we hold which earn fixed inderates, including mezzanine securities and
high-yield
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bonds, and also could increase our interest expéreeby decreasing our net income. An increaggténest rates due to an increase in credit
spreads, regardless of general interest rate #itiotus, could also negatively impact the valuergf mvestments we hold in our portfolio. Also,
an increase in interest rates available to investould make investment in our common stock lasaddive if we are not able to increase our
dividend rate, which could reduce the value of @mmon stock.

The debt we incur could increase the risk of inviegtin our Company.

As of December 31, 2007, we had $255 million ofstariding indebtedness, with available additionéépigal borrowing capacity of $20
million. On October 1, 2007, we amended our cridiility (the “Facility”) to increase the maximunmaunt we may borrow thereunder from
$200 million to $275 million, extend the maturitsitd from February 14, 2012 to October 1, 2012 morkase the interest spread charged on
outstanding borrowings by 15 basis points, to 0.88% expect to continue to borrow from, and is®m@ debt securities to, banks, insurance
companies and other lenders, including pursuaatitd-acility. See “Obligations and Indebtednesenders have fixed dollar claims on our
assets that are superior to the claims of our btmders, and we may grant a security interest imaggets in connection with our borrowings
the case of a liquidation event, those lenders eveedeive proceeds before our stockholders. Intiagiborrowings, also known as leverage,
magnify the potential for gain or loss on amounigested and, therefore, increase the risks asedaidth investing in our securities. Leverage
is generally considered a speculative investmetirtigue. If the value of our assets increases, ldhearage would cause the net asset value
attributable to our common stock to increase mioaa it otherwise would have had we not leveragedversely, if the value of our assets
decreases, leverage would cause the net assetataribatable to our common stock to decline mbwmtit otherwise would have had we not
used leverage. Similarly, any increase in our reeen excess of interest expense on our borrowedssfwould cause our net income to
increase more than it would without leverage. Aegrease in our revenue would cause our net incordedline more than it would have had
we not borrowed funds and could negatively affestability to make distributions on our common &to®ur ability to service any debt that
incur will depend largely on our financial perforntg and will be subject to prevailing economic dbads and competitive pressures.

As a BDC, we are generally required to meet a ageeratio of total assets to total borrowings atheiosenior securities, which include
all of our borrowings and any preferred stock weynisaue in the future, of at least 200%. If thisor@eclines below 200%, we may not be able
to incur additional debt and may need to sell diporof our investments to repay some debt whéhdisadvantageous to do so, and we may
not be able to make distributions.

Because we have outstanding indebtedness, we gpesed to additional risks, including the typicakks associated with leverac

We borrow funds or may issue senior securitiessyamt to our existing Facility or other agreemetatsnake additional investments.
With certain limited exceptions, we are only all@ite borrow amounts or issue senior securities shmhour asset coverage, as defined in the
1940 Act, is at least 200% after such borrowingssuance. The amount of leverage that we empldydefiend on our management’s and our
Board of Directors’ assessment of market and ddwors at the time of any proposed borrowing. €ismo assurance that a leveraging
strategy will be successful. Leverage involvessiakd special considerations of stockholders, ity

» alikelihood of greater volatility of net assetwaland market price of our common stock than a epaipe portfolio without
leverage

» exposure to increased risk of loss if we incur delissue senior securities to finance investmbatause a decrease in the valu
our investments would have a greater negative itnpaour returns and therefore the value of ourroom stock than if we did not
use leverage
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« that the covenants contained in the documents gowgethe Facility or other debt instruments cowddtrict our operating flexibility
Such covenants may impose asset coverage or inespuartfolio composition requirements that are engiringent than those
imposed by the 1940 Act and could require us taidigte investments at an inopportune time;

« that we, and indirectly our stockholders, will b&ae cost of leverage, including issuance and sieryicosts i.e., interest).

Any requirement that we sell assets at a lossdeem or pay interest or dividends on any leveragér other reasons, would reduce our
net asset value and also make it difficult for tle¢ asset value to recover. Our Board of Direciartheir judgment, nevertheless may detert
to use leverage if they expect that the benefitautostockholders of maintaining the leveraged tamswill outweigh the risks.

The agreements governing our credit facility conmtaiarious covenants that limit our discretion in epating our business and also include
certain financial covenants.

We have entered into a credit facility that is letby a revolving pool of loans. Under the Facilitie are subject to limitations as to h
borrowed funds may be used, including restrictiomgeographic and industry concentrations, loas, giayment frequency and status, average
life, collateral interests and investment ratiregswell as regulatory restrictions on leverage Wwiniay affect the amount of funding that may
obtained. There are also certain requirementsimgléd portfolio performance, including requirednimhum portfolio yield and limitations on
delinquencies and charge-offs, a violation of whichld result in the early amortization of the Fggilimit further advances and, in some
cases, result in an event of default. An eventedéult under the Facility would result, among ottiengs, in the termination of the availability
of further funds under the Facility and an accegztanaturity date for all amounts outstanding uriderFacility, which would likely disrupt o
business and, potentially, the portfolio compamibsse loans we financed through the Facility. Tisld reduce our revenues and, by
delaying any cash payment allowed to us under #udify until the lender has been paid in full, ueé our liquidity and cash flow and impair
our ability to grow our business and maintain owalication as a RIC. If we default under certpnovisions of the Facility, the remedies
available to the lender may limit our ability tootkre dividends. Moreover, we cannot assure youvtieawill be able to borrow funds under the
Facility at any particular time or at all. For amaletailed discussion of the Facility, see “Oltiigas and Indebtedness.”

Because we intend to distribute substantially allaur income and net realized capital gains to ostockholders, we will need addition
capital to finance our growth.

In order to qualify as a RIC, to avoid payment xfise taxes and to minimize or avoid payment obime taxes, we intend to distribute
our stockholders substantially all of our net oedinincome and realized net capital gains excaptddain net long-term capital gains (which
we may retain, pay applicable income taxes witpeesthereto, and elect to treat as deemed disiiitgito our stockholders). As a BDC, we
are generally required to meet a coverage ratiotaf assets to total senior securities, whichudek all of our borrowings and any preferred
stock we may issue in the future, of at least 200Bts requirement limits the amount that we mayder Because we will continue to need
capital to grow our loan and investment portfotfas limitation may prevent us from incurring deiotd require us to issue additional equity
time when it may be disadvantageous to do so. VWelexpect to be able to borrow and to issue amditidebt and equity securities, we
cannot assure you that debt and equity financidigo@iavailable to us on favorable terms, or gtaid debt financings may be restricted by the
terms of any of our outstanding borrowings. In #iddi as a BDC, we are generally not permittedssmé equity securities priced below net
asset value without stockholder approval. If addiil funds are not available to us, we could beddrto curtail or cease new lending and
investment activities, and our net asset valueccdatline. On March 13, 2007, June 8, 2007, Septe@d, 2007 and December 14, 2007 we
declared dividends in the amount of $0.29 per sI&085 per share, $0.37 per share, and $0.3%pee sespectively. These dividends
represented our estimated distributable incoméh@iquarters
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ended March 31, 2007, June 30, 2007, Septemb&087, and December 31, 2007 plus our undistribu@®b 2listributable income.

Our Board of Directors may change our investmentjettive, operating policies and strategies withguitor notice or stockholder approval.

Our Board of Directors has the authority to modifywaive certain of our operating policies andtsiyaes without prior notice (except as
required by the 1940 Act) and without stockholdepraval. However, absent stockholder approval, vag mot change the nature of our
business so as to cease to be, or withdraw outicies, a BDC. We cannot predict the effect argngies to our current operating policies and
strategies would have on our business, operatsgtseand value of our stock. Nevertheless, thecesfmay adversely affect our business and
impact our ability to make distributions.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR INVESTMENTS
Our investments may be risky, and you could loseoalpart of your investment.
We invest primarily in senior secured term loanezmanine debt and selected equity investmentsddsyeniddle market companies.

Secured LoandVhen we extend secured term loans, we generaleydadecurity interest (either as a first lien posibr as a second lien
position) in the available assets of these pordfobmpanies, including the equity interests ofrteabsidiaries, which we expect to assist in
mitigating the risk that we will not be repaid. Hever, there is a risk that the collateral secudngloans may decrease in value over time,
be difficult to sell in a timely manner, may befiitilt to appraise and may fluctuate in value baggon the success of the business and market
conditions, including as a result of the inabiliiythe portfolio company to raise additional cabitad, in some circumstances, our lien coul
subordinated to claims of other creditors. In ddditdeterioration in a portfolio company’s finaalctondition and prospects, including its
inability to raise additional capital, may be acg@amied by deterioration in the value of the colaltéor the loan. Consequently, the fact that a
loan is secured does not guarantee that we wiiveqrincipal and interest payments accordindnéoldan’s terms, or at all, or that we will be
able to collect on the loan should we be forceeercise our remedies.

Mezzanine DehtOur mezzanine debt investments generally arerdiriaded to senior loans and generally are unsdciites may result
in an above average amount of risk and volatilitjoss of principal.

These investments may entail additional risks ¢hald adversely affect our investment returns. Aextent interest payments associ
with such debt are deferred, such debt is subjegteaater fluctuations in value based on changéegénest rates and such debt could subject us
to phantom income. Since we generally do not recaiw cash prior to maturity of the debt, the itvest is of greater risk.

Equity InvestmentsWe expect to make selected equity investmentadtition, when we invest in senior secured loansezzanine
debt, we may acquire warrants. Our goal is ultityate dispose of such equity interests and reajaas upon our disposition of such interests.
However, the equity interests we receive may nptepate in value and, in fact, may decline in ealiccordingly, we may not be able to
realize gains from our equity interests, and aripgthat we do realize on the disposition of anyiggnterests may not be sufficient to offset
any other losses we experience.

Risks Associated with Middle Market Companik®westments in middle market companies also weval number of significant risks,
including:

» limited financial resources and inability to mdwit obligations, which may be accompanied by arifaiation in the value of ar
collateral and a reduction in the likelihood of @ealizing the value of any guarantees we may lét&ined in connection with our
investment
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» shorter operating histories, narrower product limed smaller market shares than larger businestésh tend to render them mc
vulnerable to competitc’ actions and market conditions, as well as gene@i@mic downturns

» dependence on management talents and effortsroélh group of persons; therefore, the death, digghiesignation or termination
of one or more of these persons could have a rahtatverse impact on our portfolio company anduin, on us

» less predictable operating results, being partidgigation from time to time, engaging in rapidifianging businesses with products
subject to a substantial risk of obsolescence reqdiring substantial additional capital to suppbeir operations, finance expans
or maintain their competitive positio

« difficulty accessing the capital markets to med¢tifel capital needs; ar
» generally less publicly available information abtheir businesses, operations and financial camdi

Our portfolio investments for which there is no rddy available market, including our investment ikatonah Debt Advisors, are recorded
fair value as determined in good faith by our Boadd Directors. As a result, there is uncertainty ssthe value of these investmen

Our investments consist primarily of securitiesies$ by privately-held companies, the fair valugvbfch is not readily determinable. In
addition, we are not permitted to maintain a gdneserve for anticipated loan losses. Insteadargaequired by the 1940 Act to specifically
value each investment and record an unrealizedagdoss for any asset that we believe has inctkasdecreased in value. We value these
securities at fair value as determined in goodhfhait our Board of Directors pursuant to procedagsroved by our Board of Directors. These
valuations are initially prepared by our managenaewt reviewed by our Valuation Committee whichizei$ its best judgment in arriving at |
fair value of these securities. However, the BadrDirectors retains ultimate authority as to tp@mpriate valuation of each investment.
Where appropriate, our Board of Directors utilites services of an independent valuation firm tbitiin determining fair value, particularly
the case of our investments in CLO Funds and it Debt Advisors, which are valued quarterly, Eweéstments in mezzanine and equity
securities, which are valued regularly. The indejeen valuation firm provides third-party valuatioonsulting services, which consist of
certain limited procedures that we identify andues} the independent valuation firm to perform. fpes of factors that may be considered in
valuing our investments include the nature andzable value of any collateral, the portfolio compa ability to make payments and its
earnings, the markets in which the portfolio compdaoes business, comparison to publicly-traded @omigs, discounted cash flow and other
relevant factors. The value of our investment itddah Debt Advisors is determined based on a ptagerof the assets under managemen
a multiple of its operating income, both of whiale &dased, in part, on an analysis of the valuaifasomparable asset management companies.
Because such valuations, and particularly valuatafrprivate investments and private companiesirdrerently uncertain and may be basec
estimates, our determinations of fair value mafedifaterially from the values that would be assdsta ready market for these securities
existed or from the valuations that would be plagedur assets by other market participants. Ouasset value could be adversely affected if
our determinations regarding the fair value of iowestments were materially higher than the vathaswe ultimately realize upon the dispc
of such securities.

We are a non-diversified investment company withiire meaning of the 1940 Act, and therefore we mayest a significant portion of our
assets in a relatively small number of issuers, efhsubjects us to a risk of significant loss if any these issuers defaults on its obligations
under any of its debt instruments or as a resultadflownturn in the particular industry.

We are classified as a non-diversified investmenmgany within the meaning of the 1940 Act, andefee we may invest a significant
portion of our assets in a relatively small numbiissuers in a limited number of industries. ADafcember 31, 2007, our largest investment,
our wholly owned subsidiary in Katonah
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Debt Advisors, equaled approximately 12% of the aiue of our investments. Beyond the asset difiggiion requirements associated with
our qualification as a RIC (as described furth€iGertain U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations®,do not have fixed guidelines for
diversification, and while we are not targeting apgcific industries, relatively few industries m#gcome significantly represented among our
investments. In accordance with our current poheg,will not “concentrate” our investments, thatirsrest 25% or more of our assets in any
particular industry (determined at the time of istveent). However, to the extent that we assume lpagitions in the securities of a small
number of issuers, our net asset value may flueticah greater extent than that of a diversifia@&ment company as a result of changes i
financial condition or the market’s assessmenhefissuer or a downturn in any particular indusivie may also be more susceptible to any
single economic or regulatory occurrence than argified investment company.

Economic recessions or downturns could negativehpact our portfolio companies and harm our operagimesults.

Many of our portfolio companies may be susceptibleconomic slowdowns or recessions and may belemabepay our loans during
these periods. Therefore, our nperforming assets are likely to increase and theevaf our portfolio is likely to decrease durifgese period:
Adverse economic conditions may also decreaseghe \of collateral securing some of our loans &edvelue of our equity investments.
Economic slowdowns or recessions could lead tanfifed losses in our portfolio and a decrease iemeres, net income and assets. Unfavol
economic conditions also could increase our fundimgts, limit our access to the capital market®sult in a decision by lenders not to extend
credit to us. These events could prevent us frareasing investments and harm our operating results

Defaults by our portfolio companies could harm ooperating results

A portfolio company’s failure to satisfy financiat operating covenants imposed by us or other leldiers could lead to defaults and,
potentially, acceleration of the time when the lane due and foreclosure on its secured assetls.esents could trigger cross-defaults under
other agreements and jeopardize a portfolio compabyility to meet its obligations under the ddidttwe hold and the value of any equity
securities we own. We may incur expenses to theneéxtecessary to seek recovery upon default oegotiate new terms with a defaulting
portfolio company.

When we are a debt or minority equity investor irpartfolio company, which generally is the case, may not be in a position to control the
entity, and its management may make decisions ttwaild decrease the value of our investment.

Most of our investments are either debt or minoeiguity investments in our portfolio companies. rEfiere, we are subject to the risk 1
a portfolio company may make business decisions witich we disagree, and the stockholders and nesmegt of such company may take
risks or otherwise act in ways that do not serveimigrests. As a result, a portfolio company makendecisions that could decrease the value
of our portfolio holdings. In addition, we geneyadlre not in a position to control any portfolionggany by investing in its debt securities.

Prepayments of our debt investments by our portiatibompanies could negatively impact our operatirgsults.

We are subject to the risk that the investmentsnake in our portfolio companies may be repaid poomaturity. When this occurs, we
generally reinvest these proceeds in temporarysinvents, pending their future investment in nevifpbo companies. These temporary
investments typically have substantially lower gigethan the debt being prepaid and we could expezisignificant delays in reinvesting these
amounts. Any future investment in a new portfolionpany may also be at lower yields than the deditwlas repaid. As a result, our results of
operations could be materially adversely affecteshe or more of our portfolio companies elects to
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prepay amounts owed to us. Additionally, prepaymenuld negatively impact our return on equity, eth¢ould result in a decline in the
market price of our common stock.

Our portfolio companies may incur debt that ranks@ally with, or senior to, our investments in sucdompanies.

We invest primarily in debt securities issued by paortfolio companies. In some cases portfolio canips are permitted to have other
debt that ranks equally with, or senior to, thetdszurities in which we invest. By their terms;lsaebt instruments may provide that the
holders thereof are entitled to receive paymeimtefest or principal on or before the dates oncivivie are entitled to receive payments in
respect of the debt securities in which we invakso, in the event of insolvency, liquidation, digtion, reorganization or bankruptcy of a
portfolio company, holders of debt instruments ragksenior to our investment in that portfolio cang would typically be entitled to receive
payment in full before we receive any distributinrrespect of our investment. After repaying suehiar creditors, such portfolio company
may not have any remaining assets to use for ragatg obligation to us. In the case of debt raglégually with debt securities in which we
invest, we would have to share on an equal bagislistributions with other creditors holding sudatbtlin the event of an insolvency,
liquidation, dissolution, reorganization or bankieypof a portfolio company.

There may be circumstances where our debt investimeould be subordinated to claims of other cred#t@r we could be subject to lender
liability claims.

Even though we may have structured certain of megstments as senior loans, if one of our portfotimpanies were to go bankrupt,
depending on the facts and circumstances, inclutliegize of our investment and the extent to whieractually provided managerial
assistance to that portfolio company, a bankruptayt might recharacterize our debt investmentsarabrdinate all or a portion of our claim
that of other creditors. In addition, lenders carshbject to lender liability claims for actionkea by them where they become too involved in
the borrower’s business or exercise control overtbrrower. It is possible that we could becomgesitio a lender’s liability claim, including
as a result of actions taken if we actually rergignificant managerial assistance.

Our investments in equity securities involve a stéigial degree of risk.

We may purchase common stock and other equity isiesyincluding warrants. Although equity secstihave historically generated
higher average total returns than fixed-income sgées over the long term, equity securities halge &xperienced significantly more volatility
in those returns. The equity securities we acouiag fail to appreciate and may decline in valubarome worthless, and our ability to recover
our investment depends on our portfolio companyteess. Investments in equity securities involweimber of significant risks, including the
risk of further dilution as a result of additionssuances, inability to access additional capitdl failure to pay current distributions.
Investments in preferred securities involve speatsids, such as the risk of deferred distributiamedit risk, illiquidity and limited voting right

The lack of liquidity in our investments may advelyg affect our business.

We invest in securities issued by private companfibsse securities may be subject to legal and offs¢rictions on resale or otherwise
be less liquid than publicly-traded securities. Thguidity of these investments may make it diffit for us to sell these investments when
desired. In addition, if we are required to liguilall or a portion of our portfolio quickly, we maealize significantly less than the value at
which we had previously recorded these investmégs result, we do not expect to achieve liquiditpur investments in the near-term. Our
investments are usually subject to contractua¢gall restrictions on resale or are otherwise iitidaecause there is usually no established
trading market for such investments. The illiquidif most of our investments may make it difficidt us to dispose of them at a favorable
price, and, as a result, we may suffer losses.
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We may not receive all or a portion of the income wxpect to continue to receive from Katonah Delolvisors.

We expect to continue to receive distributionseafurring fee income, after the payment of its espenfrom the asset management
activities of Katonah Debt Advisors. However, thxésting asset management agreements pursuant thugatonah Debt Advisors receives
such fee income from the CLO Funds for which ivesras manager may be terminated for “cause” bjadlders of a majority of the most
senior class of securities issued by such CLO Fandghe holders of a majority of the subordinatecurities issued by such CLO Funds.
“Cause” is defined in the asset management agresrteimclude a material breach by Katonah Debtigahg of the indenture governing the
applicable CLO Fund, breaches by Katonah Debt Axntgisf certain specified provisions of the indeatunmaterial breaches of representations
or warranties made by Katonah Debt Advisors, baptiesuor insolvency of Katonah Debt Advisors, fraardcriminal activity on the part of
Katonah Debt Advisors or an event of default urterindenture governing the CLO Funds. We expettftiture asset management
agreements will contain comparable provisions.Hargta significant portion of the asset managerfes# payable to Katonah Debt Advisors
under the asset management agreements are sulteddindhe prior payments of interest on the sesdourities issued by the CLO Funds. If
the asset management agreements are terminateel 6LO Funds do not generate enough income tohmagubordinated management fees,
we will not receive the fee income that we expeatdntinue to receive from Katonah Debt Advisorkjcl will reduce income available to
make distributions to our stockholders.

We may not receive any return on our investmentfire CLO Funds in which we have invested.

As of December 31, 2007, we had $31 million, at¥alue, invested in the subordinated securitigsreferred shares issued by CLO
Funds managed by Katonah Debt Advisors and ceothigr third party asset managers. We expect taragnto acquire subordinated securi
in the future in CLO Funds managed by Katonah Rehtisors and/or third party managers. These subatdd securities are the most junior
class of securities issued by the CLO Funds andwerdinated in priority of payment to each ottlass of securities issued by these CLO
Funds. Therefore, they only receive cash distringiif the CLO Funds have made all cash intereghpats to all other debt securities issued
by the CLO Fund. The subordinated securities ax@ ahsecured and rank behind all of the securetitors, known or unknown, of the CLO
Fund, including the holders of the senior secwitssued by the CLO Fund. Consequently, to thenéxttat the value of a CLO Fund’s loan
investments has been reduced as a result of comglith the credit markets, or as a result of défaahs or individual fund assets, the value of
the subordinated securities at their redemptioridcbe reduced.

We may not be able to continue to increase Katorizbt Advisors’ assets under management.

We expect to continue to receive distributionseafurring fee income and to generate capital apgiieai from our investment in the asset
management business of Katonah Debt Advisors, dotlyrowned asset management company. If Katondit Bdvisors is unable complete
additional CLO Funds and, therefore, increasestets under management due to unfavorable markditioms or otherwise, our results of
operations and growth prospects may be adverskgtad.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR OPERATION AS A BDC
Our management team has limited experience managingDC.

The 1940 Act imposes numerous constraints on tkeeatipns of BDCs. For example, BDCs are requireidvest at least 70% of their
total assets in specified types of securities, arilyin private companies or thinly traded U.Sbficicompanies, cash, cash equivalents, U.S.
government securities and other high quality debéstments that mature in one year or less. SegulRon.” Our management teasriimited
experience in managing a portfolio of assets usdeh constraints may hinder our ability to takeaadsge of attractive investment
opportunities and, as a result, achieve our investrabjective. Furthermore, any failure to compithvthe requirements imposed on BDCs by
the 1940 Act could cause the SEC to bring an eafoant action against us and/or expose us to claipsvate litigants. If we do not remain a
BDC, we might be regulated as a
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closed-end investment management company undé®#f® Act, which would further decrease our opegafiexibility and may prevent us
from operating our business as described in tluspgectus. SeeElection to be Regulated as a Business Develop@emipany and a Regulal
Investment Company.”

Furthermore, our management team’s limited expeeém managing a BDC that qualifies as a RIC, wlscubject to operating
limitations under the Code, may hinder our abiliynvest in certain assets that might otherwispdré of our investment strategy, thus
reducing the return on your investment. For a deson of the requirements to maintain RIC passftigh tax treatment, please see “Certain
U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations.”

Our ability to enter into transactions with our affates is restricted.

We are prohibited under the 1940 Act from partitifgin certain transactions with certain of ouileftes without the prior approval of
our independent directors and, in some cases,Ele Bny person that owns, directly or indirectl$s®r more of our outstanding voting
securities is our affiliate for purposes of the Q9t, and we generally are prohibited from buyangselling any security from or to such
affiliate, absent the prior approval of our indegent directors. The 1940 Act also prohibits cert@imt” transactions with certain of our
affiliates, which could include investments in #a@ne portfolio company (whether at the same oedifft times), without prior approval of our
independent directors and, in some cases, the BE@erson acquires more than 25% of our votirgusges, we are prohibited from buying
selling any security from or to such person oraiarof that person’s affiliates, or entering intolpibited joint transactions with such persons,
absent the prior approval of the SEC. Similar retstns limit our ability to transact business withr officers or directors or their affiliates. As
a result of these restrictions, we may be prohibfitem buying or selling any security from or toygoortfolio company of a private equity fund
managed by Kohlberg & Co. without the prior appilaahe SEC. In addition, we may co-invest on aagrent basis with Kohlberg & Co. or
any of our affiliates, subject to compliance wittisting regulatory guidance, applicable regulatiand our allocation procedures. Certain ty
of negotiated co-investments may be made only ifeeeive an order from the SEC permitting us tsaloThere can be no assurance that any
such order will be obtained.

Regulations governing our operation as a BDC affeair ability to, and the way in which we raise adidnal capital.

Our business requires a substantial amount ofiadditcapital. We may acquire additional capitahfrthe issuance of senior securitie
other indebtedness, the issuance of additionaeshefrour common stock or from securitization teani®ns. However, we may not be able to
raise additional capital in the future on favoratglens or at all. We may issue debt securitiesefepred securities, which we refer to
collectively as “senior securities,” and we mayrbar money from banks or other financial instituspap to the maximum amount permitted
by the 1940 Act. The 1940 Act permits us to issra@ securities or incur indebtedness only in am®such that our asset coverage, as
defined in the 1940 Act, equals at least 200% afieh issuance or incurrence. Our ability to paydéinds or issue additional senior securities
would be restricted if our asset coverage ratioewet at least 200%. If the value of our assetfirdex; we may be unable to satisfy this test. If
that happens, we may be required to liquidate Biquoof our investments and repay a portion ofiodebtedness at a time when such sales
be disadvantageous.

* Senior SecuritiesAs a result of issuing senior securities, we walth be exposed to typical risks associated witbrbge.
including an increased risk of loss. If we issuefpred securities they would rank “senitw”common stock in our capital structt
Preferred stockholders would have separate votgigs and may have rights, preferences or privéegere favorable than those of
our common stock. Furthermore, the issuance oemed securities could have the effect of delayitederring or preventing a
transaction or a change of control that might imea premium price for our common stockholderstbevise be in your best
interest.

» Additional Common StocOur Board of Directors may decide to issue comnioaoksto finance our operations rather than issuing
debt or other senior securities. As a BDC, we areglly not able t
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issue our common stock at a price below net aggeewithout first obtaining required approvalsnfrour stockholders and o
independent directors. In any such case, the ptieghich our securities are to be issued and salg mot be less than a price, tha
the determination of our Board of Directors, clgsgbproximates the market value of such securéss any commission or
discount). We may also make rights offerings tosiockholders at prices per share less than thasset value per share, subject to
the 1940 Act. If we raise additional funds by isguimore common stock or senior securities conMertitio, or exchangeable for,
our common stock, the percentage ownership of tagkkolders at that time would decrease, and yoyewperience dilutior

» Securitizationln addition to issuing securities to raise cam@idescribed above, we securitize a portion ourslé@a generate cash
for funding new investments through our Facilitp. §ecuritize loans, we have created a wholly-owswdsidiary and contributed a
pool of loans to the subsidiary. An inability tocsessfully securitize our loan portfolio could ltrour ability to grow our business
and fully execute our business strategy and adiyeafect our earnings, if any. Moreover, the swsfal securitization of our loan
portfolio might expose us to losses, as the residaas in which we do not sell interests tend eéditose that are riskier and more
apt to generate losse

Changes in the laws or regulations governing ourdiness, or changes in the interpretations thereafid any failure by us to comply with
these laws or regulations, could negatively afféloe profitability of our operations.

Changes in the laws or regulations or the integpiats of the laws and regulations that govern BORIE€s or nondepository commerci
lenders, could significantly affect our operati@msl our cost of doing business. We are subjeederfl, state and local laws and regulations
and are subject to judicial and administrative siecis that affect our operations, including ounloaiginations, maximum interest rates, fees
and other charges, disclosures to portfolio comgmrnhe terms of secured transactions, collectiohfareclosure procedures and other trade
practices. If these laws, regulations or decisidrenge, or if we expand our business into jurigalist that have adopted more stringent
requirements than those in which we currently cahfusiness, we may have to incur significant espsrin order to comply or we might have
to restrict our operations. In addition, if we dat scomply with applicable laws, regulations andisiens, we may lose licenses needed for the
conduct of our business and be subject to civddiand criminal penalties, any of which could haweaterial adverse effect upon our business,
results of operations or financial condition.

If we do not invest a sufficient portion of our asts in“qualifying assets,” we could fail to qualify as BDC or be precluded from investing
according to our current business strategy.

As a BDC, we may not acquire any assets other‘dpaalifying assetsfor purposes of the 1940 Act unless, at the timanaf after giving
effect to such acquisition, at least 70% of oualtassets are “qualifying assets.” See “Reguldtion.

We believe that most of the senior loans and mezeanvestments that we acquire constitute “qualdyassets.” However, investments
in the equity securities of CLO Funds generallyndo qualify as “qualifying assets,” and we may isivi@ other assets that are not “qualifying
assets.” If we do not invest a sufficient portidroar assets in “qualifying assets,” we may be jpged from investing in what we believe are
attractive investments or could lose our status B®C, which would have a material adverse effacbor business, financial condition and
results of operations. These restrictions could ptevent us from making investments in the egsétyurities of CLO Funds, which could limit
Katonah Debt Advisors’ ability to organize new CEQnds. Similarly, these rules could prevent us froaking follow-on investments in
existing portfolio companies (which could resultlie dilution of our position) or could require tasdispose of investments at inappropriate
times in order to come into compliance with the@94t. If we need to dispose of such investmeniskdy it would be difficult to dispose of
such investments on favorable terms. For exampemay have difficulty in finding a buyer and, evewe do find a buyer, we may have to
sell the investments at a substantial loss.
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If we are unable to qualify as a RIC under SubchaptM of the Code, we will be subject to corpor-level income tax, which will adversely
affect our results of operations and financial coitbn.

Provided we qualify as a RIC, we will generally hetsubject to corporate-level U.S. federal incéaxes on income distributed to our
stockholders as dividends. We will not qualify frrss-through tax treatment as a RIC, and thusbeiflubject to corporate-level U.S. federal
income taxes, if we are unable to comply with tberse-ofincome, asset diversification and distribution riegments contained in the Code
if we fail to maintain our election to be regulatesia BDC under the 1940 Act. Failure to meet ¢gelirements for tax treatment as a RIC
would subject us to taxes, which would reduce #tern on your investment. As such, our failure saldy for tax treatment as a RIC would
have a material adverse effect on us, the net aaket of our common stock and the total returramiatble from your investment in our
common stock. We may, from time to time, organiaé eonduct the business of our whodlymned portfolio company, Katonah Debt Advisc
through additional direct or indirect wholtywned subsidiaries which may, in some cases, l@lavas corporations. For additional informat
see “Regulation” and “Certain U.S. Federal Incorag Tonsiderations.”

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen
None.

ltem 2. Properties

We do not own any real estate or other real prgpe&ur wholly-owned portfolio company, Katonah Délvisors, is the lessee for our
principal headquarters at 295 Madison Avenue, &ibr-New York, New York 10017. We have entered iah Overhead Allocation
Agreement with Katonah Debt Advisors which providesthe sharing of the expenses under the leaseagent.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:
We are not a party to any pending legal proceedings

ltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Hold¢
Not Applicable.
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PART Il

ltem 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securiti¢
PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

Our common stock is quoted on The NASDAQ Globak8eMarket under the symbol “KCAP.” We completed mitial public offering
on December 11, 2006 at an initial public offerprgce of $15.00 per share. Prior to such date thvaeno public market for our common
stock.

The following table sets forth the range of higll éow closing sales prices per share of our comstock as reported on The NASDAQ
Global Select Market. The stock quotations arerd@aler quotations and do not include markups, dwaks or commissions and may not
necessarily represent actual transactions.

Quarterly Stock Prices for 2007 and 2006

High Low Close NAV !
2007:
Fourth quarte $15.4¢ $10.0C $12.0C $14.3¢
Third quartel $19.1( $13.6¢ $15.0¢ $14.71
Second quarte $19.6¢ $15.7¢ $18.5¢ $15.3¢
First quartel $18.0C $15.0¢ $16.0C $14.7¢
2006:
Fourth quarter December 11, 2—December 31, 200 $17.4¢ $15.7¢ $17.3C $14.2¢

! Net asset value per share is determined as oahelhy in the relevant quarter and therefore noyeflect the net asset value per sk
on the date of the high and low closing sales pri¢le net asset value shown is based on outstpadares at December 31, 2006.

We began paying quarterly dividends in our firdt Guarter of operations following our IPO and qartfolio has provided sufficient
ordinary GAAP income to sustain and grow our divide over time. See “Management’s Discussion andyAisaof Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” and Note 7—"Distributable<Tacome” from our Notes to the Consolidated FinahStatements included herein.

Dividend Declarations

Declaration Record Pay
Dividend Date Date Date
2007:
Fourth quarte $ 0.3¢ 12/14/0° 12/24/0° 1/24/0¢
Third quartel 0.37 9/24/07 10/10/0° 10/26/0°
Second quarte 0.3t 6/8/07 7/9/07% 7/23/07
First quartel 0.2¢ 3/13/07 4/6/07 4/17/07
Total declared for 200 $ 1.4C

Note:No dividend was declared for the period from Decenili, 2006 to December 31, 2006. The distributalrieome earned during tt
period was paid during 200
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the return on our camistock with that of the Standard & Poor’s 500c&tindex and the Russell 2000
Financial Index, for the period December 11, 206& ¢late of our initial public offering) to Decemi®4, 2007. The graph assumes that, on
December 11, 2006, a person invested $100 in €amlr@ommon stock, the S&P 500 Stock Index andRbssell 2000 Financial Index. The
graph measures total shareholder return, whictstaite account both changes in stock price andididls. It assumes that dividends are
reinvested in like securities.

Shareholder Return Performance Graph
Cumulative Total Return Since Initial Public Offering ®
(Through December 31, 2007)
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—&— Kohlberg Capital —=— Russell 2000 —&— IXF —&— S&F 500

@ Total return includes reinvestment of dividendotlyh December 31, 2007. The Company has addedds¢al upon the NASDAQ
Financial-100 Index and will not make the comparismthe S&P 500 in future disclosure because th@gany believes that the S&P
500 is not representative of Kohlberg Capital’susisly or market capitalization. The NASDAQ Finatdi@0 Index is an index of
diversified financial sector stock and, as such,@lompany believes that it is representative ofimdustry. The Russell 2000 is a broad
based equity market index that tracks companids mvérket capitalization that the Company beliewescéoser to Kohlberg Capital’s

than the companies represented by the S&P 500.
HOLDERS

As of March 1, 2008, there were 16 shareholdersadrd of our common stock and approximately 7 [3&@eficial shareholders of the
Company.
SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

We did not sell any securities during the periodered by this report that were not registered utiteiSecurities Act. However, we
issued 71,366 shares of common stock pursuandididend reinvestment plan. See Note 9, “Stockhms/déquity” of our Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included herein.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
We did not repurchase any shares of our commotk stiming the year ended December 31, 2007.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

We intend to continue to distribute quarterly desmds to our stockholders. Our quarterly divideifdsny, will be determined by our
Board of Directors. To maintain our RIC status,wast timely distribute an amount equal to at |©886 of our ordinary income and realized
net short-term capital gains in excess of realizetdong-term capital losses, if any, reduced Ijudéble expenses, out of the assets legally
available for distribution, for each year. To avo@ttain excise taxes imposed on RICs, we are gbyeequired to distribute during each
calendar year an amount at least equal to the $fr) 88% of our ordinary income for the calendaas; (2) 98% of our capital gains in excess
of capital losses for the one-year period endin@otober 31 of the calendar year and (3) any orgiimcome and net capital gains for
preceding years that were not distributed durirghstears. If this requirement is not met, we wéldequired to pay a nondeductible excise tax
equal to 4% of the amount by which 98% of the auiryear’s taxable income exceeds the distributasrttie year. The taxable income on
which an excise tax is paid is generally carrieavird and distributed to stockholders in the nextytear. Depending on the level of taxable
income earned in a tax year, we may choose to éanmard taxable income in excess of current yésiributions into the next tax year and |
a 4% excise tax on such income, to the extent requive did not declare or pay any dividends in&@G of December 31, 2006, our excise
tax liability related to our 2006 distributable aroe was approximately $21,000. We distributed @@62distributable income in 2007.

We cannot assure you that we will achieve reshiswill permit the payment of any cash distribntand, if we incur indebtedness or
issue senior securities, we will be prohibited froraking distributions if doing so causes us totiainaintain the asset coverage ratios
stipulated by the 1940 Act or if distributions dimited by the terms of any of our borrowings.

We maintain an “opt out” dividend reinvestment pfanour common stockholders. As a result, if weldee a dividend, then
stockholders’ cash dividends will be automatica#linvested in additional shares of our common stonless they specifically “opt out” of the
dividend reinvestment plan so as to receive cagdetids.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following selected financial and other datatfer period from December 11, 2006, the date oifrdtial public offering and
conversion to a corporation, through December B062and for the year ended December 31, 2007 igedkfrom our financial statements
which have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLPjralependent registered public accounting firm seheport thereon is included within
this Annual Report. The data should be read inwmtjon with our financial statements and noteseteeand “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiiems,” which are included in this Annual Report.

KOHLBERG CAPITAL CORPORATION
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
December 11, 2006 (inception) through December 31006 and the Year Ended December 31, 2007

For the Period
December 11, 200

(inception) through

December 31, 200

Year Ended 1

December 31, 20C
Income Statement Data:
Interest and related portfolio incorr

Interest and dividenc $ 37,219,71 $ 1,110,10
Fees and other incon 759,30: 41,79«
Dividends from affiliate asset manag 500,00( —
Total interest and related portfolio incol 38,479,01 1,151,90:
Expenses
Interest and amortization of debt issuance ¢ 7,229,59 —
Compensatiol 4,104,76. 175,18¢
Administrative and othe 4,385,70 487,25:
Total operating expens 15,720,06 662,44(
Net Investment Income 22,758,94 489,46:
Realized and unrealized gains on investme
Net realized gain 266,31 1,077
Net change in unrealized gai 3,116,71! 4,180,00!
Total net gain: 3,383,03! 4,181,07
Net increase in net assets resulting from opera $ 26,141,98 $ 4,670,54
Per share:
Earnings per common sh—basic and dilute: $ 1.4t $ 0.2¢
Net investment income plus net realized gains pare—basic and dilute: $ 1.2¢ $ 0.0
Dividends declared per common sh $ 1.4C $ —
Balance Sheet Data
Investment assets at fair val $ 505,311,69 $ 249,212,37
Total asset 533,141,95 282,375,84
Total debt outstandin 255,000,00 —
Stockholder’ equity 259,068,16 256,400,42
Net asset value per common sh $ 14.3¢ $ 14.2¢
Common shares outstanding at end of \ 18,017,69 17,946,33
Other Data:
Investments funde 373,852,28 191,706,72
Principal collections related to investment repagta®r sale: 104,037,55 533,31!
Number of portfolio investments at year ¢ 14t 86
Weighted average yield of income producing debégtment$ 9.5% 9.C%

1 Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiedhform to current year presentation.

2 Weighted average yield of income producing debégtments is calculated as the average yield toytatanding balances for
investments in loans and mezzanine debt. The y@idSLO equities and investment in our wholly-owmpedltfolio manager, Katonah
Debt Advisors, are excluded.
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Quarterly Data

Interest and related portfolio incor

Net investment incom

Net increase (decrease) in net assets rest
from operation:

Net investment income and realized gains
common shar—basic and dilute:

Dividends declared per common sh

Net asset value per common sh

2007 (unaudited)

For the Period
December 11, 2006
(inception) through

Qtr 4 Qtr 3* Qtr 2* Qtr 1* December 31, 200¢€
$12,882,83 $10,483,24. $ 8,578,36: $ 6,534,56 $ 1,079,19:
6,589,261 6,070,37! 5,292,63. 4,806,67. 489,46:
(63,835 (4,683,68) 16,940,50 13,949,00 4,670,54!

$ 0.37 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.3C $ 0.27 $ 0.0z
$ 0.3¢ $ 0.37 $ 0.3t $ 0.2¢ $ =
$ 14.3¢ $ 1471 $ 15.3¢ $ 14.7¢ $ 14.2¢

* Certain prior year and unaudited Quarterly DataeHasen reclassified to conform with current presstion.
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ltem 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drikResults of Operation

The following discussion should be read in conjiomctvith our financial statements and related naies other financial information
appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report. In dddito historical information, the following discien and other parts of this Annual Report
contain forward-looking information that involveisks and uncertainties. Our actual results coulifledimaterially from those anticipated by
such forward-looking information due to the factdiscussed under “Risk Factors” and “Note about Rard-Looking Statements” appearing
elsewhere herein.

OVERVIEW

We are an internally managed, non-diversified aesed investment company that has elected to hdategl as a business development
company (“BDC") under the Investment Company AclLl8fi0, as amended (the “1940 Act”). We originatieicture and invest in senior
secured term loans, mezzanine debt and selectéy eqaurities primarily in privately-held middlearket companies. We define the middle
market as comprising companies with earnings beftegest, taxes, depreciation and amortizatiorickvive refer to as “EBITDA,” of $10
million to $50 million and/or total debt of $25 tin to $150 million. In addition to our middle nkat investment business, our wholly-owned
portfolio company, Katonah Debt Advisors, managdkteralized loan obligation funds (“CLO Fund#fiat invest in broadly syndicated loa
high-yield bonds and other corporate credit insgnta. We acquired Katonah Debt Advisors and ceriated assets prior to our initial public
offering from affiliates of Kohlberg & Co., LLC (“Ehlberg & Co."), a leading private equity firm famd on middle market investing. As of
December 31, 2007, Katonah Debt Advisors had apmprabely $2.1 billion of assets under management.

Our investment objective is to generate currerime and capital appreciation from our investmeéms.also expect to continue to
receive distributions of recurring fee income amdi¢nerate capital appreciation from our investntetite asset management business of
Katonah Debt Advisors. Our investment portfolionsd| as the investment portfolios of the CLO Fuidsvhich we have invested and the
investment portfolios of the CLO Funds managed hyolah Debt Advisors consist exclusively of cramtruments and other securities iss
by corporations and do not include any asset-baskedrities secured by commercial mortgages, reSalenortgages or other consumer
borrowings.

As a Regulated Investment Company (“RIC”), we intém distribute to our stockholders substantiallypfour net taxable income and
the excess of realized net short-term capital gawes realized net long-term capital losses. Tdifyjuas a RIC, we must, among other things,
meet certain source-of-income and asset diversidicaequirements. Pursuant to these electiongyemerally will not have to pay corporate-
level taxes on any income that we distribute tostackholders.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements are based on the seleatidrapplication of critical accounting policiediieh require management to make
significant estimates and assumptions. Criticabanting policies are those that are both importanhe presentation of our financial condition
and results of operations and require managemeras difficult, complex, or subjective judgmentsur@ritical accounting policies are those
applicable to the valuation of investments andaientevenue recognition matters as discussed below.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have begraped on the accrual basis of accounting in corifgrwith accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. The filshistatements reflect all adjustments and rediaasions which, in the opinion of
management, are necessary for the fair presentattitie Company’s results of operations and finalnmbndition for the periods presented.
Furthermore, the financial
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statements are based on the selection and appfiaaticritical accounting policies which may reguimanagement to make significant
estimates and assumptions. Actual results coutdrdifom those estimates. Critical accounting peare those that are important to the
presentation of our financial condition and resaftsperations that require management’s mostadilfi complex or subjective judgments.

Valuation of Portfolio Investments

The most significant estimate inherent in the prafi@n of our financial statements is the valuatidinvestments and the related amoi
of unrealized appreciation and depreciation of #wents recorded.

Value, as defined in Section 2(a)(41) of 1940 Ac(l) the market price for those securities foialira market quotation is readily
available and (2) for all other securities and &sdair value as determined in good faith by ooaBl of Directors pursuant to procedures
approved by our Board of Directors.

As a BDC, we may invest in illiquid securities, mding loans to and warrants of private companies@her illiquid securities, such as
CLO Funds securities and our investment in Katddaht Advisors. These securities are valued andechat fair value, as determined in good
faith by our Board of Directors pursuant to proaeduapproved by our Board of Directors. We deteenfiitir value to be the amount for which
an investment could be exchanged in an orderlyodiipn over a reasonable period of time betwediingiparties other than in a forced or
liguidation sale. Our valuation policy is intendedprovide a consistent basis for determining #ievalue of the portfolio based on the nature
of the security, the market for the security arfteottonsiderations including the financial perfonceand enterprise value of the portfolio
company. Because of the inherent uncertainty afat&n, the Board of Directors’ determined valuesy/rdiffer significantly from the values
that would have been used had a ready market éxistehe investments, and the differences coulthbterial.

Our Board of Directors may consider other methddsatuation to determine the fair value of investitseas appropriate in conformity
with GAAP.

Interest Income

Interest income, adjusted for amortization of premiand accretion of discount, is recorded on tleeuat basis to the extent that such
amounts are expected to be collected. We genexalbe a loan on non-accrual status and cease rieaugimterest income on such loan or
security when a loan or security becomes 90 daysase past due or if we otherwise do not expectiigor to be able to service its debt
obligations. Non-accrual loans remain in such statutil the borrower has demonstrated the ability imtent to pay contractual amounts due or
such loans become current. As of December 31, a6@December 31, 2006, no loans or debt secuvities greater than 90 days past due or
on non-accrual status.

Dividend Income from CLO Fund Securities

We generate dividend income from our investmentiémost junior class of securities of CLO Furtgipi€ally preferred shares or
subordinated securities) managed by Katonah DebisAts and selective investments in securitieseidday funds managed by other asset
management companies. Our CLO Fund securitiesudadinate to senior bond holders who typicallyeree a fixed rate of return on their
investment. The CLO Funds are leveraged funds aneacess cash flow or “excess spread” (interasteebby the underlying securities in the
fund less payments made to senior bond holderseamsdund expenses and management fees) is ptid twlders of the CLO Fund'’s
subordinated securities or preferred shares. Weeragtimated interim accruals of such dividend inedrased on recent historical distributions
and CLO Fund performance and adjust such accruadscuarterly basis to reflect actual distributions

Dividends from Affiliate Asset Manager
The Company records dividend income from its @ffdiasset manager on the declaration date.
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Payment in Kind Interest

We may have loans in our portfolio that contairegirpent-in-kind (“PIK”) provision. PIK interest, cqrated at the contractual rate
specified in each loan agreement, is added toriheipal balance of the loan and recorded as isténeome. To maintain our RIC status, this
non-cash source of income must be paid out to btdkrs in the form of dividends, even though tleenPany has not yet collected the cash.

Fee Income

Fee income includes fees, if any, for due diligemsteicturing, commitment and facility fees, anddgf any, for transaction services and
management services rendered by us to portfoliqpemies and other third parties. Commitment andifiadéees are generally recognized as
income over the life of the underlying loan, wherdae diligence, structuring, transaction serviog management service fees are generally
recognized as income when the services are rendered

Management Compensation

We may, from time to time, issue stock options uride Kohlberg Capital Corporation 2006 Equity Inttee Plan (our “Equity Incentive
Plan”) to officers and employees for services read¢o us. We follow Statement of Financial AccaugtStandards No. 123R (revised 2004),
Accounting for Sto-Based Compensatigra method by which the fair value of options agéedmined and expensed. We use a Binary Option
Pricing Model (American, call option) as its valioat model to establish the expected value of altlsbption grants.

We are internally managed and therefore do notriranagement fees payable to third parties.

U.S. Federal Income Taxes

The Company has elected and intends to contingeabfy for the tax treatment applicable to RICslenSubchapter M of the Code and,
among other things, intends to make the requirsttibutions to its stockholders as specified threrli order to qualify as a RIC, the Company
is required to timely distribute to its stockholglat least 90% of investment company taxable incaseefined by the Code, for each year.
Depending on the level of taxable income earneaaitax year, we may choose to carry forward taxafgeme in excess of current year
distributions into the next tax year and pay a 43ise tax on such income, to the extent required.

In accordance with Statement of Position 93-2, #b@ination, Disclosure, and Financial Statemens&r&ation of Income, Capital Gain,
and Return of Capital Distributions by Investmenntpanies,” book and tax basis differences relatingtockholder distributions and other
permanent book and tax differences are reclasdifi@dpital in excess of par value. In additiom, tharacter of income and gains to be
distributed is determined in accordance with incaaxeregulations that may differ from accountin@qpiples generally accepted in the United
States of America. See “Certain United States Fdiecome Tax Considerations” in Item 1.

Dividends

Dividends and distributions to common stockholdaesrecorded on the record date. The amount t@ioeopt as a dividend is
determined by the Board of Directors each quartedria generally based upon the earnings estimatedadmagement for the period and fiscal
year.

We have adopted a dividend reinvestment plan ttmatighes for reinvestment of our distributions orh&l of our stockholders, unless a
stockholder “opts out” of the plan to receive cashieu of having their cash dividends automatigatinvested in additional shares of our
common stock.
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PORTFOLIO AND INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

Our primary business is lending to and investingniddle-market businesses through investmentsrilossecured loans, junior secured
loans, subordinated/mezzanine debt investments, &€ju@ly investments and other equity-based investshevhich may include warrants.

Total portfolio investment activity for the yeansded December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 waass:

CLO Fund Equity Affiliate Asset
Debt Securities Securities Securities Managers Total Portfolio

2006 Activity:

Purchases / originations /dra $ 191,706,72 $20,870,00 $ — $33,394,99 $245,971,71

Pay-downs / pa-offs / sales (533,319 — — (72,710 (606,02

Net amortized discout (406,029 — — — (406,02Y

Increase in fair valu — — — 4,252,71I 4,252,71I

Fair Value at December 31, 20 $ 190,767,38 $20,870,00 $ — $37,574,99 $249,212,37
2007 Activity:

Purchases / originations /dra $ 336,182,77 $14,775,00 $5,043,95! $  75,00( $ 356,076,72

Pay-downs / pa-offs / sales (104,037,55) — — — (104,037,55)

Net amortized premiur 260,84 416,26« — — 677,11.

Net realized gain 266,31 — — — 266,31

Increase (decrease) in fair val (12,485,68) (5,041,26) (291,700 20,935,36 3,116,71!

Fair Value at December 31, 20 $ 410,954,08 $31,020,00 $4,752,25| $58,585,36! $ 505,311,69

Following completion of our initial public offeringve used approximately $185 million of the netqereds of that offering to acquire a
portfolio of approximately $185 million in aggregagtrincipal amount of senior secured loans thaeweiginated during 2006 through a spe
purpose vehicle organized by Katonah Debt Advisbhese loans were acquired by us for cash at thieivalue. Subsequent to our acquisition
of these assets and consistent with our investsteattgy, we began to reposition our investmerifq@ay toward a heavier weighting in secc
lien senior loans and mezzanine loans.

Prior to our initial public offering, we issued aggregate of 1,258,000 common shares, having & whlapproximately $19 million, to
affiliates of Kohlberg & Co. to acquire certain sutfinated securities and preferred stock secuiggsed by CLO Funds (Katonah 111, Ltd.,
Katonah 1V, Ltd., Katonah V, Ltd., Katonah VII CLQtd., and Katonah VIII CLO, Ltd.) managed by KaatnDebt Advisors and two other
asset managers. Subsequent to our initial pubferiof), we purchased approximately $13 million &fGCFund securities issued by other CL
managed by Katonah Debt Advisors and approxim&#lgnillion of CLO Fund securities managed by adtparty asset manager. Our total
investment in CLO Fund securities at fair valuapproximately $31 million as of December 31, 2d@7connection with the closing of
Katonah Debt Advisor's most recent CLO Fund on dan@3, 2008, we invested approximately $29 millioracquire all of the shares of the
most junior class of securities of the CLO Fund.

Prior to our initial public offering, we issued aggregate of 2,226,333 common shares, having & wdlapproximately $33 million, to
affiliates of Kohlberg & Co. to acquire Katonah Délalvisors. As a result, Katonah Debt Advisors ist@lly-owned portfolio company that
manages CLO Funds which invest in broadly
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syndicated loans, high-yield bonds and other ciedituments. As of December 31, 2007, Katonah Bebisors had approximately $2.1
billion of assets under management. Katonah Debisdds had after-tax net income of approximatelyn@iion for the year ended
December 31, 2007 and a dividend to us of $500,000.

In December 2007, we committed to make an investineanew distressed investment platform organtae&teven Panagos and
Jonathan Katz and named Panagos and Katz Situlalivesting (“PKSI”). Mr. Panagos was most recemtitional practice leader of Kroll
Zolfo Cooper’s Corporate Advisory and Restructufrgctice and Mr. Katz was the founding partneBécial Situations Investing, a
distressed investing vehicle of JP Morgan. We eixhext funds managed by PKSI will invest in the tdefid equity securities of companies that
are restructuring due to financial or operatiorisirdss. We also expect that PKSI may selectivetirtate new credit facilities with borrowers
that are otherwise unable to access traditionalittnearkets. We committed to invest up to $2.5ianilldirectly in PKSI through an investment
in Class A shares. We have a 35% economic interé®S| through our investment in Class B sharesbith we will receive our pro rata
share of its operating income and may make an fmezg of up to $25 million in funds managed by PK8Iwhich we will receive investment
income. PKSI may also source distressed debt oppitiets in which we may make direct investmentsoABecember 31, 2007, we funded
approximately $72,000 of our $2.5 million total amitment to PKSI which is an investment in the Classhares of PKSI.

Both Katonah Debt Advisors and PKSI are considerfféitiate investments. As of December 31, 2007, affifiate asset manager
investments at fair value are approximately $59iomi

The level of investment activity for investmentsidied and principal repayments for our investmeatswvary substantially from period to
period depending on the number and size of invassiteat we invest in or divest of, and many ofaetors, including the amount and
competition for the debt and equity securities ladé to middle market companies, the level of reeand acquisition activity for such
companies and the general economic environment.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The principal measure of our financial performaiscehe net increase in stockholders’ equity resglfrom operations which includes net
investment income (loss) and net realized and linegbhgain (loss). Net investment income (losdhes difference between our income from
interest, dividends, fees, and other investmerdrimeand our operating expenses. Net realized tmis) (on investments, is the difference
between the proceeds received from dispositiomordfolio investments and their stated cost. Neeahzed appreciation (depreciation) on
investments is the net change in the fair valueufinvestment portfolio.

Set forth below is a discussion of our resultsdrations for the year ended December 31, 2003t frithe completion of our initial
public offering on December 11, 2006, we had noematoperations. Therefore, there are no comparatibr periods presented.

Investment Income

Investment income for the year ended December@®17 @vas approximately $38 million. Of this amowagproximately $28 million was
attributable to interest income on our loan anddiiowestments. For the year ended December 31, @0proximately $2 million of investme
income was attributable to interest on assets agtated for future CLO issuances on which we entér&ala first loss agreement in connect
with loan warehouse arrangements for Katonah Debisbrs CLO Funds. Approximately $7 million of irstenent income is attributable to
dividends earned on CLO equity investments.

Investment income is primarily dependent on the pasition and credit quality of our investment politfi. Generally, our debt securities
portfolio is expected to generate predictable, méieg interest income in
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accordance with the contractual terms of each IGanporate equity securities may pay a dividendraag increase in value for which a gain
may be recognized; generally such dividend paymeamdsgains are less predictable than interest iecomour loan portfolio. Dividends from
CLO Fund securities are dependent on the perforemahthe underlying assets in each CLO Fund; istgrayments, principal amortization i
prepayments of the underlying loans in each CLOdrane primary factors which determine the levahebme on our CLO Fund securities.

Dividends from Affiliate Asset Manager

As of December 31, 2007, our investment in KatoDeht Advisors was approximately $59 million. Foe tyear ended December 31,
2007, Katonah Debt Advisors had GAAP net incomapygroximately $3 million. Katonah Debt Advisorstdisuted $500,000 of its
approximately $3 million of net income during 20@istributions of Katonah Debt Advisors’ net income recorded as dividends from
affiliate asset manager. The Company intends toilolige the accumulated net income of Katonah ehtisors in the future. For purposes of
calculating distributable tax income for requiradhgerly dividends as a RIC, Katonah Debt Advisoet income is further reduced by
approximately $2 million per annum for tax goodvaithortization resulting from its acquisition byprgor to our initial public offering. As a
result, the amount of our declared dividends, aduated by management and approved by our Bodbireftors, is based on our evaluation of
both distributable income for tax purposes and GAwPinvestment income (which excludes unrealizgdgyand losses).

Expenses

Total expenses for the year ended December 31, ®860F approximately $16 million. Interest expensd amortization on debt issuance
costs for the period, which includes facility anmdgram fees on the unused loan balance, was appatedy $7 million on average debt
outstanding of $106 million. Approximately $4 milli of expenses were attributable to employment emsation, including salaries, bonuses
and stock option expense for the period. Other es@eincluded approximately $3 million in professibfees primarily attributable to legal
costs related to the initiation of public filingsrgt year proxy, Form 10-K, etc.), legal costsibtitable to the initiation of other certain
regulatory and compliance matters, first year SaebeOxley Act compliance preparation, testing apbrting and recruiting fees.
Administrative and other costs totaled approxima$ million and include occupancy expense, insceatechnology and other office
expenses.

Interest and compensation expense are generalgcesgto be our largest expenses each periodesttexpense is dependent on the
average outstanding principal balance on our réngleredit facility and the base index rate for gfegiod. Compensation expense includes
salaries, bonuses, stock compensation, employesditseand employer related payroll costs. The lsirgemponents of total compensation ¢
are base salaries and bonuses; generally, basesalee expensed as incurred and bonus experesestanated and accrued since bonuses are
paid annually.

Net Unrealized Appreciation on Investments

During the year ended December 31, 2007, our imvests had an increase in net unrealized appreciafiapproximately $3 million.
Katonah Debt Advisors had unrealized appreciaticepproximately $21 million offset by unrealizeds$®s of approximately $18 million on
debt securities, equity securities and CLO Fundsies in our investment portfolio.

The increase in the unrealized value of Katonaht Belisors is primarily as a result of an increas&atonah Debt Advisors’ assets
under management from $1.2 billion prior to outi@ipublic offering to $2.1 billion as of Decemi&t, 2007. During the year ended
December 31, 2007, Katonah Debt Advisors increased
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its assets under management through the complefitre formation of Katonah X CLO Ltd., which inded approximately $486 million in
assets. In addition, as of December 31, 2007, kdtdebt Advisors had aggregated assets of appriedy®481 million for new funds it
expects to complete during 2008. Of this amounpragmately $212 million of assets were closed atoew $315 million CLO Fund, Katon
2007-I CLO, Ltd., in January 2008.

Net Increase in Stockholders’ Equity Resulting FromOperations

The net increase in stockholders’ equity resulfiogh operations for the year ended December 317 2@k approximately $26 million,
or $1.45 per outstanding share.

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY, AND CAPITAL RESOURC ES

Liquidity is a measure of our ability to meet pdtehcash requirements, including ongoing committad¢a repay borrowings, fund and
maintain investments, pay dividends to our stoatd and other general business needs. We recageireed to have funds available for
operating our business and to make investmentssadle to have adequate liquidity at all times toecawormal cyclical swings in funding
availability and to allow us to meet abnormal anéxpected funding requirements. We plan to satisgfliquidity needs through normal
operations with the goal of avoiding unplanned salleassets or emergency borrowing of funds.

In addition to the traditional sources of availafeds (issuance of new equity, debt or undrawrelvause facility capacity), we also h.
the ability to raise additional cash funds throtigh securitization of assets on our balance sheatigh our wholly-owned asset manager,
Katonah Debt Advisors. Such a securitization wib\gde cash for new investments on our balancetsigewell as additional management fee
income and potentially increased value (as a re$uftcreased assets under management) for KatoabhAdvisors.

As a BDC, we are limited in the amount of leveragecan incur to finance our investment portfolioe Afe required to meet a coverage
ratio of total assets to total senior securitieatdéast 200%. For this purpose, senior secuiitidade all borrowings and any preferred stock.
As a result, our ability to utilize leverage as @ams of financing our portfolio of investmentsimited by this asset coverage test.

As of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006aihe@dlue of investments and cash and cash equitsateere as follows:

Investments at Fair Value

Security Type December 31, 20C December 31, 20C
Cash and cash equivalel $ 12,088,52 $ 32,404,49
Senior Secured Loe 260,138,67 163,313,49
Junior Secured Log 113,259,29 27,453,89
Mezzanine Investmel 33,066,11 —
Senior Subordinated Bor 2,490,00! —
Senior Unsecured Bor 2,000,001 —
CLO Fund Securitie 31,020,00 20,870,00
Equity Securities 4,752,25I —
Affiliate Asset Manager 58,585,36! 37,574,99
Total $ 517,400,22 $ 281,616,87

On February 14, 2007, we entered into a secuiibizaevolving credit facility (the “Facility”) undewhich we had a right to obtain up to
$200 million in financing loaned by or through BMCapital Markets Corp. On October 1, 2007, the Camgmanended the Facility to increase
the Company'’s borrowing capacity from $200 millimn$275 million, extend the maturity date from Redrny 12, 2012 to October 1, 2012 and
increase the
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interest spread charged on outstanding borrowipdblbasis points, to 0.85%. The interest ratexg&ed on prevailing commercial paper rates
plus 0.85% or, if the commercial paper market igrat time unavailable, prevailing LIBOR rates pausapplicable spread. Interest is payable
monthly. Advances under the Facility are used bprimarily to make additional investments. The kgcis secured by loans acquired by us
with the advances under the Facility. We will bevronder the Facility through its wholly-owned, sjd@urpose bankruptcy remote
subsidiary, Kohlberg Capital Funding LLC I.

As of December 31, 2007, the outstanding balanddeiracility was $255 million with available addital borrowing capacity of $20
million. As of December 31, 2007, we had restriatagh balances of approximately $7 million whichmentained in accordance with the
terms of our Facility. A portion of these fundspamximately $2 million, were released to us in Jay2008.

We expect our cash on hand, borrowings under awecuFacility’s undrawn commitments, and cash gateel from operations,
including income earned from investments and angrime distributions made by Katonah Debt Advisots,wholly-owned portfolio compan'
will be adequate to meet our cash needs at ouerilgvel of operations. Our primary use of fundl lve investments in secured lien loans,
mezzanine debt and CLO Fund equity. In order ta foew originations, we intend to use cash on haddances under our credit Facility and
equity financings. Our credit Facility containslatéral requirements, including, but not limited t@inimum diversity, rating and yield, and
limitations on loan size. These limitations mayitiour ability to fund certain new originations Wwiadvances under the Facility, in which case
we will seek to fund originations using new debequity financings.

COMMITMENTS

We are a party to financial instruments with offamce sheet risk in the normal course of businessder to meet the needs of our
portfolio companies. Such instruments include cotments to extend credit and may involve, in varyiegrees, elements of credit risk in
excess of amounts recognized on our balance dhget.to extending such credit, we attempt to liout credit risk by conducting extensive
due diligence, obtaining collateral where necesaarynegotiating appropriate financial covenantssoADecember 31, 2007 and Decembe!
2006, we had committed to make a total of approtétgeb4 million and $2 million, respectively, ofiestments in various revolving senior
secured loans, of which approximately $866,000fwaded as of December 31, 2007 and no amount watetlas of December 31, 2006. As
of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, wetadnitted to make a total of approximately $8 railliand $667,000, respectively, of
investments in a delayed draw senior secured loawhich approximately $5 million was funded addefcember 31, 2007 and no amount was
funded as of December 31, 2006.

We and Katonah Debt Advisors have entered into lfisss agreements in connection with warehouseitdnees established to fund the
initial accumulation of senior secured corporatni®and certain other debt securities for futur®®unds that Katonah Debt Advisors will
manage, and may enter into similar agreementsirfiutiure. Such first loss agreements relate tlm¢ges (if any) as a result of individual loan
investments being ineligible for purchase by a @ Fund (typically due to a payment default onhslaan) when such fund formation is
completed or sold prior to completion of such fufii,if a new CLO Fund has not been completed bethe expiration of the related
warehouse credit line, the loss (if any, and netrof accumulated interest income) on the resadleanfs and debt securities funded by such
warehouse credit line. In return for our first legsnmitment, we receive net interest income froemuhderlying assets in the loan warehouse.

Katonah Debt Advisors has engaged Bear Stearrieuittigre and raise three CLO Funds, to be namedriéét 2007-1 CLO Ltd.
(“Katonah 2007"), Katonah 2008-1 CLO Ltd. (“Katon@h08-1") and Katonah 2008-Il CLO Ltd. (“Katonah@®11”), and to be managed by
Katonah Debt Advisors (directly or indirectly thigiua services contract with an affiliate of Katozbt Advisors). As part of these
engagements, Katonah Debt Advisors entered intelvearse credit lines with Bear Stearns to fundiiteal accumulation of assets for
Katonah 2007 and Katonah 2008-1, which providedfdirst loss obligation of Katonah Debt Advisors,
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requiring it to reimburse Bear Stearns for (i) agrtiosses (if any) incurred on the assets waredtbfe Katonah 2007 Katonah 2008-1 and
Katonah 2008-II prior to their completion, or (iijone or all of these CLO Funds failed to clos¢hat expiration of the engagement (i.e.
December 31, 2008), a portion of the losses (i) amythe resale of the warehoused assets. As adrbleer 31, 2007, Katonah 2007 and
Katonah 2008-I had acquired an aggregate of apmeately $481 million determined on the basis ofghevalue of such assets.

On January 23, 2008, Katonah Debt Advisors closatbiah 2007 in accordance with the terms of the Besarns engagement. Katonah
Debt Advisors received a structuring fee upon dgsind expects to earn an ongoing asset managémedraised on the par amount of the
underlying investments in Katonah 2007. Approxirha$212 million of assets were transferred from ldeen warehouse into Katonah 2007
and are no longer subject to a first loss guara@eeurities issued by CLO Funds managed by Katbmddt Advisors are primarily held by
third parties. Kohlberg Capital invested approxieta®$29 million to acquire all of the shares of thest junior class of securities of Katonah
2007.

On March 12, 2007, Kohlberg Capital and KatonahtD¥dvisors engaged Lehman Commercial Paper In@lfthan”) to structure and
raise a CLO Fund to invest in senior secured midtieket corporate loans, to be named Ardsley CL@Qr2DLtd. (“Ardsley”) and to be
managed by Katonah Debt Advisors, and enteredaimtarehouse credit agreement and ancillary agreismatin Lehman to fund the initial
accumulation of assets for Ardsley. Under the wawsk credit agreement, Kohlberg Capital, as tiselfiss provider, was obligated to
reimburse Lehman for (i) certain losses (if anyuimed on loans acquired for Ardsley with advanaeder the warehouse credit facility priot
the completion of the CLO Fund, or (ii) if the CLEDind failed to close at the expiration of the ergagnt on December 19, 2007, a portion of
the losses (if any) on the resale of the warehoasedts. On October 3, 2007, Kohlberg Capital, iatidDebt Advisors and Ardsley agreed
with Lehman to terminate the engagement, the warshoredit facility and Kohlberg Capital’s firsskbobligation upon payment to Lehman of
a payoff amount equal to the amount owed undewtrehouse credit facility as of the payoff date usi®1 million, to reflect the estimated
current value of the warehoused loans. As patt@términation, Kohlberg Capital purchased all d#ley’s assets for an aggregate purchase
price of approximately $72 million. Approximateljt4 million in aggregate principal amount of suckeds were purchased and subsequently
sold in market transactions with third parties, #melremaining approximately $58 million of debtseties from Ardsley were retained in our
investment portfolio. Ardsley used the proceedsfits sale of these loans to us to repay the oudstg obligations under the warehouse credit
facility. All outstanding amounts under the wared®gredit facility have been paid off in full, asegult of which the warehouse credit facility
and Kohlberg Capital’s first loss obligations tharder have terminated. No losses were incurreddhiiérg Capital upon the termination of
Ardsley.

As a result of the termination of the Ardsley warebe credit facility, the warehouse credit linehvitear Stearns pursuant to the
engagement letter dated October 12, 2007 is thegudrantee arrangement to which the Company &tg with respect to the business of
Katonah Debt Advisors.

At December 31, 2006 there were no such first tossmitments or guarantees.

As of December 31, 2007, we funded approximateB;, @0 of our $2.5 million total commitment to PK&hich is an investment in the
Class A shares of PKSI.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
The following table summarizes our contractual calsligations and other commercial commitments d@3exfember 31, 2007:

Payments Due by Period

Contractual More than
Obligations Total 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 5 Years
Operating lease obligatiol $ 1,999,443 $ 422,27 $ 316,81t $ 304,64¢ $ 311,50 $ 318,51 $ 325,67
Long-term debt obligation 255,000,00 — — — — 255,000,00 —
Unused lending commitments 6,210,23. 6,210,23. — — — — —
Total $ 263,209,66 $ 6,632,500 $ 316,81t $ 304,64¢ $ 255,311,500 $ 318,517 $ 325,67

1 Represents the unfunded lending commitment in adiorewith revolving lines of credit or delayed fling draws on loans made to
portfolio companies.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

Recent Market DevelopmenRecent events in the subprime mortgage sector ingyacted the broader financial and credit markets a
have reduced the availability of capital for botbdwly syndicated loans (including capital avaiatd invest through CLO Funds) and middle
market loans. Even though we have no direct exgogsucommercial or residential mortgage debt (Suigor otherwise) or other consumer
borrowings, we believe that the recent reductiolignidity may affect both our middle market invesnt business and the asset management
business of Katonah Debt Advisors in several ways:

* We believe that the decrease in debt capital edail® both corporate borrowers and private ediritys may increase our future
interest income available for distributions to stockholders and to investors in CLO Funds becafisgher interest spreads on
loans.

»  We expect that greater structural protection thatlérs require for new loans, such as lower ovénalhcial leverage an
maintenance financial covenants, will increaseaggortunities for us to invest, since we have galhedecided not to invest in
highly leveraged o"“covenant ligt” credit facilities.

*  We expect that the interest spread on debt issydatire CLO Funds managed by Katonah Debt Advisolisneed to be higher
than that on debt of its existing CLO Funds, arad Katonah Debt Advisors may need to evaluate dthret structures to continue
the growth in its assets under management anchéeenie. Current CLO market conditions delayed thmpietion of several CLO
Funds which Katonah Debt Advisors had expecteatopiete during 2007 and may delay the completiohefremaining two
CLO Funds scheduled to be completed during the iretaaof 2008

Recent Company Developmer@s January 2, 2008, we acquired substantiallyfah@ assets of Scott’'s Cove Capital Management LLC
(“Scott’s Cove”), an asset manager focused on antedriven credit long short investment strategy.airesult of the acquisition, we acquired
approximately $60 million of fee paying assets urmdanagement. We plan to integrate the Scott’'s @osiness within the Katonah Debt
Advisors asset management platform. In connectidim tve acquisition, Katonah Debt Advisors entdred employment agreements with
three Scott’s Cove investment professionals, anéxpect these individuals will assist us in struoig, raising and investing new funds to be
managed by Katonah Debt Advisors.

On January 23, 2008, our wholly-owned asset manageaompany, Katonah Debt Advisors, closed a nelb $8illion CLO Fund. The
Company received a structuring fee upon closingkeatdnah Debt Advisors

64



Table of Contents

expects to earn an ongoing asset management fed baghe par amount of the underlying investmentse CLO Fund. Securities issued by
CLO Funds managed by Katonah Debt Advisors aregriiynheld by third parties. Kohlberg Capital intes approximately $29 million to
acquire all of the shares of the most junior cta#fssecurities of this latest CLO Fund.

Iltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MarkRisk

Our business activities contain elements of manikks. We consider our principal market risks tdlbetuations in interest rates and the
valuations of our investment portfolio. Managingdh risks is essential to our business. Accordjivgtyhave systems and procedures designec
to identify and analyze our risks, to establishrapgate policies and thresholds and to continuadbynitor these risks and thresholds by means
of administrative and information technology syssesnd other policies and processes.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is defined as the sensitivitpof current and future earnings to interest ratatility, variability of spread relationships,
the difference in re-pricing intervals between assets and liabilities and the effect that interatgts may have on our cash flows. Changes in
the general level of interest rates can affectratrinterest income, which is the difference betwie interest income earned on interest
earning assets and our interest expense incurreshimection with our interest bearing debt andilitids. Changes in interest rates can also
affect, among other things, our ability to acqurel originate loans and securities and the valugiofnvestment portfolio.

Our investment income is affected by fluctuatiamsarious interest rates, including LIBOR and prirages. As of December 31, 2007,
approximately 93% of our loans at fair value in partfolio were at floating rates with a sprea@tointerest rate index such as LIBOR or the
prime rate. We generally expect that future poidfolvestments will predominately be floating ratgestments. As of December 31, 2007, we
had $255 million of borrowings outstanding at aflog rate tied to prevailing commercial papersaikis a margin of 0.85%.

Because we borrow money to make investments, dunmestment income is dependent upon the diffexrdratween the rate at which-
borrow funds and the rate at which we invest telfuborrowed. Accordingly, there can be no asserémat a significant change in market
interest rates will not have a material adverseatfbn our net investment income. In periods afgisnterest rates, our cost of funds would
increase, which could reduce our net investmemrireif there is not a corresponding increase ier@st income generated by floating rate
assets in our investment portfolio.

We have analyzed the potential impact of changé@sémest rates on interest income net of intezgpense. Assuming that our balance
sheet at December 31, 2007 were to remain corstahho actions were taken to alter the existingr@st rate sensitivity, a hypothetical
increase or decrease of a 1% change in interest vaduld correspondingly affect net interest incqraportionately by approximately 1% o
a oneyear period. Correspondingly, a hypothetical inseear decrease of a 1% change in interest ratelworrespondingly affect net inter
expense proportionately by approximately 1% oveneryear period. Because most of our investmerideeémber 31, 2007 were floating rate
with a spread to an index similar to our financiagility, we would not expect a significant impaxt our net interest spread.

Although management believes that this measuraisative of our sensitivity to interest rate chasgit does not adjust for potential
changes in credit quality, size and compositiothefassets on the balance sheet and other budieesi®pments that could affect a net change
in assets resulting from operations or net incofeeordingly, no assurances can be given that actsalts would not materially differ from
the potential outcome simulated by this estimate.

We did not hold any derivative financial instrummefdr hedging purposes as of December 31, 2003orinection with the Facility
established on February 14, 2007 and as amend@dtober 1, 2007, our special
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purpose subsidiary may be required under certagnigistances to enter into interest rate swap agmetnor other interest rate hedging
transactions.

Portfolio Valuation

We carry our investments at fair value, as deteechin good faith by our Board of Directors pursuanprocedures approved by our
Board of Directors. Investments for which markebtgtions are readily available are valued at suatkat quotations. The Board of Directors
has retained an independent valuation firm to gethird-party valuation consulting services, whitimsist of certain limited procedures that
we identify and request the independent valuation fo perform. As of December 31, 2007, approxeha63% of our investments were
investments that were marked to market or for whwetutilized the valuation services provided by ittdependent valuation firm in connect
with the determination of fair value by our Boarfddirectors. Investments for which there is noeadily available market value are valued at
fair value as determined in good faith by our Boafrdirectors under a valuation policy and a catesitly applied valuation process. However,
due to the inherent uncertainty of determiningfttievalue of investments that cannot be markehaoket, the fair value of our investments
may differ significantly from the values that wouldve been used had a ready market existed forisuestments or from the values that
would have been placed on our assets by other mpaktcipants, and the differences could be malteni addition, changes in the market
environment and other events that may occur owelifih of the investments may cause the gainsssdse ultimately realized on these
investments to be different than the valuations éina assigned. The types of factors that we magyitdo account in fair value pricing of our
investments include, as relevant, the nature aalizedle value of any collateral, third party vdlaas, the portfolio company’s ability to make
payments and its earnings and discounted cash fil@amarkets in which the portfolio company doesitess, comparison to publicly-traded
securities, recent sales of or offers to buy comiplarcompanies, and other relevant factors.

Our Board of Directors is ultimately and solelypessible for determining the fair value of portéoinvestments on a quarterly basis in
good faith. Duff & Phelps, LLC, an independent \alan firm, provided, third party valuation consudt services to our Board of Directors,
which consisted of certain limited procedures thatBoard of Directors identified and requestedrtiie perform. For the year ended
December 31, 2007, our Board of Directors asked Rihelps, LLC to perform the limited procedures2il investments comprising
approximately 44% of the total investments at Yailue for which market quotations are not readigikable as of December 31, 2007. Upon
completion of the limited procedures, Duff & PhelpsC concluded that the fair value of those inwestts subjected to the limited procedures
did not appear to be unreasonable. In the futureBoard of Directors may continue to utilize tlee\sces of Duff & Phelps, LLC or may use
another third party valuation provider.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary De
Our financial statements are annexed to this AnReglort beginning on page F-1.

ltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.

Iltem 9A.  Controls and Procedure

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and ProceduréBhe Company’s management, under the supervisioméhdhe participation of
various members of management, including our Chiefcutive Officer (“CEO”) and our Chief Financiaff@er (“CFQ”), has evaluated the
effectiveness of the design and operation of aseldsure controls and procedures (as defined ie RB&-15(e) or Rule 15d-15(e) of the
Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covesethis report. Based upon that evaluation, our @B® CFO have concluded that our current
disclosure controls and procedures are effective 8% end of the period covered by this report.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finarad Reporting.Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining
adequate internal control over financial reportsgdefined in Exchange Rules 13a-15(f). Kohlbergit@hCorporation’s internal control over
financial reporting is designed to provide reastmalssurance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegettierally accepted accounting principles.

Our internal control over financial reporting indks those policies and procedures that:

» Pertain to the maintenance of records that, inore@isie detail, accurately and fairly reflect thengactions and dispositions of the
assets of Kohlberg Capital Corporatis

* Provide reasonable assurance that transactiome@reled as necessary to permit preparation ofi¢iahstatements in accordar
with generally accepted accounting principles, trad our receipts and expenditures are being malyeimaccordance with
authorizations of Kohlberg Capital Corpora’s management and directors;

» Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, oselisposition of our assets
that could have a material effect on our finanstatements

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of KohlteggaC Corporation’s internal control over finarigieporting as of December 31,
2007. In making this assessment, management usexitéria set forth by the Committee of Sponsof@irganizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integratedrmework. Based on management's assessment andctites@, management believes
that Kohlberg Capital Corporation maintained effeeinternal control over financial reporting asimécember 31, 2007.

Kohlberg Capital Corporation’s independent regiedigoublic accounting firm has audited and issuegpart on Kohlberg Capital
Corporation’s internal control over financial refiog, which appears in Item 15 of this report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportin. The Company’s management, under the supervisidméth the participation
of various members of management, including our @a@our CFO, has evaluated any change in the Quoytgpiternal control over financ
reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15()1d the Exchange Act). Management has conclutiatithere have been no changes in the
Company’s internal control over financial reportidgntified in connection with this evaluation tleicurred during the year ended
December 31, 2007 that have materially affectedremreasonably likely to materially affect, then@mny’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Iltem 9B.  Other Information
None.
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PART IlI

Iltem 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govenae

The information required by this item will be coimiad in the Proxy Statement under the headingspé®al 1: Election of Directors,”
“Control Persons and Principal Stockholders” andrfibrate Governance Principles and Director Infdiomd, to be filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on or prior to April 290&0and is incorporated herein by reference.

We have adopted a Code of Ethics that appliesrezidirs and officers of the Company and a Sarb@xésy Code of Ethics that applies
to directors, officers and employees of the Comp&uw¢h of these codes of conduct are publisheduswebsite at www.kohlbergcap.com.?
intend to disclose any future amendments to, ovevaifrom, these codes of conduct within four besindays of the waiver or amendment
through a website posting.

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatio

The information required by this item will be coimiad in the Proxy Statement under the headingspé®al 1: Election of Directors,”
“Executive Compensation,” “Compensation Committeiedlocks and Insider Participation” and “CompeimmsaCommittee Report”, to be filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission orrior po April 29, 2008, and is incorporated herbinreference.

ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners alinagement and Related Stockholder Matt:

The information required by this item will be cointed in the Proxy Statement under the headingsc@iikee Compensation” and
“Control Persons and Principal Stockholders”, tdilesl with the Securities and Exchange Commissioror prior to April 29, 2008, and is
incorporated herein by reference.

ltem 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independenci

The information required by this item will be cointed in the Proxy Statement under the headingsrSaetions with Related Persons”
and “Proposal 1: Election of Directors”, to be dileith the Securities and Exchange Commission gorior to April 29, 2008, and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Servici

The information required by this item will be cointed in the Proxy Statement under the heading ‘@sap2: Ratification of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm”, to be filed kvthe Securities and Exchange Commission on or twiépril 29, 2008, and is incorporated
herein by reference.
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PART IV
Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul

1. Financial Statements
The following financial statements of Kohlberg GapiCorporation (the “Company” or the “Registrandife filed herewith:

Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2007 and Dec&hp200¢€ F-4
Statement of Operations for the year ended DeceBthe2007 and for the period from December 11, 20@&ption) throug!

December 31, 2006 F-5
Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the yeagcBecember 31, 2007 and for the period from Deegrbb, 2006 (inception)

through December 31, 2006 F-6
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended DeceBhex007 and for the period from December 11, 2@@&ption) through

December 31, 2006 F-7
Schedule of Investments as of December 31, 200Dacdmber 31, 20C F-8
Financial Highlights for the year ended December2BD7 and for the period from December 11, 2006efption) througl

December 31, 2006 F-24
Notes to Financial Statemer F-25

2. Exhibits

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Description
3.1 Form of Certificate of Incorporation of Kohlberg @&l Corporation (the “Company”{
3.2 Form of Bylaws of the Compan{
4.1 Specimen certificate of the Company’s common stpek,value $0.01 per shafe.
4.2 Form of Registration Rights Agreemef.
4.3 Form of Dividend Reinvestment Pl&#.
10.1 Form of the 2006 Equity Incentive Pld#.
10.2 Form of Company Non-Qualified Stock Option Certifie.®
10.3 Form of Custodian Agreement by and among Kohlbepgital Corporation and U.S. Bank National Assooiati®
10.4 Form of License and Referral Agreement betweerCibmpany and Kohlberg & Company, LLE)
10.5 Form of Overhead Allocation Agreement between tben@any and Katonah Debt Advisors, LL&.
10.6 Form of Employment Agreement between the Compauyayl W. Pearsor®
10.7 Form of Employment Agreement between the CompanyMichael I. Wirth.®
10.8 Form of Employment Agreement between the CompauyRanJon Corles$)
10.9 Form of Employment Agreement between the CompandyEaA. Kratzman
10.10 Form of Employment Agreement between Katonah Dehtigors and E.A. Kratzma
10.11 Form of Indemnification Agreement for Officers aditectors of the Companyf)

69



Table of Contents

E)L(Jrrllwtl)al;r Description

10.12 Execution Copy of Loan Funding and Servicing Agreatdated as of February 14, 2007, by and amondpkéai Capital Fundir
LLC I, Kohlberg Capital Corporation, each of thendait lenders and institutional lenders from tirngitme party thereto, each of
the lender agents from time to time party therBtdO Capital Markets Corp., as the Agent, Lyon FiciahServices, Inc. (d/b/a

U.S. Bank Portfolio Services), as the Backup Sesjiand U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee.

10.13 Execution Copy of First Amendment to Loan Funding &ervicing Agreement, dated as of May 30, 2097rid among
Kohlberg Capital Funding LLC I, the Company, eatthe conduit lenders and institutional lendersxfriime to time party
thereto, each of the lender agents from time te fiarty thereto, BMO Capital Markets Corp., asAgent, Lyon Financial

Services, Inc. (d/b/a U.S. Bank Portfolio Services)the Backup Servicer, and U.S. Bank Nationab8ition, as Truste&)

10.14 Execution Copy of Second Amendment to Loan Fundimg) Servicing Agreement, dated as of October 17 209 and amon
Kohlberg Capital Funding LLC I, the Company, ea€lthe conduit lenders and institutional lendersifriime to time party
thereto, each of the lender agents from time te frarty thereto, BMO Capital Markets Corp., asAbent, Lyon Financial

Services, Inc. (d/b/a U.S. Bank Portfolio Serviges)the Backup Servicer, and U.S. Bank NationabAgtion, as Truste)

10.15 Execution Copy of Third Amendment to Loan Funding &ervicing Agreement, dated as of November 207 2By and amon
Kohlberg Capital Funding LLC I, the Company, ea€lthe conduit lenders and institutional lendersifriime to time party
thereto, each of the lender agents from time te fi@rty thereto, BMO Capital Markets Corp., asAgent, Lyon Financial
Services, Inc. (d/b/a U.S. Bank Portfolio Services)the Backup Servicer, and U.S. Bank NationabAtion, as Truste

10.16 Execution Copy of Purchase and Sale Agreement @ated February 14, 2007, by and among Kohlbergt@lgpunding LLC |
and the Company?

211 List of Subsidiaries

23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Reged Public Accounting Firn

31.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant tal® 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 12384adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant talR 13a-14 of the Securities Act of 1934, as adbptesuant to Section 302 of
the Sarban¢«Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification pursuant teciion 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United Staiesle, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification pursuant teion 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United Staiesle, as adopted pursuan

Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

@ Incorporated by reference to the similarly letteegdlibit included in Pre-Effective Amendment Noori Form N-2, as filed on October 6,
2006 (File No. 333-136714).

@ Incorporated by reference to the similarly letteegdlibit included on Form N-2, as filed on March 2607 (File No. 333-141382).

@ Incorporated by reference to the similarly letteegflibit included in Pre-Effective Amendment Naor2 Form N-2, as filed on
November 20, 2006 (File No. 3-136714).

@ Incorporated by reference to the similarly letteegflibit included in Pre-Effective Amendment Naor8 Form N-2, as filed on
November 24, 2006 (File No. 3-136714).

®)  Incorporated by reference to the exhibit includethie Annual Report on Form 10-K, as filed on Ma2&h 2007 (File No. 814-00735).

®  Incorporated by reference to the similarly letteegtlibit included in Pre-Effective Amendment Noori Form N-2, as filed on
October 18, 2007 (File No. 333-146190).

(M Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of ther€nt Report on Form 8-K, as filed on February2@)7 (File No. 814-00735).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

K OHLBERGC APITAL C ORPORATION

Date: March 14, 200 By /s/ _DAYL W. PEARSON

Dayl W. Pearson
President and Chief Executive Officer

* k k k%

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and orddtes indicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl _DaAvyL W. PEARSON President and Chief Executive Offic March 14, 200¢
D AYL W. P EARSON (principal executive officel
/sl MICHAEL |. W IRTH Chief Financial Officer,  Chief Compliance March 14, 2008
M ICHAEL I. W IRTH Officer, Secretary and Treasurer

(principal financial and accounting office

/s/ CHRISTOPHERL ACOVARA Member of the Board of Directors March 14, 2008
C HRISTOPHER L ACOVARA

/sl JAMmES A. K OHLBERG Member of the Board of Directo March 14, 200¢
JAMES A. K OHLBERG

/sl SAMUEL P. FRIEDER Member of the Board of Directo March 14, 200¢
S AMUEL P. F RIEDER

/s/ GARY C ADEMARTORI Member of the Board of Directors March 14, 2008
G ARY C ADEMARTORI

/s/ C. MICHAEL JACOBI Member of the Board of Directo March 14, 200¢
C. M ICHAEL J ACOBI

/s/  ALBERTG. PASTINO Member of the Board of Directors March 14, 2008
A LBERT G. P ASTINO

/s/ C. TURNEY STEVENS, JR. Member of the Board of Directo March 14, 200¢
C.TURNEY STEVENS , JR.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Kohlberg Capital Corporation

We have audited the accompanying balance sheé&tstiiberg Capital Corporation (the “Company”), inding the schedules of
investments, as of December 31, 2007 and 2006thenictlated statements of operations, changesd iassets, cash flows and the financial
highlights for the year ended December 31, 2007fanthe period December 11, 2006 (inception) tgfoDecember 31, 2006. These financial
statements and financial highlights are the respditg of the Company’s management. Our respottigybis to express an opinion on the
financial statements and financial highlights basedur audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamlogUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aHasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemenielhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. Our procedures includefiroation of securities owned as of December 3D72®y correspondence with the
custodian and selling or agent banks; where replégge not received from selling or agent bankspesormed other auditing procedures. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable asisur opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements presailyf in all material respects, the financial gimsi of Kohlberg Capital Corporation at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results opisations, its changes in net assets, its casls #md the financial highlights for the year
ended December 31, 2007 and for the period Decefrlher006 (inception) through December 31, 200@pimformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stafesmerica.

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statemehésfinancial statements include investments \hate5505,311,692 (approximately
95% of total assets) and $249,212,379 (approxim&®&do of total assets) as of December 31, 20072808, respectively, whose fair values
have been estimated by management in the absemneadily determinable fair values. Management estés of fair value are based on a range
of factors, including but not limited to the priaewhich the investment was acquired, the natutbefnvestment, private and public
comparables used to determine enterprise valuealb¥i@ancial condition, current and projected mgigng performance and discounted cash
flow models.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
Company'’s internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2007, based on the criterébkstied in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commission and our tegeted March 14, 2008 expressed
an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internatteol over financial reporting.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
New York, NY
March 14, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Kohlberg Capital Corporation:

We have audited the internal control over financéplorting of Kohlberg Capital Corporation (the ‘f@pany”) as of December 31, 2007,
based on criteria established in Internal Contraitedgrated Framework issued by the Committee of §grimg Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. The Company’s management is resporfgibleaintaining effective internal control ovendincial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting, included in the accomyag Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting at Item 9A. Ouspensibility is to express an opinion on the Conypaimternal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri@d@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetiefenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness et@st#ig and evaluating the design and operatifegtdfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsreg considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supenvigi the company’s principal
executive and principal financial officers, or gars performing similar functions, and effected lng tompany’s board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reakoaaturance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles. A comfsaimternal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras(tt) pertain to the maintenance of records thagasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of tree&sof the company; (2) provide reasonable asseriat transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statein accordance with generally accepted acaogiptiinciples, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ordgdordance with authorizations of management amdtirs of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prereatitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiosg, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on tlanfial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcolhover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatemdue to error or fraud may not be preventatketected on a timely basis. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenekthe internal control over financial reportingftdure periods are subject to the risk that the
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance wWithpolicies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over ficaal reporting as of December 31,
2007, based on the criteria established in InteBoaitrol—Integrated Framework issued by the Congaitif Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the balance
sheets of the Company, including the schedulesvafstments, as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 henetfated statements of operations,
changes in net assets, cash flows and the findnighlights for the year ended December 31, 20@rfanthe period December 11, 2006
(inception) through December 31, 2006 and our tegeted March 14, 2008 expressed an unqualifiedioapion those financial statements and
financial highlights and included an explanatorygomaph regarding investments whose fair valueg baen estimated by management in the
absence of readily determinable fair values.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
New York, NY
March 14, 2008
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KOHLBERG CAPITAL CORPORATION
BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Investments at fair valu
Investments in debt securities (cost: 2—$423,439,764; 20(—$190,767,384
Investments in CLO fund securities managed by rféiliages (cost: 2007—$15,385,580; 2006—
$10,970,000
Investments in CLO fund securities managed byiafél(cost: 2007—$20,675,684; 2006—
$9,900,000;
Investments in equity securities (cost: 2—$5,043,950; 20—$0)
Investments in asset manager affiliates (cost: —$33,469,995; 20(—$33,394,995
Total investments at fair valt
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cas
Interest and dividends receival
Due from affiliates
Other asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES

Borrowings (none maturing within one ye
Payable for open trad:

Accounts payable and accrued expel
Due to affiliates

Dividend payable

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (note

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stock, par value $.01 per share, 100,00G;0600n0on shares authorized; 18,017,699
17,946,333 common shares issued and outstandbgcatmber 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006,
respectively

Capital in excess of par vali

Undistributed (distribution in excess of) net inveent income

Undistributed net realized gai

Net unrealized appreciation on investme

Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

December 31,

2007

2006

$410,954,08  $190,767,38
9,900,001 10,970,00
21,120,00 9,900,001
4,752,25 —
58,585,36 37,574,99
505,311,69 249,212 37
12,088,52 32,404,49
7,114,36. —
5,592,63 602,08!
540,77: —
2,493,96. 156,89
$533,141,95  $282,375,84
255,000,00 —
5,905,00! 24,183,04
6,141,89. 1,704,54
— 87,83
7,026,90: —
$274,073,79  $ 2597542
180,17 179,46
253,253,15 251,550,42
(1,661,88) 489,46
— 1,077
7,296,71! 4,180,001
259,068,16 256,400,42
$533,141,95  $282,375,84
$ 143t $ 14.2¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinrancial statements.
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KOHLBERG CAPITAL CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Investment Income:
Interest from investments in debt securi
Interest from cash and cash equivale
Dividends from investments in CLO fund securitieanaged by nc-affiliates
Dividends from investments in CLO fund securitiesnaged by affiliats
Dividends from affiliate asset manag
Capital structuring service fe
Total investment incom
Expenses:
Interest and amortization of debt issuance ¢
Compensatiol
Professional fee
Insurance
Organizational expens:
Administrative and othe
Total expense
Net Investment Income before Income Tax Expens
Excise taxe:
Net Investment Income
Realized And Unrealized Gains (Losses) On Investmen
Net realized gains from investment transacti
Net change in unrealized losses on debt secu
Net change in unrealized loss on equity secur
Net change in unrealized gains on affiliate assmtager investmen
Net change in unrealized losses on CLO fund seesitihanaged by n-affiliates
Net change in unrealized gains on CLO fund seesrithanaged by affilial
Net realized and unrealized gain on investm
Net Increase (Decrease) In Stockholde’ Equity Resulting From Operations

Earnings Per Common Sh—Basic and Dilutec
Net Investment Income Per Common S—Basic and Dilutec
Net Investment Income and Net Realized Gains ParrGan
Shar—Basic and Dilutec
Weighted Average Shares Of Common Stock Outsta—Basic and Dilutec

For the Year Endec

December 31, 200

$ 29,606,23
552,50¢
4,528,02:
2,532,95.
500,00(
759,30:

38,479,01

7,229,59
4,104,76:.
2,887,51!

174,64°

15,720,06
22,758,94

22,758,94

266,31
(12,485,68)
(291,70
20,935,36
(5,485,58))
444,31
3,383,03

$ 2614198

$ 1.4t
$ 1.27
$

1.2¢
17,977,34

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinrancial statements.
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For the Period
December 11, 20C

(inception)
through
December 31, 20C

$ 572,06!
132,84
377,50¢

27,70(

41,794
1,151,90:

175,18t
371,62
12,82
40,00(
41,64
641,271
510,62
(21,167
489,46

1,07

4,180,001

4,181,007
$ 4,670,541
$ 0.2€
$ 0.0z
$

0.0¢
17,946,33
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KOHLBERG CAPITAL CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Operations:

Net investment incom
Net realized gains from investment transacti
Net change in unrealized gains on investm

Net increase in net assets resulting from opera

Shareholder distributions:

Dividends from net investment incor
Distributions in excess of net investment incc
Distributions from realized gair

Net decrease in net assets resulting from sharehdistributions

Capital share transactions:

Issuance of common stc—initial public offering
Issuance of common stc—for interest in affiliate compar
Issuance of common stc—for interest in CLO securities managed by affili
Issuance of common stock under dividend reinvestmpiam
Stock based compensati
Net increase in net assets resulting from caplitatestransactior
Net assets at beginning of peri
Net assets at end of period (including distribugionexcess of net investment income of $1,661
in 2007 and accumulated undistributed net investrimeome of $489,463 in 20(

Net asset value per common sh
Common shares outstanding at end of pe

For the Year

For the Period
December 11,
2006 (inception)

Ended through
December 31, December 31,
2007 2006
$ 22,758,94 $ 489,46:

266,31° 1,077
3,116,71 4,180,001
26,141,98 4,670,541
(22,758,94) =
(2,151,34) —
(267,39, —
(25,177,68) —
— 199,451,38
— 33,394,99
— 18,870,00
1,103,24! —
600,20( 13,50(
1,703,44! 251,729,88
256,400,422 —
$259,068,16 $256,400,42
$ 14.3¢ $ 14.2¢
18,017,69 17,946,33

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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KOHLBERG CAPITAL CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:

For the Year Endec

December 31, 200

For the Period
December 11, 20C

(inception)
through
December 31, 20C

Net increase in stockholdr equity resulting from operatior $ 26,141,98 $ 4,670,541
Adjustments to reconcile net increase in stockhg’ equity resulting fron
operations to net cash used in operating activi
Net realized gain on investment transacti (266,31)) (1,077)
Net unrealized gain on investmel (3,116,71) (4,180,001)
Net accretion of discount on securit (677,117 (3,819
Purchases of investmer (360,558,61) (169,112,75)
Paymer-in-kind interest (502,48 —
Proceeds from sale and redemption of investnr 90,743,88 533,31!
Stock based compensation expe 600,20( 13,50(
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Increase in interest and dividends receivi (4,990,55) (602,08f)
Increase in other ass¢ (2,337,07) (156,89()
Increase in due from affilia (540,77 —
Increase in accounts payable and accrued exp 4,437,34 1,704,541
Increase (decrease) in due to affili (87,839 87,83:
Net cash used in operating activit (251,154,05) (167,046,89)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from issuance of common s — 199,451,38
Dividends and distributions paid in ce (17,047,54) —
Borrowings 255,000,00 —
Increase in restricted ca 7,114,369 —
Net cash provided by financing activiti 230,838,09 199,451,38
Change in cash and cash equivalt (20,315,96) 32,404,49
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe 32,404,49 —
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe $ 12,088,52 $ 32,404,49
Supplemental Informatior
Interest paid during the peric $ 5,474,19: $ —
Non-cash dividends paid during the period under divitlexinvestment pla $ 1,103,24! $ —
Cash restricted during the period under terms ofirggl revolving credit facilit $ 7,093,59: $ —
Issuance of common stock for affiliate investm $ — $ 33,394,99
Issuance of common stock for CLO equity investmemsaged by affiliat $ — $ 18,870,00
Non-cash settlement of warehoused lo $ 13,293,67 $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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Debt Securities and Bond Portfolic

Portfolio Company / Principal Business

Advanced Lighting Technologies, Ir
Home and Office Furnishings,
Housewares, and Durable Consum
Products

Advanced Lighting Technologies, Irfc.
Home and Office Furnishings,
Housewares, and Durable Consumer
Products

Advanced Lighting Technologies, Irfc.
Home and Office Furnishings,
Housewares, and Durable Consum
Products

Advanced Lighting Technologies, Irfc.
Home and Office Furnishings,
Housewares, and Durable Consumer
Products

Aero Products International, Int.
Personal and Non Durable Consum
Products (Mfg. Only

Aerostructures Acquisition LLE
Aerospace and Defense

Aerostructures Acquisition LLE€
Aerospace and Defen

AGA Medical Corporatiort
Healthcare, Education and Childcare

AGS LLCS®
Hotels, Motels, Inns, and Gaming

AGS LLCS®
Hotels, Motels, Inns, and Gaming

Allen-Vanguard Corporatiof
Aerospace and Defen

AmerCable Incorporated
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-
Construction, No-Electronic)

Astoria Generating Compat
Acquisitions, LLCS
Utilities

Atlantic Marine Holding Compan$
Cargo Transpor

KOHLBERG CAPITAL CORPORATION
SCHEDULES OF INVESTMENTS
As of December 31, 2007

Investment
Interest Rate 1/ Maturity

Principal

Value 2

Senior Secured Lo—Revolving Loar
7.5%, Due 6/13

Junior Secured Lo—Seconc
Lien Term Loan Note
11.1%, Due 6/14

Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan (Firs
Lien)
7.9%, Due 6/13

Senior Secured Loan—Deferred Draw
Term Loan (First Lien)
7.5%, Due 6/13

Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan
8.8%, Due 4/12

Senior Secured Loan—Delayed Draw
Term Loan
7.9%, Due 3/1:

Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan
7.8%, Due 3/13

Senior Secured Loan—Tranche B Term
Loan
7.2%, Due 4/1:

Senior Secured Lo—Delayed Draw
Term Loan
7.7%, Due 5/1:

Senior Secured Lo—Initial Term
Loan
7.9%, Due 5/1:

Senior Secured Loan—US Term Loa
12.0%, Due 9/12

Senior Secured Lo—Initial Term
Loan
8.4%, Due 6/14

Junior Secured Lo—Second Lier
Term Loan C
8.7%, Due 8/13

Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan
7.1%, Due 3/14
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$ —

5,000,00!

3,573,00!

650,26¢

3,700,00!

500,00(

6,378,12!

3,832,20!

579,19

4,802,41!

2,309,73!

6,965,00!

4,000,001

1,739,46!

4,990,90!

3,573,00!

650,26¢

3,700,00!

500,00(

6,378,12!

3,829,34.

562,33:

4,732,59:

2,277,02

6,965,00!

4,049,43I

1,750,59!

5,000,00!

3,573,00!

650,26t

3,681,50!

497,50(

6,378,12!

3,654,97!

550,23:

4,562,29

2,277,02

6,965,00

3,900,00!

1,730,76!
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Portfolio Company / Principal Business

Aurora Diagnostics, LLC
Healthcare, Education and Childca

Awesome Acquisition Company (CiCi's PizZa)
Personal, Food and Miscellaneous Servi

AZ Chem US Inc$
Chemicals, Plastics and Rubk

Bankruptcy Management Solutions, Ifc.

Diversified/Conglomerate Servir

Bankruptcy Management Solutions, Ifc.

Diversified/Conglomerate Servii

Bay Point Re Limite@ ©
Insurance

Bicent Power LLC
Utilities

Byram Healthcare Centers, Inc.
Healthcare, Education and Childca

Byram Healthcare Centers, Ir
Healthcare, Education and Childca

Caribe Information Investments Incorporated

Printing and Publishinc

Cast & Crew Payroll, LLC (Payroll Acquisitiofi)
Leisure, Amusement, Motion Pictures,

Entertainmen

CEl Holdings, Inc. (Cosmetic Essenée)

Personal and Non Durable Consumer Prodt

(Mfg. Only)

Centaur, LLC?
Hotels, Motels, Inns, and Gamil

Centaur, LLC?
Hotels, Motels, Inns, and Gamil

Charlie Acquisition Corp.

Personal, Food and Miscellaneous Servi

Clarke American Corp.
Printing and Publishinc

Investment

Interest Rate 1/ Maturity Principal Cost Value 2
Senior Secured Lo—Tranche A Term Loa $ 4,060,000 $ 4,010,52. $ 4,019,82
(First Lien) 9.0%, Due 12/12
Junior Secured Loan—Term Loan (Second 4,000,001 3,973,45. 3,820,00!
Lien) 9.8%, Due 6/14
Junior Secured Lo—Second Lien Terr 4,000,001 3,956,58; 3,220,00!
Loan 10.6%, Due 2/14
Senior Secured Loan—First Lien Term Loan 1,975,00! 1,987,071 1,846,62!
7.6%, Due 7/12
Junior Secured Lo—Loan (Second Lier 2,468,75! 2,505,65. 1,987,34.
11.1%, Due 7/13
Senior Secured Loan—Loan 3,000,00! 3,019,48 3,019,48
9.6%, Due 12/10
Junior Secured Lo—Advance (Secon 4,000,001 4,000,001 3,730,00!
Lien) 8.8%, Due 12/14
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan A 10.1%, 3,733,69. 3,733,69. 3,733,69.
Due 11/11
Senior Secured Lo—Revolving Loan 9.7% 375,00( 375,00( 375,00(
Due 11/1C
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 2,815,53. 2,803,18! 2,709,95
7.3%, Due 3/13
Senior Secured Loan—Initial Term Loan 10,608,40 10,647,60 10,647,60
7.8%, Due 9/12
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 1,850,05: 1,751,541 1,665,041
7.5%, Due 3/14
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan (First 4,122,80 4,069,24. 3,978,50!
Lien) 8.8%, Due 10/12
Senior Secured Lo—Delayed Draw Tern — — —
Loan 8.7%, Due 10/12
Mezzanine Investment - Senior Subordina $10,127,50 $ 9,945,20. $ 9,945,20
Notes 15.5%, Due 6/1
Senior Secured Loan—Tranche B Term Loan 2,985,00i! 2,985,001 2,693,96:

7.3%, Due 6/14
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Portfolio Company / Principal Business

Clayton Holdings, Iné
Finance

Coastal Concrete Southeast, LLC
Buildings and Real Estate

Concord Re Limited
Insurance

CST Industries, Iné
Diversified/Conglomerate Manufacturir

DaimlerChrysler Financial Services Americ
LLC ©
Finance

Dealer Computer Services, Inc. (Reynold

Reynoldsf
Electronics

Dealer Computer Services, Inc. (Reynold

Reynoldsf
Electronics

Delta Educational Systems, Irfc.
Healthcare, Education and Childca

DeltaTech Controls, Iné.
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-
Construction, No-Electronic)

DeltaTech Controls, Iné.
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-
Construction, No-Electronic)

Dresser, Inc®
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-
Construction, No-Electronic)

Edgestone CD Acquisition Corp. (Custt
Direct) &
Printing and Publishing

Edgestone CD Acquisition Corp. (Custt
Direct) ®
Printing and Publishing

elnstruction Corporatiof
Healthcare, Education and Childca

elnstruction Corporatiof
Healthcare, Education and Childca

Emerson Reinsurance Ltd.
Insurance

Endeavor Energy Resources, L.P.
Oil and Gas

Investment

Interest Rate 1/ Maturity Principal Cost Value 2
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 614,32( 616,75: 552,88t
7.0%, Due 12/11
Mezzanine Investment—Mezzanine Term 8,120,91. 7,711,76! 8,120,91.
Loan 15.0%, Due 3/13
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 3,000,00! 3,024,01. 3,000,00!
9.2%, Due 2/12
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 987,50( 990,62: 990,62:
7.9%, Due 8/13
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan (Firs 1,995,00i 1,903,19: 1,923,51!
Lien) 9.0%, Due 8/12
Junior Secured Lo—Term Loan (Thirc 3,500,001 3,537,84 3,491,25
Lien) 12.3%, Due 4/14
Junior Secured Lo—Term Loan (Secon 1,000,001 1,009,54. 990,00(
Lien) 10.3%, Due 10/13
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 2,876,05: 2,876,05: 2,876,05:
8.3%, Due 6/12
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan (First 4,000,001 3,980,99. 3,980,99
Lien) 8.0%, Due 7/14
Junior Secured Lo—Term Loan (Secon 2,000,001 1,961,24 1,961,241
Lien) 11.7%, Due 1/15
Junior Secured Lo—Term Loan (Secon 3,000,00! 2,959,03 2,861,25!
Lien) 11.1%, Due 5/15
Junior Secured Lo—Loan (Second Lier 5,000,00! 5,000,00! 5,000,00!
10.8%, Due 12/14
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan (Firs $ 4,975,000 $ 4,980,821 $ 4,980,82
Lien) 7.6%, Due 12/13
Junior Secured Loan—Second Lien Term 10,000,000  10,000,00 10,000,00
Loan (Dec. 2007) 12.5%, Due 7/14
Senior Secured Loan—Initial Term Loan 4,970,01: 4,970,01: 4,970,01:
(Dec. 2007) 9.0%, Due 7/13
Senior Secured Lo—Series C Loal 3,000,00! 3,000,00! 2,985,001
10.2%, Due 12/11
Junior Secured Loan—Second Lien Term 4,000,001 4,000,001 4,000,001

Loan 9.6%, Due 3/1
F-10
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Portfolio Company / Principal Business

Fasteners For Retail, Int.
Diversified/Conglomerate Manufacturit

FD Alpha Acquisition LLC (Fort Dearbort)
Printing and Publishing

First American Payment Systems, L6P.
Finance

Flatiron Re Ltd3
Insurance

Flatiron Re Ltd3
Insurance

Ford Motor Company
Automobile

Freescale Semiconductor, li
Electronics

Frontier Drilling USA, Inc$
Oil and Gas

Ginn LA Conduit Lender, Inc
Buildings and Real Estate

Ginn LA Conduit Lender, Inc.
Buildings and Real Estate

Ginn LA Conduit Lender, Inc
Buildings and Real Estate

Gleason Works, The

Investment

Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-Construction, Senior Secured Lo—New US Term Loan 6.8%

Nor-Electronic)

Hawkeye Renewables, LLT
Farming and Agriculture

HealthSouth Corporatic
Healthcare, Education and Childca

HMSC Corporation (aka Swett and Crawfofd)

Insurance

Huish Detergents Iné.

Personal and Non Durable Consumer ProductsDue 10/14

(Mfg. Only)
Hunter Fan Comparfy

Interest Rate 1/ Maturity Principal Cost Value 2

Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 7,926,39. 7,940,721 7,728,23.
7.9%, Due 12/12
Senior Secured Loan—US Term Loan 915,40( 915,40( 901,66¢
8.3%, Due 11/12
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 3,694,000 3,694,000 3,601,65!
8.2%, Due 10/13
Senior Secured Loan—Closing Date Term Loan 3,664,48! 3,691,69 3,646,16!
9.1%, Due 12/10
Senior Secured Lo—Delayed Draw Term Loa 1,774,98 1,788,161 1,766,11
9.1%, Due 12/10
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 1,989,951 1,987,55. 1,845,67:
8.0%, Due 12/13
Senior Subordinated Bo—10.125%- 12/2016-  3,000,00 3,009,231 2,490,00!
35687MAP2 10.1%, Due 12/1
Senior Secured Loan—Term B Advance 8.7%, 2,000,000 1,997,87. 1,960,001
Due 6/13
Senior Secured Lo—First Lien Tranche / 1,257,14: 1,218,57¢ 1,026,14.
Credit-Linked Deposit
8.2%, Due 6/1:
Senior Secured Lo—First Lien Tranche B Tenr $2,701,71. $2,618,83! $2,205,27.
Loan 8.3%, Due 6/1
Junior Secured Loan—Second Lien Term Loa 3,000,000 2,680,27. 1,925,01
12.3%, Due 6/1:

2,437,28! 2,444,811 2,324,55
Due 6/13
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan (First Lien) 2,962,401 2,894,21'  2,346,64
9.0%, Due 6/1:
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 1,262,59. 1,266,541 1,208,40:
7.7%, Due 3/1:
Junior Secured Lo—Loan (Second Lien) 10.7¢ 5,000,001 4,803,38. 4,550,00!
Due 10/14
Junior Secured Loan—Loan (Second Lien) 9.1%,,000,00¢ 1,000,00! 811,66(
Senior Secured Loan—Initial Term Loan (First 4,161,07. 3,947,01: 3,682,54

Home and Office Furnishings, Housewares, a1 Lien) 7.4%, Due 4/14

Durable Consumer Produc
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Portfolio Company / Principal Business
Hunter Fan Companfy

Home and Office Furnishings, Houseware
and Durable Consumer Produc

Hunter Fan Comparfy

Home and Office Furnishings, Housewares,

and Durable Consumer Produc

IAL Acquisition Co. (International Aluminur

Corporationy Mining, Steel, Iron and Non-
Precious Metals

Infiltrator Systems, Inc®
Ecological

Inmar, Inc.8
Retail Store:

Intrapac Corporation/Corona Holdéo
Containers, Packaging and Gla

Intrapac Corporation/Corona Holdéo
Containers, Packaging and Gla

Jones Stephens Cofp.
Buildings and Real Estate

JW Aluminum Company
Mining, Steel, Iron and N¢-Precious Metal:

Kepler Holdings Limited
Insurance

Kepler Holdings Limited ©
Insurance

KIK Custom Products Iné.
Personal and Non Durable Consumer
Products (Mfg. Only

La Paloma Generating Company, LI
Utilities

LBREP/L-Suncal Master | LLC
Buildings and Real Estate

LBREP/L-Suncal Master | LLC
Buildings and Real Estate

LBREP/L-Suncal Master | LLC
Buildings and Real Estate
Legacy Cabinets, Inc.

Home and Office Furnishings, Houseware
and Durable Consumer Produc

Investment

Interest Rate 1/ Maturity Principal Cost Value 2
Junior Secured Lo—Loan (Second Lier 3,000,00! 3,000,00! 2,430,00!
11.6%, Due 10/14
Senior Secured Lo—Delayed Draw Tern — — —
Loan 7.2%, Due 4/14
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 4,039,70! 4,039,70! 4,039,70!
7.6%, Due 3/13
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 3,950,00! 3,937,85! 3,937,85!
8.4%, Due 9/12
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 4,962,50! 4,962,50! 4,813,62!
7.3%, Due 4/13
Senior Secured Loan—1st Lien Term Loan 5,850,00! 5,873,15. 5,873,15.
8.5%, Due 5/12
Junior Secured Loan—Term Loans (Secor  $ 3,000,000 $ 3,021,90° $ 3,021,90
Lien) 12.5%, Due 5/13
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 10,245,53  10,217,36 10,217,36
8.8%, Due 9/12
Junior Secured Loan—Term Loan (2nd Lie 5,371,42! 5,390,35! 5,210,28!
11.1%, Due 12/13
Senior Secured Lo—Loan 3,000,00t 3,000,00! 2,985,001
10.3%, Due 6/09
Senior Secured Loan—Loan 2,000,00! 2,020,13! 1,990,001
10.3%, Due 6/09
Junior Secured Lo—Loan (Second Lier 5,000,00! 5,000,00! 3,400,00!
9.8%, Due 12/14
Junior Secured Lo—Loan (Second Lier 2,000,00! 2,017,211 1,890,001
8.3%, Due 8/1:
Junior Secured Loan—Term Loan (Third 2,254,061 2,254,06! 2,006,121
Lien) 13.8%, Due 2/12
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan (Firs 3,920,00! 3,842,02. 3,567,20!
Lien) 8.2%, Due 1/10
Junior Secured Loan—Term Loan (Second 2,000,001 1,918,001 1,780,001
Lien) 12.2%, Due 1/11
Senior Secured Loan—First Lien Term Lo 2,955,00! 2,955,00! 2,955,00!

8.6%, Due 8/12
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Portfolio Company / Principal Business

Levlad, LLC & Arbonne International, LLE

Personal and Non Durable Consumer Product

(Mfg. Only)
LN Acquisition Corp. (Lincoln IndustriaB

Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-Construction,

Nor-Electronic)

LPL Holdings, Inc®
Finance

MCCI Group Holdings, LLC
Healthcare, Education and Childca

MCCI Group Holdings, LLC
Healthcare, Education and Childca

Murray Energy Corporatioh
Mining, Steel, Iron and N¢Precious Metal:

National Interest Security Company, L.LS
Aerospace and Defen

Northeast Biofuels, LIf
Farming and Agriculture

Northeast Biofuels, LI
Farming and Agriculture

PAS Technologies Inc.
Aerospace and Defen

PAS Technologies Inc.
Aerospace and Defen

Pegasus Solutions, In
Leisure, Amusement, Motion Pictures,
Entertainmen

Pegasus Solutions, Irft.
Leisure, Amusement, Motion Pictures,
Entertainmen

Primus International Iné.
Aerospace and Defen

QA Direct Holdings, LLC?
Printing and Publishinc

Resco Products, Iné.
Mining, Steel, Iron and N«Precious Metal:

Rhodes Companies, LLC, The
Buildings and Real Estate

Investment

Interest Rate 1/ Maturity Principal Cost Value 2
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 2,898,45 2,898,45 2,266,58!
7.2%, Due 3/14
Junior Secured Lo—Initial Term Loan (Secon 2,000,001 2,000,00¢ 1,970,00!
Lien) 10.9%, Due 1/15
Senior Secured Lo—Tranche D Term Loa 5,338,633 5,376,75. 5,131,76
6.8%, Due 6/13
Junior Secured Loan—Term Loan (Second Lier§1,000,00¢ $1,000,00¢ $1,000,00!
12.7%, Due 6/13
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan (First Lien 5,960,01¢ 5,940,01 5,960,01
9.4%, Due 12/12
Senior Secured Loan—Tranche B Term Loan  1,969,62( 1,979,45' 1,890,83!
(First Lien) 7.9%, Due 1/10
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 5,000,00 5,000,001 5,000,00!
9.7%, Due 12/12
Senior Secured Loan—Construction Term Loan 1,365,85. 1,368,72! 1,229,26!
8.5%, Due 6/13
Senior Secured Lo—Synthetic LC Term Loa 536,58! 537,71: 482,92
8.1%, Due 6/13
Senior Secured Loan—Incremental Term Loan 856,74 856,74 856,74
Add On 8.5%, Due 6/1
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 4,236,11. 4,211,611 4,211,61
8.4%, Due 6/1:
Senior Unsecured Bo—10.500%- 04/2015- 2,000,001 2,000,001 2,000,00t
705908AA9 10.5%, Due 4/15
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 5,755,000 5,755,000 5,755,001
8.1%, Due 4/13
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 3,259,27¢ 3,265,871 3,177,79
7.7%, Due 6/12
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 4,987,46' 4,938,58 4,950,06:
9.6%, Due 8/14
Junior Secured Loan—2nd Lien Term Loan 5,000,000 4,928,93i 4,928,93
13.1%, Due 6/14
Senior Secured Lo—First Lien Term Loar 1,878,78! 1,780,161 1,647,07

8.3%, Due 11/10
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Portfolio Company / Principal Business
Rhodes Companies, LLC, The
Buildings and Real Estate

San Juan Cable, LLE
Broadcasting and Entertainme

Schneller LLC?
Aerospace and Defen

Seismic Micro-Technology, Inc. (SM7P)
Electronics

Seismic Micro-Technology, Inc. (SMP)
Electronics

Sorenson Communications, Ir§c.
Electronics

Specialized Technology Resources, fc.

Diversified/Conglomerate Servir

Specialized Technology Resources, fc.

Diversified/Conglomerate Servii

Standard Steel, LLE
Cargo Transpor

Standard Steel, LL€
Cargo Transpor

Standard Steel, LLE
Cargo Transpor

Stolle Machinery Companfy
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-
Construction, No-Electronic)

Stolle Machinery Companfy
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-
Construction, No-Electronic)

TLC Funding Corp®
Healthcare, Education and Childca

TPF Generation Holdings, LLE
Utilities

TransAxle LLC
Automobile

TransAxle LLC®
Automobile

TUI University, LLC®
Healthcare, Education and Childca

Investment

Interest Rate 1/ Maturity Principal Cost Value 2
Junior Secured Lo—Second Lien Term Loe $2,000,000 $2,011,18' $1,266,68!
12.6%, Due 11/11
Junior Secured Lo—Second Lien Term Loe 3,000,00! 2,978,99 2,782,501
10.7%, Due 10/13
Senior Secured Loan—First Lien Term Loal 4,975,00! 4,927,88: 4,950,12!
8.7%, Due 6/13
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 995,00( 992,53 992,53
7.6%, Due 6/12
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 1,492,50! 1,488,79: 1,488,79:
7.6%, Due 6/12
Senior Secured Lo—Tranche C Term Loa 2,791,55. 2,807,10! 2,720,89
7.4%, Due 8/13
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan (First Lie 5,970,000 5,970,000  5,970,00!
7.3%, Due 6/14
Junior Secured Lo—Loan (Second Lien 7,500,000 7,500,000 7,500,001
11.8%, Due 12/14
Senior Secured Loan—Delayed Draw Term 825,69¢ 831,32 831,32
Loan 7.4%, Due 7/12
Senior Secured Lo—Initial Term Loan 7.3% 4,097,29: 4,125,20:i 4,125,20:i
Due 7/12
Junior Secured Loan—Loan (Second Lien) 1,750,001 1,760,24! 1,760,24!
10.8%, Due 7/13
Junior Secured Lo—Loan (Second Lien 1,000,001 1,015,11 975,00(
11.4%, Due 9/13
Senior Secured Lo—First Lien Term Loar 1,975,00! 1,985,12. 1,945,37!
7.9%, Due 9/12
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan (First Lien 3,930,000 3,850,591  3,959,47!
9.9%, Due 5/12
Junior Secured Loan - Second Lien Term L $2,000,000 $2,033,09¢ $1,890,00!
9.1%, Due 12/14
Senior Secured Lo—Revolver 490,90¢ 486,67¢ 488,83
8.2%, Due 8/1:
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 2,812,50! 2,812,50! 2,812,50!
9.2%, Due 9/12
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan (First Lien) 3,990,001  3,794,29.  3,810,45!

8.1%, Due 10/14
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Portfolio Company / Principal Business

Twin-Star International, Iné.
Home and Office Furnishings,
Housewares, and Durable Consumer
Products

United Maritime Group, LLC (fka Tec

Transport Corporatiorf)
Cargo Transpor

United Maritime Group, LLC (fka Teco

Transport Corporatiorf)
Cargo Transpor

Water PIK, Inc®
Personal and Non Durable Consumer
Products (Mfg. Only

Wesco Aircraft Hardware Corp.
Aerospace and Defen

WireCo WorldGroup Inc
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-
Construction, No-Electronic)

WireCo WorldGroup Inc.
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-
Construction, No-Electronic)

Wolf Hollow I, LP ¢
Utilities

Wolf Hollow I, LP ©
Utilities

Wolf Hollow I, LP ¢
Utilities

Wolf Hollow I, LP ¢
Utilities

X-Rite, Incorporated
Electronics

X-Rite, Incorporated
Electronics

Investment

Total Investment in Debt Securities and Bond

(158% of net asset value at fair value

Interest Rate 1/ Maturity Principal Cost Value 2

Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 7.8% 4,975,00! 4,975,00I 4,975,00!
Due 4/13
Junior Secured Lo—Term Loan (Secon 4,500,001 4,500,001 4,511,25I
Lien) 12.8%, Due 12/13
Senior Secured Loanist Lien Term Loa 2,000,00! 2,000,00! 2,000,00!
9.0%, Due 12/12
Senior Secured Loan—Loan (First Lien) 2,985,001 2,965,77 2,925,301
8.2%, Due 6/13
Junior Secured Loan—Second Lien Ter 4,132,88 4,166,44 4,132,88
Loan 10.6%, Due 3/14
Mezzanine Investme—11.0009— 5,000,001 4,762,01. 5,000,001
02/2015—97654JAB9 11.0%, Due 2/15
Mezzanine Investment—11.000%— 10,000,00 10,000,00 10,000,00
02/2015—97654JAA1 11.0%, Due 2/15
Junior Secured Lo—Term Loan (Secon 2,683,17 2,688,72. 2,555,72
Lien) 9.3%, Due 12/12
Senior Secured Loan—Acquisition Tern 783,98( 772,83 733,02:
Loan 7.1%, Due 6/12
Senior Secured Lo—Synthetic Letter o 668,41: 658,90( 618,28(
Credit
7.1%, Due 6/1.
Senior Secured Loan—Synthetic $ 167,10: $ 164,727 $ 154,57(
Revolver Deposits 7.1%, Due 6/12
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan (First 1,995,001 1,985,32! 1,985,02!
Lien) 8.5%, Due 10/12
Junior Secured Lo—Loan (Second Lier 1,000,001 1,000,001 1,000,001
12.4%, Due 10/13

$426,014,17 $423,439,76 $410,954,08
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Equity Portfolio

Portfolio Company / Principal Business
Aerostructures Holdings L.I
Aerospace and Defen

elnstruction Acquisition, LLC
Healthcare, Education and Childca

FP WRCA Coinvestment Fund VII, Lté.
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-
Construction, No-Electronic)

Park Avenue Coastal Holding, LLC
Buildings and Real Estafe

Coastal Concrete Southeast, L
Buildings and Real Estate’

Total Investment in Equity Securities
(2% of net asset value at fair value

CLO Fund Securities

Portfolio Company / Principal Business
Grant Grove CLO, Lt
Katonah Ill, Ltd.3

Katonah IV, Ltd.2

Katonah V, Ltd3

Katonah VII CLO Ltd.3°
Katonah VIII CLO Ltd3°
Katonah IX CLO Ltd? ®
Katonah X CLO LtcP °

Total Investment in CLO Fund Securities
(12% of of net asset value at fair value)

Portfolio Company / Principal Business
Katonah Debt Advisor

Asset Management Compe
PKSI

Distressed Investmer
PKSI

Distressed Investmer

Total Investment in Portfolio Companies
(23% of of net asset value at fair value)

Total Investments?®

Percentagt
Investment Interest Cost Value 2
Partnership Intere! 1.2% $ 1,000,000 $ 1,000,00
Membership Unit: 1.1% 1,069,81 1,069,811
Class A Shares 0.7% 1,500,00! 1,500,00!
Common Interests 2.C% 1,000,00t! 803,00(
Warrantst 0.9% 474,14( 379,44(
$ 5,043,951 $ 4,752,25
Percentage
Investment Interest Cost Value 2
Subordinated Securities 22.2% $ 4,415581 $ 4,250,00i
Preferred Share 23.1% 4,500,001 2,810,001
Preferred Shares 17.1% 3,150,00! 2,420,00!
Preferred Shares 26.7% 3,320,00! 420,00(
Subordinated Securitie 16.4% 4,500,00! 3,950,00!
Subordinated Securities 10.2% 3,400,00! 3,290,00!
Preferred Shares 6.9% 2,000,00:! 2,000,00:!
Subordinated Securitie 33.%5% 10,775,68 11,880,00
$ 36,061,260 $ 31,020,00
Percentagt
Investment Interest Cost Value 2
Membership Interest 100.(% 33,394,99 58,510,36
Class A Shares 100.(% 71,50( 71,50(
Class B Shares 35.% $ 3500 % 3,50(
$ 33,469,999 $ 58,585,36
$498,014,97  $505,311,69

1 A majority of the variable rate loans to our poliiccompanies bear interest at a rate that mayeberchined by reference to either LIB(
or an alternate Base Rate (commonly based on tter&le=unds Rate or the Prime Rate), which ressits-annually, quarterly, or
monthly. For each such loan, we have provided thigihited average annual stated interest rate ioteffeDecember 31, 2007.
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2 Reflects the fair market value of all existing istraents as of December 31, 2007, as determinedmbBaard of Directors.

3 Non-U.S. company or principal place of business oetsie: U.S.

4 Buildings and real estate relate to real estateeostip, builders, managers and developers anddelmortgage debt investments and
mortgage lenders or originators. As of Decembe2B0,7, we had no exposure to mortgage securitsgdgntial mortgage bonds,
commercial mortgage backed securities, or relassdtdbacked securities), companies providing mgetdending or emerging markets
investments either directly or through our investtseén CLO funds.

5 The aggregate cost of investments for federal irctar purposes is approximately $500 million. Thgragate gross unrealized

appreciation is approximately $27 million and tigg@egate gross unrealized depreciation is apprdarig;n&20 million.

Pledged as collateral for the secured revolvingitfacility (see Note 6 to the financial statengnt

Non-income producing.

Warrants having a strike price of $0.01 and exjuratate of March 2017.

An affiliate CLO Fund managed by Katonah Debt Advis

© 0w N O
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KOHLBERG CAPITAL CORPORATION

Debt Securities and Bond Portfolic

Portfolio Company / Principal Business
AGA Medical Corporation
Healthcare, Education and Childca

SCHEDULES OF INVESTMENTS
As of December 31, 2006

Investment

Astoria Generating Company Acquisitions, LLC Junior Secured Loan—Second

Utilities
Atlantic Marine Holding Compan
Cargo Transpor

Bankruptcy Management Solutions, i
Diversified/Conglomerate Servii

Bay Point Re Limited
Insurance

Byram Healthcare Centers, Ir
Healthcare, Education and Childca

Byram Healthcare Centers, Ir
Healthcare, Education and Childca

Capital Automotive REIT
Automobile

Caribe Information Investments Incorporated
Printing and Publishing

Cast & Crew Payroll, LLC (Payroll Acquisition)
Leisure, Amusement, Motion Pictures,
Entertainmen

Clarke American Corp.
Printing and Publishing

Clayton Holdings, Inc
Finance

Concord Re Limited
Insurance

CST Industries, Inc
Diversified/Conglomerate Manufacturit

Dayco Products LLC—(Mark IV Industries, Inc
Automobile

Interest Ratel/ Maturity Principal Cost Value 2

Senior Secured Loan—Tranche B Term Lo: $3,826,75. $3,823,341 $3,823,34!
7.4%, Due 4/1:

2,000,001 2,000,001 2,000,001
Lien Term Loan C 9.1%, Due 8/:
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 1,990,001 2,004,83! 2,004,83!
7.9%, Due 8/1:
Senior Secured Lo—First Lien Term Loar 1,995,001 2,009,86! 2,009,86!
8.1%, Due 7/1:
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 3,000,00! 3,026,00: 3,026,00
9.9%, Due 12/10
Senior Secured Lo—Revolver 375,00( 375,00( 375,00(
11.4%, Due 11/1
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan A 11.4% 4,000,00! 4,000,00! 4,000,001
Due 11/11
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 3,721,05; 3,730,26! 3,730,26!
7.1%, Due 12/11
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 6,315,89! 6,310,52 6,310,522
7.6%, Due 3/1:
Senior Secured Loantsitial Term Loan 8.6% 7,000,001 7,034,76: 7,034,76.
Due 9/12
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan B 8.6%, 2,478,13. 2,508,87. 2,508,87.
Due 12/11
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 811,55! 815,58t 815,58t
8.4%, Due 12/1:
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 3,000,00:! 3,029,77! 3,029,77!
9.6%, Due 2/12
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 997,50( 1,001,21! 1,001,21!
8.5%, Due 8/1:
Junior Secured LoanSecond Lien Term Loe $ 500,00( $ 501,86 $ 501,86:

11.1%, Due 12/1
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Portfolio Company / Principal Business

Dealer Computer Services, Inc. (Reynolds &
Reynolds)
Electronics

Dealer Computer Services, Inc. (Reynold
Reynolds)
Electronics

Delta Educational Systems, Inc.
Healthcare, Education and Childca

Fasteners For Retall, In
Diversified/Conglomerate Manufacturir

First American Payment Systems, L
Finance

Flatiron Re Ltd2
Insurance

Flatiron Re Ltd2
Insurance

Gentiva Health Services, Inc.
Healthcare, Education and Childca

Ginn LA Conduit Lender, Inc.
Buildings and Real Estate

Ginn LA Conduit Lender, Inc
Buildings and Real Estate

Ginn LA Conduit Lender, Inc.
Buildings and Real Estate

Gleason Work:

Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-
Construction, No-Electronic)

Hawkeye Renewables, LL
Farming and Agriculture

HCA Inc.
Healthcare, Education and Childca

HealthSouth Corporatic
Healthcare, Education and Childca

Infiltrator Systems, Inc.
Ecological

Intrapac Corporation/Corona Holdco
Containers, Packaging and Gla

Intrapac Corporation/Corona Hold
Containers, Packaging and Gla

Investment

Interest Rate 1/ Maturity Principal Cost Value 2
Junior Secured LoanSecond Lien Term Loe 1,000,001 1,011,18 1,011,18
10.9%, Due 10/13
Junior Secured Lo—Third Lien Term Loar 1,500,001 1,518,65:; 1,518,65:;
12.9%, Due 4/14
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 2,985,98 2,985,98 2,985,98
8.9%, Due 6/1:
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 5,000,00! 5,000,00! 5,000,00!
8.1%, Due 12/1;
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 3,990,00! 3,990,00! 3,990,00:!
8.6%, Due 10/1:
Senior Secured Loan—Closing Date Term 4,042,100 4,082,14: 4,082,14.
Loan 9.6%, Due 12/10
Senior Secured Lo—Delayed Draw Tern 1,957,89! 1,977,28 1,977,28
Loan 9.6%, Due 12/10
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 1,848,64! 1,848,64! 1,848,64!
7.7%, Due 3/1:
Senior Secured Loan—First Lien Tranche A 1,257,14. 1,207,29! 1,207,29!
Credit-Linked Deposit
5.3%, Due 6/1:
Senior Secured Lo—First Lien Tranche [ 2,729,14: 2,620,91 2,620,91
Term Loan 8.4%, Due 6/11
Junior Secured LoanSecond Lien Term Loe 1,000,001 851,05: 851,05:
12.4%, Due 6/12
Senior Secured Lo—First Lien US Tern 1,878,78: 1,888,12' 1,888,12'
Loan 7.9%, Due 6/13
Senior Secured Lo—First Lien Term Loar 2,992,48. 2,908,241 2,908,241
9.4%, Due 6/1:
Senior Secured Lo—Tranche B Term Loa $4,000,000 $4,037,30 $4,037,30
8.1%, Due 11/1:
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan B 8.6% 2,985,00! 2,996,12! 2,996,12!
Due 3/13
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 4,000,00!I 3,985,09! 3,985,09!
8.9%, Due 9/1:
Senior Secured Loan—1st Lien Term Loan 3,854,54! 3,864,11. 3,864,11.
8.4%, Due 5/1:
Junior Secured Lo—2nd Lien Term Loal 1,000,001 1,004,971 1,004,971

12.4%, Due 5/1.
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Portfolio Company / Principal Business
IPC Systems, Inc.
Diversified/Conglomerate Servir

Jones Stephens Corp.
Buildings and Real Estate

JW Aluminum Company
Mining, Steel, Iron and Non-Precious
Metals

La Paloma Generating Company, LI
Utilities

LBREP/L-Suncal Master | LLC
Buildings and Real Estate

LBREP/L-Suncal Master | LLC
Buildings and Real Estate

Legacy Cabinets, In
Home and Office Furnishings,
Housewares, and Durable Consun

Levlad LLC & Arbonne International LLC
Personal and Non Durable Consumer
Products (Mfg. Only

Longyear Canada, ULC (Boart Longyeéar)

Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-
Construction, No-Electronic)

Longyear Global Holdings, Inc. (Boz
Longyear)
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-
Construction, No-Electronic)

Longyear Global Holdings, Inc. (Bot
Longyear)
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-
Construction, No-Electronic)

LPL Holdings, Inc.
Finance

LSP Kendall Energy, LL(
Utilities

MCCI Group Holdings, LLC
Healthcare, Education and Childca

MCCI Group Holdings, LLC
Healthcare, Education and Childca

Metaldyne Corporatio
Automobile

Michaels Stores, Inc
Retail Store:

Investment

Interest Rate 1/ Maturity Principal Cost Value 2
Junior Secured Loan—Second Lien Tel 2,500,00! 2,500,001 2,500,00:!
Loan 11.9%, Due 9/1
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 7,000,00! 6,965,23! 6,965,23!
9.2%, Due 9/12
Junior Secured Loan—Term Loan (2nd 2,000,00! 2,000,00! 2,000,00!
Lien) 11.6%, Due 12/13
Junior Secured Lo—Second Lien Terr 2,000,00! 2,000,001 2,000,001
Loan 8.9%, Due 8/1
Senior Secured Lo—1st Lien 3,960,00! 3,842,671 3,842,67!
8.6%, Due 1/10
Junior Secured Loan—2nd Lien 2,000,001 1,891,03; 1,891,03:
12.6%, Due 1/11
Senior Secured Lo—First Lien Term 2,985,00! 2,985,00! 2,985,00!
Loan 9.2%, Due 8/12
Senior Secured Loan—First Lien Term 1,946,66 1,956,35: 1,956,35:
Loan 8.4%, Due 6/13
Senior Secured Loan—1st Lien Canadi 245,60 245,60 245,60
Borrower Term Loan
8.6%, Due 10/12
Senior Secured Lo—First DrillCorp $ 264,49! $ 264,49! $ 264,49
(DDTL) 8.6%, Due 10/12
Senior Secured Lo—First Lien US Tern 2,450,26. 2,450,26: 2,450,26.
Loan 8.6%, Due 10/12
Senior Secured Lo—Tranche C Tern 5,392,46: 5,414,88: 5,414,88.
Loan 8.1%, Due 6/1
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 1,922,98: 1,913,42! 1,913,42
7.4%, Due 10/1:
Junior Secured Loan—Second Lien Term 1,000,001 1,000,001 1,000,001
Loan 14.3%, Due 6/1
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 4,000,00! 4,000,00! 4,000,001
10.8%, Due 12/1.
Senior Secured Lo—Term D 1,997,47! 1,997,47 1,997,47!
10.1%, Due 12/0!
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 1,958,33: 1,958,33: 1,958,33:

8.4%, Due 10/1:
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Portfolio Company / Principal Business
Mirant North America, LLC
Utilities

Murray Energy Corporation
Mining, Steel, Iron and N¢Precious Metal:

Northeast Biofuels, LL(
Farming and Agriculture

Northeast Biofuels, LL(
Farming and Agriculture

PAS Technologies Inc.
Aerospace and Defen

Primus International Inc.
Aerospace and Defen

Rhodes Companies, LLC (Th
Buildings and Real Estate

Sorenson Communications, Inc.
Electronics

Standard Steel, LLC
Cargo Transpor

Standard Steel, LLC
Cargo Transpor

Standard Steel, LL¢
Cargo Transpor

Stolle Machinery Compan
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-
Construction, No-Electronic)

Stratus Technologies, Inc.
Electronics

Thermal North America, In¢
Utilities
Thermal North America, In¢
Utilities
TLC Funding Corp.
Healthcare, Education and Childca

TransAxle LLC
Automobile

TransAxle LLC
Automobile

United Air Lines, Inc.
Personal Transportatio

United Air Lines, Inc.
Personal Transportatio

Investment

Interest Rate 1/ Maturity Principal Cost Value 2
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 3,960,00i! 3,950,16: 3,950,16:
7.1%, Due 1/1:
Senior Secured Loan—Tranche B Term Loan 1,989,87. 2,004,61. 2,004,61.
8.4%, Due 1/1(
Senior Secured Lo—Construction Tern 1,365,85. 1,369,24: 1,369,24:
Loan 8.6%, Due 6/1
Senior Secured Lo—Synthetic LC 8.6%, Dt 634,14t 635,72: 635,72:
6/13
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 4,756,94. 4,721,56! 4,721,56!
8.6%, Due 6/1:
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan 3,292,18: 3,300,36! 3,300, 36!
7.9%, Due 6/1.
Junior Secured Lo—Second Lien Term Loe $2,000,000 $1,910,700 $1,910,70!
12.9%, Due 11/11
Senior Secured Loan—Tranche B Term Loan 2,978,52! 2,997,04. 2,997,04.
8.4%, Due 8/1:
Senior Secured Loan—Delayed Draw Term — 4,96¢ 4,96¢
Loan 1.0%, Due 6/1
Senior Secured Loantsitial Term Loan 7.9% 3,316,66 3,341,36! 3,341,36!
Due 6/12
Junior Secured Lo—Second Lien Term Loe 1,000,00! 1,009,94. 1,009,94.
11.4%, Due 6/1:
Senior Secured Lo—First Lien Term Loar 1,995,001 2,007,38I 2,007,38i
7.9%, Due 9/12
Senior Secured Loan—First Lien Term Loal 1,990,00! 1,985,07! 1,985,07!
8.4%, Due 3/1:
Senior Secured Lo—Credit Linked Deposi 400,00( 401,46¢ 401,46¢
8.1%, Due 10/0:
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 3,600,00:! 3,617,62 3,617,62
8.1%, Due 10/0:!
Senior Secured Loan—First Lien Term Loan  3,970,00! 3,871,45. 3,871,45.
12.3%, Due 5/1:
Senior Secured Loan—Revolver — — —
8.9%, Due 9/1:
Senior Secured Lo—Term Loan 2,962,501 2,962,501 2,962,501
8.9%, Due 9/1:
Senior Secured Lo—Delayed Draw Tranch 750,00( 750,00( 750,00(
B Loan 9.1%, Due 2/1
Senior Secured Loan—Tranche B Term Loan 3,250,00i! 3,250,00! 3,250,00!

9.1%, Due 2/1.
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Portfolio Company /Principal Business
Valleycrest Holding Co. (VCC Holdc¢
Diversified/Conglomerate Servii

Water Pik Technologies, Inc.
Personal and Non Durable Consumer
Products (Mfg. Only

Water Pik Technologies, In
Personal and Non Durable Consumer
Products (Mfg. Only

Wesco Aircraft Hardware Corp.
Aerospace and Defen

WM. Bolthouse Farms, Inc.
Beverage, Food and Tobac

Wolf Hollow I, LP

Utilities

Wolf Hollow I, LP
Utilities

Wolf Hollow I, LP
Utilities

Wolf Hollow I, LP
Utilities

Investment

Total Investment in Debt Securities and Bond

(74% of of net asset value at fair value)

CLO Fund Securities

Portfolio Company / Principal Business
Katonah IlI, Ltd.3

Katonah IV, Ltd3

Katonah V, Ltd3

Katonah VII CLO Ltd.3 6
Katonah VIII CLO Ltd.3 ¢
Katonah IX CLO Ltd3 6

Total Investment in CLO Fund Securities
(8% of of net asset value at fair value)

Interest Rate 1/ Maturity Principal Cost Value 2

Junior Secured Lo—Second Lien Terr $ 1,000,00! $ 1,007,46. $ 1,007,46
Loan 10.9%, Due 4/1
Senior Secured Loan—First Lien Term 902,31 902,31 902,31
Loan 7.6%, Due 6/13
Junior Secured Lo—Second Lien Terr 2,500,00! 2,512,43; 2,512,43;
Loan 11.9%, Due 12/13
Junior Secured LoanSecond Lien Terr 2,000,001 2,044,76. 2,044,76:
Loan 11.1%, Due 3/1
Senior Secured Loan—Term Loan (Fir 2,592,46. 2,586,02. 2,586,02:
Lien) 7.6%, Due 12/1
Senior Secured Lo—Acquisition Term 792,33t 778,54! 778,54t
Loan 7.6%, Due 6/1
Senior Secured Lo—Synthetic Letter ¢ 668,41 656,77¢ 656,77
Credit 7.6%, Due 6/1
Senior Secured Loan—Synthetic 167,10¢ 164,19! 164,19!
Revolver Deposits
7.6%, Due 6/1:
Junior Secured Lo—Term Loan 2,683,17 2,689,84; 2,689,84;
(Second Lien) 9.9%, Due 12/

$191,173,40 $190,767,38 $190,767,38

Percentage
Investment Interest Cost Value 2
Preferred Share 23.1% $ 4,500,000 $ 4,500,00!
Preferred Share 17.1% 3,150,00! 3,150,00!
Preferred Shares 26.7% 3,320,00! 3,320,00!
Subordinated Securitie 16.4% 4,500,00! 4,500,001
Subordinated Securitie 10.2% 3,400,00! 3,400,00!
Preferred Shares 6.9% 2,000,001 2,000,001
$ 20,870,000 $ 20,870,00
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Percentagt
Portfolio Company / Principal Business Investment Interest Cost Value 2
Katonah Debt Advisors Membership Interests 100.(% $ 33,394,99  $ 37,574,99
Asset Management Compe
Total Investment in Portfolio Companies
(15% of of net asset value at fair value) $ 33,394,99  $ 37,574,99
Total Investments® $245,032,37  $249,212,37

1 A majority of the variable rate loans to our polidaompanies bear interest at a rate that mayeberghined by reference to either LIB(
or an alternate Base Rate (commonly based on tter&led=unds Rate or the Prime Rate), which ressits-annually, quarterly, or
monthly. For each such loan, we have provided thigihited average annual stated interest rate ioteffeDecember 31, 2006.

2 Reflects the fair market value of all existing istreents as of December 31, 2006, as determinedmBaard of Directors.

3 Non-U.S. company or principal place of business oetsie: U.S.

4 Buildings and real estate relate to real estateeostip, builders, managers and developers anddelmortgage debt investments and
mortgage lenders or originators. As of Decembe2B06, we had no exposure to mortgage securisgd@ntial mortgage bonds,
commercial mortgage backed securities, or relasedtédbacked securities), companies providing mgetdending or emerging markets
investments either directly or through our investtsen CLO funds.

5 The aggregate cost of investments for federal irctar purposes is approximately $245 million. Thgragate gross unrealized
appreciation is approximately $4 million and thisr@o gross unrealized depreciation.

6 An affiliate CLO Fund managed by Katonah Debt Advss
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KOHLBERG CAPITAL CORPORATION

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
($ per share)

For the Period
December 11,

For the 2006 (inception)
Year Ended through
December 31, December 31,
2007 2006
Per Share Data:

Net asset value, at beginning of per $ 14.2¢ $ 15.0(
Underwriting costt — (0.97)
Pos-IPO net asset valt 14.2¢ 14.0:

Net investment incom@ 1.27 0.0z

Net realized gain 0.01 —

Net change in unrealized appreciation on invests 0.12 0.2¢

Distribution from net investment income and realigain—taxable (1.3) —

Distribution from net investment income and realiz@in—tax return of capite (0.09) —

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting dreration: — 0.2¢

Issuance of common stock under dividend reinvestmpiam 0.0€ —

Stock based compensation expe 0.0: —

Net asset value, end of peri $ 14.3¢ $ 14.2¢

Total net asset value retuéh 10.4% 1.5%
Ratio/Supplemental Data:

Per share market value at beginning of pe $ 17.3(C $ 15.0(

Per share market value at end of pe $ 12.0¢ $ 17.3(

Total market returi®) (22.5% 15.52%

Shares outstanding at end of pet 18,017,69 17,946,33

Net assets at end of peri $259,068,16 $256,000,42

Portfolio turnover rate 2450 0.2% @

Average debt outstandir $105,616,43 $ —

Average debt outstanding per sh $ 5.8€ $ —

Ratio of net investment income to average net a 8.504 4.4% ©)

Ratio of total expenses to average net assets 5.C% 4.6% ©

Ratio of interest expense to average net assets 2.7% —05®

Ratio of nol-interest expenses to average net a: 3.2% 6.39% ©)

(1) Based on weighted average number of common shatstnding for the period.

@  Total net asset value return (not annualized) exfin@ change in the net asset value per shardlfoéeginning of period net asset value
per share plus dividends, divided by the beginmegasset value per share.

@ Total market return (not annualized) equals thangkdn the ending market value over the beginnirgeoiod price per share plus
dividends, divided by the beginning price.

@ Not annualized

®)  Annualized.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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KOHLBERG CAPITAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION

Kohlberg Capital Corporation (“Kohlberg Capital” the “Company”) is an internally managed, non-déiféeed closed-end investment
company that is regulated as a business developroerany (“BDC”) under the Investment Company Alc1®40. The Company originates,
structures and invests in senior secured term Jaaagzanine debt and selected equity securitiesapily in privately-held middle market
companies. The Company defines the middle markebrprising companies with earnings before inteteges, depreciation and amortiza
(“EBITDA™), of $10 million to $50 million and/or ttal debt of $25 million to $150 million. The Compawas formed as a Delaware LLC on
August 8, 2006 and, prior to the issuance of shafrése Company’s common stock in its initial pehbdiffering, converted to a corporation
incorporated in Delaware on December 11, 2006.r Roids initial public offering (“IPO”), the Compey did not have material operations. The
Companys IPO of 14,462,000 shares of common stock raisegnoceeds of approximately $200 million. Priottie IPO, the Company isstL
3,484,333 shares to affiliates of Kohlberg & Cd.A (“Kohlberg & Co.”), a leading middle market paite equity firm, in exchange for the
contribution of their ownership interests in Katbridebt Advisors and in securities issued by calidized loan obligation funds (“CLO
Funds”)managed by Katonah Debt Advisors and two othertasaeagers to the Company. Katonah Debt Advisomsages CLO Funds whic
invest in broadly syndicated loans, high-yield b®add other credit instruments. As of Decembe280y, Katonah Debt Advisors had
approximately $2.1 billion of assets under managgme

The Company'’s investment objective is to generateenit income and capital appreciation from invesita made in senior secured term
loans, mezzanine debt and selected equity invessnireprivately-held middle market companies. TlmrPany also expects to continue to
receive distributions of recurring fee income amdi¢nerate capital appreciation from its investnietiie asset management business of
Katonah Debt Advisors. The Compasyhvestment portfolio as well as the investmentfptios of the CLO Funds in which it has investst
the investment portfolios of the CLO Funds mandge#atonah Debt Advisors consist exclusively ofditénstruments and other securities
issued by corporations and do not include any dsseited securities secured by commercial mortgagsilential mortgages or other
consumer borrowings.

The Company has elected to be treated as a Regjitatestment Company (“RIC”) under Subchapter Mhef Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended (the “Code”). To qualify as a € Company must, among other things, meet cestaince-of-income and asset
diversification requirements. Pursuant to this e the Company generally will not have to payparate-level taxes on any income that it
distributes to its stockholders.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The financial statements include the accounts@fdbmpany and the accounts of its special purppoaading subsidiary, Kohlberg
Capital Funding LLC I. In accordance with ArticloBRegulation S-X under the Securities Act of 1888 Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
the Company does not consolidate portfolio compangstments, including those in which it has a oahibg interest (Katonah Debt Advisors
and its affiliates currently is the only companyahich the Company has a controlling interestt®special purpose financing subsidiary.

The preparation of the financial statements in edaroce with accounting principles generally acogjmethe United States of America
(“GAAP") requires management to make significarttreates and assumptions that
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affect reported amounts and disclosure in the firrstatements, including the fair value of inveshts that do not have a readily available
market value valued at approximately $505 milliapgroximately 95% of total assets) and $249 mil{@pproximately 88% of total assets) as
of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Aaeesults could differ from those estimates anddifferences could be material.

Certain reclassifications were made to prior yeprésentation to conform to the current year.

Investments

Investment transactions are recorded on the afpdideade date. Realized gains or losses are cadusing the specific identification
method.

Loans and Debt Securities-or loans and debt securities for which markeitations are readily available, such as broadlygiated
term loans and bonds, fair value generally is etqu#iie market price for those loans and securikes loans and debt securities for which a
market quotation is not readily available, suclméddle market term loans and mezzanine debt inverstsn fair value is determined by
evaluating the borrower’s enterprise value andratiethodologies generally used to determine fdirezalhe analysis of enterprise value or
overall financial condition or other factors or imetiologies may lead to a determination of fair eadtia different amount other than cost; as a
general rule, the Company will value such loandeiit securities at cost, however such loans andsagehrities will be subject to fair value
write-downs when the asset is considered impaired.

Equity and Equity-Related SecuritieShe Company’s equity and equity-related securitieportfolio companies for which there is no
liquid public market are carried at fair value lzhsa the enterprise value of the portfolio compamlyich is determined using various factors,
including cash flow from operations of the porteoiompany and other pertinent factors, such astedgers to purchase a portfolio compasy’
securities or other liquidation events. The detaadifair values are generally discounted to accarnmestrictions on resale and minority
ownership positions. The value of the Company’stgand equity-related securities in public comganiior which market quotations are
readily available are based upon the closing pubéicket price on the balance sheet date. Secutitié arry certain restrictions on sale are
typically valued at a discount from the public metrikalue of the security. The Company’s investnieiits wholly-owned asset management
company, Katonah Debt Advisors, is valued basestamdard measures such as the percentage of asdetsmanagement and a multiple of
operating income used to value other asset managemmpanies.

CLO Fund SecuritiesThe securities issued by CLO Funds managed by Katdebt Advisors are primarily held by third pastidhe
Company typically makes a minority investment ia thost junior class of securities of CLO Fundsa@iand managed by Katonah Debt
Advisors and may selectively invest in securitesied by funds managed by other asset managenmepacies (collectively “CLO
Investments”). The Company distinguishes CLO fum@siaged by Katonah Debt Advisors as “CLO fund seearmanaged by affiliate.” The
Company’s CLO Investments relate exclusively talitreastruments issued by corporations and domadute any asset-backed securities
secured by commercial mortgages, residential mgetgeor consumer borrowings. It is the Companytarition that its aggregate CLO
Investments not exceed 10% of the Company’s totadstment portfolio. As of December 31, 2007, Clo@elstments represented
approximately 6% of the Company’s investment pdidfo

The Company'’s investments in CLO Fund securitiescarried at fair value, which is based eitheripthé net asset value of the CLO
Fund for CLO Funds which are approaching or pasetid of their reinvestment period and therefoggrbt sell assets and/or use principal
repayments to pay-down CLO Fund debt, or (ii) @alisited cash flow model for more recent CLO Fuhds ttilizes prepayment and loss
assumptions based on historical experience anégeg performance, economic factors, the charattariof the underlying cash flow and
comparable yields for similar bonds or preferredrsh to those in which the Company has investee Cdmpany recognizes unrealized
appreciation or depreciation on our investmentSli® Fund securities as comparable yields in the&katathange and/or based on changes in
net asset values or estimated cash flows resutimg changes in prepayment or loss assumptionseiuhderlying collateral pool. As each
investment in CLO Fund securities ages, the expeateount of losses and the expected timing of neitiog of such losses
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in the underlying collateral pool is updated arel téwvised cash flows are used in determining thevédue of the CLO Investment. The
Company determines the fair value of our investménCLO Fund securities on an individual secubyysecurity basis.

Valuation of Portfolio InvestmentdKohlberg Capital’s Board of Directors is ultimtand solely responsible for making a good faith
determination of the fair value of portfolio invesnts on a quarterly basis. Duff & Phelps, LLCjradependent valuation firm, provided third
party valuation consulting services to the Compamoard of Directors which consisted of certainitéd procedures that the Company’s
Board of Directors identified and requested therpadorm. For the year ended December 31, 2007Ctmepany’s Board of Directors asked
Duff & Phelps, LLC to perform the limited procedsaren 21 investments comprising approximately 44%heftotal investments at fair value
of December 31, 2007 for which market quotatiomsrant readily available. Upon completion of theited procedures, Duff & Phelps, LLC
concluded that the fair value of those investmeuntgected to the limited procedures did not apjpeae unreasonable.

The Board of Directors may consider other methddsatuation than those set forth above to deterrttieefair value of investments as
appropriate in conformity with GAAP. Due to the @rent uncertainty of determining the fair valugérsfestments that do not have a readily
available market value, the fair value of our iwesnts may differ significantly from the valuesttivauld have been used had a ready market
existed for such investments, and the differenoceddcbe material.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe Company defines cash equivalents as demausbitle Cash and cash equivalents are carriedsat co
which approximates fair value.

Restricted Cash Restricted cash consists mostly of cash heldhioperating account pursuant to the Company’s sea@volving credit
facility agreement with its lender.

Interest Income. Interest income, adjusted for amortization ofhpirten and accretion of discount, is recorded oraterual basis to the
extent that such amounts are expected to be aatlethe Company generally places a loan on non4atstatus and ceases recognizing
interest income on such loan or security when a twasecurity becomes 90 days or more past duetloe Company otherwise does not expect
the debtor to be able to service its debt obligetidNon-accrual loans remain in such status urgibborrower has demonstrated the ability and
intent to pay contractual amounts due or such lb@esme current. At December 31, 2007, no loamkebt securities were past due or on non-
accrual status.

Dividends from Affiliate Asset Manageilhe Company records dividend income from its @ffdiasset manager on the declaration date.

Dividend Income from CLO Fund SecuritiesThe Company generates dividend income from itestments in the most junior class of
securities of CLO Funds (typically preferred sharesubordinated securities) managed by Katonah Rétisors and selective investments in
securities issued by funds managed by other asmeagement companies. The Company’s CLO Fund siesuaite subordinate to senior bond
holders who typically receive a fixed rate of reton their investment. The CLO Funds are leverdgeds and any excess cash flow ex¢es:
spread” (interest earned by the underlying seegriti the fund less payments made to senior boligtsoand less fund expenses and
management fees) is paid to the holders of the Eud’s subordinated securities or preferred shdites.Company makes estimated interim
accruals of such dividend income based on recstdiical distributions and CLO Fund performance adplists such accruals on a quarterly
basis to reflect actual distributions.

Capital Structuring Service FeesThe Company may earn ancillary structuring afmgtofees related to the origination and or investme
in debt and investment securities.

Debt Issuance CostsDebt issuance costs represent fees and othet dists incurred in connection with the Compatgsowings.
These amounts are capitalized and amortized ratalgliythe contractual term of the borrowing. At Beder 31, 2007, there was an
unamortized debt issuance cost of approximatelmiibn
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included in other assets in the accompanying balaheet. Amortization expense for the year endex@ber 31, 2007 was approximately
$319,000. The Company had no borrowing facilitpliace or amortization of debt issuance costs afanthe period ended December 31,
2006.

Dividends. Dividends and distributions to common stockhaddsre recorded on the declaration date. The antour& paid out as a
dividend is determined by the Board of Directorshequarter and is generally based upon the earestipated by management for the period
and fiscal year.

The Company has adopted a dividend reinvestmenttp&t provides for reinvestment of its distribntioon behalf of its stockholders,
unless a stockholder “opts out” of the plan to nezeash in lieu of having their cash dividendsoaudtically reinvested in additional shares of
the Company’s common stock.

3. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following information sets forth the computatiof basic and diluted net increase in stockholdegsity per share for the years en
December 31, 2007:

For the Period
December 11, 200

(inception) through

Year Ended
December 31, 20C December 31, 200

Numerator for basic and diluted net increase inldtolder’ equity resulting

from operations per shal $ 26,141,98 $ 4,670,554
Denominator for basic weighted average she 17,977,34 17,946,33
Dilutive effect of stock options — —
Denominator for diluted weighted average shares: 17,977,34 17,946,33
Basic net increase (decrease) in stockha’ equity resulting from operatiot

per share $ 1.4F $ 0.2¢
Diluted net increase (decrease) in stockholdersitegesulting from

operations per shar $ 1.4t $ 0.2¢

1 All stock options outstanding are anti-dilutive.

4. INVESTMENTS

The Company invests in senior secured loans andanér debt and, in the future and to a lessengxtguity capital of middle market
companies in a variety of industries. The Compaaryegally targets companies that generate posiéish ilows because the Company looks to
cash flows as the primary source for servicing ddbtvever, the Company may invest in other indastii it is presented with attractive
opportunities.

The following table shows the Company’s portfolipgecurity type at December 31, 2007 and Decembe2(B6:

December 31, 200 December 31, 200

Security Type Cost Fair Value %_1 Cost Fair Value % *
Senior Secured Loé $265,390,84 $260,138,67 10(% $163,313,49 $163,313,49 64%
Junior Secured Loa 120,620,71 113,259,29 44 27,453,89 27,453,89 10
Mezzanine Investmel 32,418,97 33,066,11 12 — — —
Senior Subordinated Bor 3,009,233 2,490,001 1 — — —
Senior Unsecured Bor 2,000,00! 2,000,00:! 1 — — —
CLO Fund Securitie 36,061,26 31,020,00 12 20,870,00 20,870,00 8
Equity Securities 5,043,95! 4,752,25I 2 — - —
Affiliate Asset Manager 33,469,99 58,585,36 23 33,394,99 37,574,99. 15

Total $498,014,97 $505,311,69 195% $245,032,37 $249,21237 9%

1 Calculated as a percentage of net asset valué atfae.
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The unaudited industry concentrations, based ofeihgalue of the Company’s investment portfoloaf December 3, 2007 and

December 31, 2006, were as follows:

Security Type

Aerospace and Defen

Asset Management Companfes
Automobile

Beverage, Food and Tobac
Broadcasting and Entertainme

Buildings and Real Estate

Cargo Transpol

Chemicals, Plastics and Rubl

CLO Fund Securitie

Containers, Packaging and Gl

Diversified/Conglomerate Manufacturi

Diversified/Conglomerate Servit

Ecological

Electronics

Farming and Agricultur

Finance

Healthcare, Education and Childci

Home and Office Furnishings, Housewares, and Dal
Consumer Good

Hotels, Motels, Inns and Gamii

Insurance

Leisure, Amusement, Motion Pictures, Entertainn

Machinery (No-Agriculture, Nor-Construction, No-
Electronic)

Mining, Steel, Iron and N¢-Precious Metal

Oil and Gas

Personal and Non Durable Consumer Products (
Only)

Personal, Food and Miscellaneous Serv

Personal Transportatic

Printing and Publishin

Retail Store:

Utilities

Total

December 31, 200°

December 31, 200!

Cost Fair Value
$ 32,583,71 $ 32,481,81
33,469,99 58,585,36
5,286,73. 5,147,011
2,978,99! 2,782,50!
37,726,39 34,944,222
14,967,36 14,958,78
3,956,58.: 3,220,00!
36,061,26 31,020,00
8,895,05! 8,895,05!
8,931,34. 8,718,85!
17,962,72 17,303,96
3,937,85I 3,937,85!
15,830,38 15,158,50
4,800,65: 4,058,83!
11,590,69 11,209,822
46,715,87 46,637,70
24,091,18 23,265,81
9,364,16! 9,091,04.
24,346,88 23,941,76
18,402,60 18,402,60
39,573,33 39,483,41
16,338,44 16,069,75
5,997,87. 5,960,00!
17,315,77 14,750,09
13,918,65 13,765,20
21,622,99 21,236,47
4,962,50! 4,813,62!
16,384,93 15,471,59
$498,014,97 $505,311,69

1 Calculated as a percentage of net asset valué atfae.

2 Represents Katonah Debt Advisors and affiliates.

F-29

% 1
T13%
23
2

[

(=Y

ODNONNWWNEOW -

| = =
O N NODo

o N

195%
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$ 10,066,69 $ 10,066,69
33,394,99 37,574,99
9,192,10: 9,192,10.
2,586,02. 2,586,02.
19,288,90 19,288,90
6,361,11. 6,361,11.
20,870,00 20,870,00
4,869,08: 4,869,08:
6,001,21! 6,001,21!
5,517,32. 5,517,32.
3,985,09! 3,985,09!
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28,937,86 28,937,86
2,985,00! 2,985,00!
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7,034,76. 7,034,76.
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4,004,61. 4,004,61.
5,371,009 5,371,009
4,000,00! 4,000,00!
8,819,39! 8,819,39!
1,958,33: 1,958,33:
18,172,04 18,172,04.
$245,032,37 $249,212,37
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3 Buildings and real estate relate to real estateeostip, builders, managers and developers anddelmortgage debt investments and
mortgage lenders or originators. As of DecembeB0,7 and December 31, 2006, the Company had rusexpto mortgage securities
(residential mortgage bonds, commercial mortgag&dzhsecurities, or related asset backed secyritiesompanies providing mortgage
lending.

The Company may invest up to 30% of the investrmpentfolio in opportunistic investments in high-yddbonds, debt and equity
securities in CLO Funds, distressed debt or ecagiturities of public companies. The Company expéetisthese public companies generally
will have debt that is non-investment grade. Thenfany also may invest in debt of middle market canigs located outside of the United
States, which investments (excluding the Compaimysstments in CLO Funds) are not anticipated tokexcess of 10% of the investment
portfolio at the time such investments are madea Assult of regulatory restrictions, the Compangat permitted to invest in any portfolio
company in which Kohlberg & Co. or any fund thatianages has a pre-existing investment.

At December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, appairly 11% and 13%, respectively, of the Compaimyestments were foreign
assets (including the Company’s investments in Gu@ds, which are typically domiciled outside th&land represented approximately 6%
of its portfolio on such dates).

At December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, thep@owis ten largest portfolio companies represeafgaoximately 29% and 35%,
respectively, of the total fair value of its invegnts. The Company’s largest investment, Katondit Bdvisors which is its wholly-owned
portfolio company, represented 12% and 15% of dked fair value of the Company’s investments at&wsber 31, 2007 and December 31,
2006, respectively. Excluding Katonah Debt Advisamsl CLO Fund securities, our ten largest portfolimpanies represent approximately
17% and 21% of the total fair value of our investitseat December 31, 2007 and December 31, 20Q&ctigely.

Investment in CLO Fund Securities

The Company typically makes a minority investmenthie most junior class of securities of CLO Fuftgpically preferred shares or
subordinated securities) managed by Katonah DebisAds and may selectively invest in securitieséssby funds managed by other asset
management companies. It is the Company’s intettiahits aggregate CLO Investments not exceed di0¥te Company’s total investment
portfolio. Preferred shares or subordinated sdesrissued by CLO Funds are entitled to recurringldnd distributions which generally equal
the net remaining cash flow of the payments madthéyinderlying CLO Fund’securities less contractual payments to seniod bolders an
CLO Fund expenses. CLO Funds managed by KatonahAaktisors (“CLO fund securities managed by aff#g invest primarily in broadly
syndicated non-investment grade loans, high-yieklds and other credit instruments of corporatecissurhe underlying assets in each of the
CLO Funds in which we have any investment are gdlyadliversified secured or unsecured corporaté datl exclude mortgage pools or
mortgage securities (residential mortgage bondsyoercial mortgage backed securities, or relateetdsscked securities), debt to companies
providing mortgage lending and emerging marketgs$tments. The CLO Funds are leveraged funds anexamgs cash flow or “excess
spread” (interest earned by the underlying seegriti the fund less payments made to senior bolugtsoand less fund expenses and
management fees) is paid to the holders of the Eud’s subordinated securities or preferred stdskof December 31, 2007, all of the CLO
Funds in which the Company holds investments maieththe original issue credit ratings on all rattabses of their securities and were
continuing to make cash payments to all classésvektors. As of December 31, 2007, our CLO Furndisges had an average annual cash
yield of 28%. In addition, in connection with thiesing of Katonah Debt Advis’s most recent CLO Fund on January 23, 2008, wested
approximately $29 million to acquire all of the sisof the most junior class of securities of th&®d-und.

Prior to its IPO, the Company issued an aggregate?268,000 common shares, having a value of apmebely $19 million, to affiliates
of Kohlberg & Co. to acquire certain subordinatedwsities and
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preferred stock securities issued by CLO Fundsdiatt 111, Ltd., Katonah 1V, Ltd., Katonah V, LtdKatonah VII CLO, Ltd., and Katonah V
CLO, Ltd.) which had previously been raised andraamaged by Katonah Debt Advisors and two othestasanagers. During the year ended
December 31, 2007, the Company invested an addit®iil million in a new CLO Fund managed by KatoBedt Advisors and another $4
million in a CLO Fund managed by a third party. Bubordinated securities and preferred stock séesidare considered equity positions in
CLO Funds and, as of December 31, 2007 and Decedih@006, the Company had approximately $31 mildad $21 million, respectively,
of such CLO equity investments at fair value.

The cost basis of the Company’s investment in Clu@d-equity securities as of December 31, 2007 wpsoaimately $36 million and
aggregate unrealized losses on the CLO Fund siesuigtaled approximately $5 million. The cost basdfithe Company’s investment in CLO
Fund equity securities as of December 31, 2006appsoximately $21 million and with no aggregateaatized losses on the CLO Fund
securities.

5. AFFILIATE ASSET MANAGERS
Wholly-Owned Asset Manager

Prior to its IPO, the Company issued an aggrega262@6,333 common shares, having a value of apmately $33 million, to affiliates
of Kohlberg & Co. to acquire Katonah Debt Advisois. a result, Katonah Debt Advisors is a wholly-@drportfolio company. As of
December 31, 2007, Katonah Debt Advisors had apmraely $2.1 billion of assets under management.

Katonah Debt Advisors manages CLO Funds primaaihthird party investors that invest in broadly digated loans, high yield bonds
and other credit instruments issued by corporatibhese CLO Funds do not invest in asset-backadtities secured by commercial
mortgages, residential mortgages or other consboreowings. At December 31, 2007, Katonah Debt Adks had approximately $2.1 billion
of assets under management and the Company’s 108y eterest in Katonah Debt Advisors was valaedpproximately $59 million. As a
manager of the CLO Funds, Katonah Debt Advisorsives contractual and recurring management feeekhss a one-time structuring fee
from the CLO Funds for its management and adviseryices. The annual fees which Katonah Debt Adsiseceives are generally based on a
fixed percentage of assets under management, aiddaDebt Advisors generates annual operatingrecequal to the amount by which its
fee income exceeds it operating expenses. In fyeaes, Katonah Debt Advisors may receive accroeéntive fees upon the liquidation of
CLO Funds it manages, provided such CLO Funds haki@ved a minimum investment return to holdertheir subordinated securities or
preferred stock.

The Company expects to receive distributions ofiméieg fee income and to generate capital appriecidtom its investment in the asset
management business of Katonah Debt Advisors. Byinganvestments in CLO Funds raised by KatonahtPelvisors in the future, for
which the Company expects to receive a current gasinn, the Company can help Katonah Debt Advismraise these funds which in turn
will increase its assets under management whidhre@gllt in additional management fee income.

The revenue that Katonah Debt Advisors generatesigfin the fees it receives for managing CLO Fumdbkadter paying the expenses
associated with its operations, including compeasaif its employees, may be distributed to the @any. Any distributions of Katonah Debt
Advisors’ net income are recorded as dividends fedfiliate asset manager. As with all other investits, Katonah Debt Advisorfir value is
periodically determined. The valuation is primatigsed on an analysis of both a percentage ofset®.under management and Katonah Debt
Advisors’ estimated operating income. Any changealtue from period to period is recognized as uized gain or loss.
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As a separately regarded entity for tax purposesoi@ah Debt Advisors, L.L.C. is taxed at normapooate rates. For tax purposes, any
distributions of taxable net income earned by Katobebt Advisors to the Company would generallydneebe distributed to the Company’s
shareholders. Katonah Debt Advisors’ taxable nedrime will differ from GAAP net income for both defed tax timing adjustments and
permanent tax adjustments. Deferred tax timingsidjents may include differences between leasemaghents to GAAP straight line
expense and adjustments for the recognition anddiwf depreciation, bonuses to employees, stotkbgxpense, and interest rate caps.
Permanent differences may include adjustmentstdtions or disallowances for meals and entertaitregpenses, penalties and tax goodwiill
amortization.

Tax goodwill amortization was created upon the pase of 100% of the equity interests in Katonahtelvisors prior to the
Company’s IPO in exchange for shares of the Conpastgck valued at $33 million. Although this tracion was a stock transaction rather
than an asset purchase and thus no goodwill wagmé&ed for GAAP purposes, for tax purposes sudhaxge was considered an asset
purchase under Section 351(a) of the Code. Atithe of the transfer, Katonah Debt Advisors had goofi approximately $1 million resulting
in tax goodwill of approximately $32 million whichkill be amortized for tax purposes on a straighelbasis over 15 years, resulting in an
annual difference between GAAP income and taxalerne by approximately $2 million per year overtsperiod.

At December 31, 2007 a net amount due from aféfigbtaled approximately $541,000 and at Decembge2(6, net amounts due to
affiliates totaled approximately $88,000, respestiv

Summarized financial information for Katonah Delutvsors follows:

For the Years Ended December 31

2007 2006
Assets:
Current assel $ 7,035,15 $ 2,860,32
Noncurrent asse 396,11 661,63°
Total asset $ 7,431,26 $ 3,521,961
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 4,254,20:; 2,602,75!
Total liabilities 4,254,20:; 2,602,75!
For the Period
December 11, 200
For the Year (inception) through
Ended
December 31, 20C December 31, 200
Gross revenu $ 11,262,96 $ 200,61(
Total expense (8,505,11) (273,32()
Net income (loss $ 2,757,85 $ (72,710
Dividends declare $ 500,00( $ —

The Company intends to distribute the accumulatgtdntome of Katonah Debt Advisors in the future.

Distressed Debt Platforr

In December 2007, the Company committed to makiexastment in a new distressed investment platforganized by Steven Panagos
and Jonathan Katz and named Panagos and Katzi&@iidhvesting (“PKSI”) Mr. Panagos was most recently national practicedeaf Kroll
Zolfo Cooper’s Corporate Advisory and Restructuritrgctice and Mr. Katz was the founding partneBpécial Situations Investing, a
distressed investing vehicle of JP Morgan. The Camggexpects that funds managed by PKSI will iniregihe debt and
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equity securities of companies that are restrutgudiue to financial or operational distress. Then@any also expects that PKSI may
selectively originate new credit facilities withrdoowers that are otherwise unable to access tomditicredit markets. The Company has
committed to invest up to $2.5 million directly RKSI through an investment in Class A shares. Tomgany has a 35% economic interest in
PKSI through its investment in Class B shares orchvh will receive its pro rata share of PKSI'seppting income and may make an
investment of up to $25 million in the funds marcigg PKSI on which the Company will receive investrnincome. PKSI may also source
distressed debt opportunities in which we may ntdikect investments. As of December 31, 2007, thea@my funded approximately $72,000
of our $2.5 million total commitment to PKSI whighan investment in the Class A shares of PKSlofA3ecember 31, 2007, PKSI had no
significant operations.

6. BORROWINGS
The Company’s debt obligations consist of the feitay:

At December 31,
2007 2006

Secured revolving credit facility, $275 million camtment due October 1, 20: $255,000,00 $—

On February 14, 2007, the Company entered intaramgement under which the Company may obtain §26® million in financing
(the “Facility”). On October 1, 2007, the Compamyemded the credit facility to increase the Compaingrrowing capacity from $200 million
to $275 million, extend the maturity date from Redy 12, 2012 to October 1, 2012 and increasentieedst spread charged on outstanding
borrowings by 15 basis points, to 0.85%. The irgerate is based on prevailing commercial papesralus 0.85% or, if the commercial paper
market is at any time unavailable, prevailing LIB€HRes plus an applicable spread. Interest is payabnthly.

Advances under the Facility are used by the Compainyarily to make additional investments. The Campexpects that the Facility
will be secured by loans that it currently owns #melloans acquired by the Company with the adwanoéder the Facility. The Company will
borrow under the Facility through its wholly-ownegecial-purpose bankruptcy remote subsidiary, Betg Capital Funding LLC 1.

The weighted average daily debt balance for the geded December 31, 2007 was approximately $10®miFor the year ended
December 31, 2007, the weighted average interesbraweighted average outstanding borrowings \wpsoximately 5.5%, which excludes
the amortization of deferred financing costs arilifg and program fees on unfunded balances. Témany is in compliance with all its debt
covenants. As of December 31, 2007, the Companydsddcted cash balances of approximately $7 emlivhich it maintained in accordance
with the terms of the Facility. A portion of thefsmds, approximately $2 million, were releasedhi® €ompany in January 2008.

7. DISTRIBUTABLE TAX INCOME

The Company intends to distribute quarterly dividieto its stockholders. The Company’s quarterlydgimds, if any, will be determined
by the Board of Directors. To maintain its RIC ggtthe Company must timely distribute an amoungétp at least 90% of its taxable ordir
income and realized net short-term capital gairexgess of realized net long-term capital losges)y, reduced by deductible expenses, out of
the assets legally available for distribution, éach year. Depending on the level of taxable incearaed in a tax year, the Company may
choose to carry forward taxable income in exceszuoknt year distributions into the next tax yaad pay a 4% excise tax on such income, to
the extent required. As of December 31, 2006, the@any’s undistributed taxable income was approtetga529,000. The Company has
distributed this income in 2007. At December 3102Ghe Company had no current or accumulated trifited taxable income.
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For the quarter ended December 31, 2007, the Coymgheaiared a dividend on December 14, 2007 of $pe8Share for a total of
approximately $7 million. The record date was Delgsen?4, 2007 and the dividend was distributed ondey 24, 2008. Total dividends
declared for the year ended December 31, 2007 $&e4® per share for a total of approximately $2Bioni.

The following reconciles net increase in stockhodtlequity resulting from operations to taxableante for the year ended December 31,
2007:

Year Ended
December 31, 20C
Pre-tax net increase in stockhold’ equity resulting from operatior $ 26,141,98
Net unrealized gain on investments transactionsaxatble (3,116,71)
Expenses not currently deductil 540,15¢
Taxable income before deductions for distributi $ 23,565,42
Taxable income before deductions for distributipas outstanding sha $ 1.31

On January 1, 2007, the Company adopted Financiedénting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation. M8 (“FIN 48"),
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — ateipretation of FASB Statement No. 109.” FIN 48uiegs the Company to recognize in its
financial statements the impact of a tax positaken (or expected to be taken) on an income taxirét such position will more likely than n
be sustained upon examination based on the ted¢hmé@is of the position. The Company files taxures with the U.S. Internal Revenue
Service and New York state. Based upon its reviktsbopositions for the Company’s open tax yea2@d6, the Company has determined that
FIN 48 did not have a material impact on the Comgfsafinancial statements for the year ended DecerBhe2007.

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a party to financial instrumentdwif-balance sheet risk in the normal course afitess in order to meet the needs of
the Company’s investment in portfolio companiesctSimstruments include commitments to extend craatit may involve, in varying degrees,
elements of credit risk in excess of amounts reizeghon the Company’s balance sheet. Prior to ektgrsuch credit, the Company attempts
to limit its credit risk by conducting extensiveeddiligence, obtaining collateral where necessad/raegotiating appropriate financial
covenants. As of December 31, 2007 and Decembe&l(85, the Company had committed to make a totappfoximately $4 million and $2
million, respectively, of investments in variouso&/ing senior secured loans, of which approxima#66,000 was funded as of Decembe
2007 and no amount was funded as of December 886, 2& of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 26@6Company had committed to
make a total of approximately $8 million and $6@00respectively, of investments in a delayed dsanior secured loans of which
approximately $5 million was funded as of Decenier2007 and no amount was funded as of Decemh&0B®.

The following table summarizes our contractual calsligations and other commercial commitments d@3exfember 31, 2007:

Payments Due by Period

Contractual More than
Obligations Total 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 5 Years
Operating lease obligatiol $ 1,999,443 $ 422,27 $316,81¢ $304,64¢ $ 311,50: $ 318,51 $325,67¢
Long-term debt obligation 255,000,00 — — — — 255,000,00 —
Unused lending commitments 6,210,23. 6,210,23. — — — — —
Total $ 263,209,66 $6,632,500 $316,81¢ $304,64¢ $25531150 $ 318,510 $325,67¢
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1 Represents the unfunded lending commitment in octiorewith revolving lines of credit or delayed fling draws on loans made to
portfolio companies.

The Company and Katonah Debt Advisors have eniatedirst loss agreements in connection with warede credit lines established to
fund the initial accumulation of senior securedpowate loans and certain other debt securitiefufare CLO Funds that Katonah Debt
Advisors will manage, and may enter into similareggments in the future. Such first loss agreenretase to (i) losses (if any) as a result of
individual loan investments being ineligible forrphase by a new CLO Fund (typically due to a paytrdefault on such loan) when such fund
formation is completed or sold prior to completimirsuch fund, (ii) if a new CLO Fund has not beempleted before the expiration of the
related warehouse credit line, the loss (if anyl aet of any accumulated interest income) on thaleeof loans and debt securities funded by
such warehouse credit line. In return for the Comypsfirst loss commitment, the Company receivesimerest income from the underlying
assets in the loan warehouse.

Katonah Debt Advisors has engaged Bear Stearrieuittgre and raise three CLO Funds, to be namedrtéét 2007-1 CLO Ltd.
(“Katonah 2007"), Katonah 2008-1 CLO Ltd. (“Katon2B08-1") and Katonah 2008-II CLO Ltd. (“Katonah@II"), and to be managed by
Katonah Debt Advisors (directly or indirectly thgiua services contract with an affiliate of Katomadbt Advisors). As part of these
engagements, Katonah Debt Advisors entered intelvearse credit lines with Bear Stearns to fundtiteal accumulation of assets for
Katonah 2007 and Katonah 2008-I, which providedsfdirst loss obligation of Katonah Debt Advisamsguiring it to reimburse Bear Stearns
for (i) certain losses (if any) incurred on theedssvarehoused for Katonah 2007 Katonah 2008-Kaidnah 2008-11 prior to their completion,
or (ii) if one or all of these CLO Funds faileddimse at the expiration of the engagement (i.eebdser 31, 2008), a portion of the losses (if
any) on the resale of the warehoused assets. Beagmber 31, 2007, Katonah 2007 and Katonah 20@8+acquired an aggregate of
approximately $481 million determined on the badithe par value of such assets.

On January 23, 2008, Katonah Debt Advisors closaibi@ah 2007 in accordance with the terms of the Bezarns engagement. Katonah
Debt Advisors received a structuring fee upon dgsind expects to earn an ongoing asset managésedrased on the par amount of the
underlying investments in Katonah 2007. Approxirha$212 million of assets were transferred from lden warehouse into Katonah 2007
and are no longer subject to a first loss guara@eeurities issued by CLO Funds managed by Katbmdit Advisors are primarily held by
third parties. Kohlberg Capital invested approxieta®$29 million to acquire all of the shares of thest junior class of securities of Katonah
2007.

On March 12, 2007, Kohlberg Capital and KatonahtD¥dvisors engaged Lehman Commercial Paper In@lfthan”) to structure and
raise a CLO Fund to invest in senior secured mideieket corporate loans, to be named Ardsley CL@72DLtd. and to be managed by
Katonah Debt Advisors, and entered into a warehotesgit agreement and ancillary agreements withmaghto fund the initial accumulation
of assets for Ardsley. Under the warehouse crepglégement, Kohlberg Capital, as the first loss ptexjiwas obligated to reimburse Lehman
(i) certain losses (if any) incurred on loans acegiifor Ardsley with advances under the warehousditcfacility prior to the completion of the
CLO Fund, or (ii) if the CLO Fund failed to clostthe expiration of the engagement on DecembeQ@7, a portion of the losses (if any) on
the resale of the warehoused assets. On OctoRB€03, Kohlberg Capital, Katonah Debt Advisors andsley agreed with Lehman to
terminate the engagement, the warehouse credityaid Kohlberg Capita$ first loss obligation upon payment to Lehman pagoff amour
equal to the amount owed under the warehouse demility as of the payoff date minus $1 milliow, rieflect the estimated current value of the
warehoused loans. As part of the termination, KelghCapital purchased all of Ardsley’s assets foaggregate purchase price of
approximately $72 million. Approximately $14 miltidn aggregate principal amount of such assets pirehased and subsequently sold in
market transactions with third parties, and theaiamg approximately $58 million of debt securitfesm Ardsley were retained in our
investment portfolio. Ardsley used the proceedsifits sale of these loans to us to repay the oudsig obligations under the warehouse credit
facility. All outstanding amounts under the wares®eredit facility have been paid off in full, asegult of which the warehouse credit facility
and
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Kohlberg Capital’s first loss obligations thereuntiave terminated. No losses were incurred by KergllCapital upon the termination of
Ardsley.

As a result of the termination of the Ardsley warebe credit facility, the warehouse credit linehnvBear Stearns pursuant to the
engagement letter dated October 12, 2007 is thegudrantee arrangement to which Kohlberg Capstal party with respect to the business of
Katonah Debt Advisors.

At December 31, 2006 there were no such first éogsmitments or guarantees.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company funded appratdly $72,000 of our $2.5 million total commitméntPKSI which is an
investment in the Class A shares of PKSI.

9. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

On December 11, 2006, the Company completed itsofPI&,462,000 shares of common stock at $15.08Ipare, less an underwriting
discount and IPO expenses paid by the Companyrgtél.22 per share for net proceeds of approxim&200 million. Prior to its IPO, the
Company issued to affiliates of Kohlberg & Co. tatof 3,484,333 shares of its common stock forabguisition of certain subordinated
securities issued by CLO Funds and for the acduisaf Katonah Debt Advisors. During the year enBetember 31, 2007, the Company
issued 71,366 shares of common stock under itdelin reinvestment plan. The total number of sheméstanding as of December 31, 2007
and as of December 31, 2006 was 18,017,699 and@,338, respectively.

10. STOCK OPTIONS

During 2006, the Company established a stock ogtian (the “Plan™and reserved 1,500,000 shares of common stocksoance unde
the Plan. The purpose of the Plan is to provideef§ and prospective employees of the Company adtlitional incentives and align the
interests of its employees with those of its shalddrs. Options are exercisable at a price equidlegdair market value (market closing price
the shares on the day the option is granted.

On December 11, 2006, concurrent with the compieticthe Company’s IPO, options to purchase a tft8010,000 shares of common
stock were granted to the Company’s executive @ffi@and directors with an exercise price per sbbB$5.00 (the public offering price of the
common stock). Such options vest equally over timee or four years from the date of grant and lzaten-year exercise period. During the
year ended December 31, 2007, the Company gra8te0@D options to its employees with a weightedaye exercise price per share
$16.63, with a risk-free rate ranging between 4t6%.3%, with volatility rates ranging between 26.5 22.4% and for which 25% of such
options vest on each of the subsequent four gratetahniversaries and have a ten-year exercisedo@iring the year ended December 31,
2007, 90,000 options granted to employees wereifed. As of December 31, 2007, 1,315,000 totaboptwere outstanding, 305,000 of
which were exercisable. The options have an estidh@maining contractual life of 9 years and 0 rhent
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During the year ended December 31, 2007, the waigéwerage grant date fair value per share fooongtjranted during the period was
$1.90. For both the year ended December 31, 2887#yéighted average grant date fair value per gbaptions forfeited during the period
was $1.81. Information with respect to options ¢gdnexercised and forfeited under the Plan foiy#er ended December 31, 2007 is as
follows:

Weighted Average
Weighted Average

Exercise Price pe Contractual Remaining Intﬁggif%/itlie
Shares Share Term (years) 1

Options outstanding at January 1, 2| 910,00( $ 15.0(
Granted 495,00( $ 16.6:
Exercisec —
Forfeited (90,000 $ 16.3¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,315,001 $ 15.52 9.C —
Total vested at December 31, 2( 305,00( $ 15.0C 2.C —

1 Represents the difference between the market wdlthee options at December 31, 2007 and the cogh&option holders to exercise the
options.

The Company uses a Binary Option Pricing Model (Apaa, call option) as its valuation model to eitdibthe expected value of all
stock option grants. For the year ended Decembe2@®17 total stock option expense of approxima$€l90,000 was recognized and expensed
at the Company; of this amount approximately $496 Was expensed at the Company and approximat@ly, 20 was expensed at Katonah
Debt Advisors. At December 31, 2007, the Compartydmproximately $1.5 million of compensation casated to unvested stock-based
awards the cost for which is expected to be reasghand allocated between the Company and KatoehhAxlvisors over a weighted aver:
period of 2.5 years.

11. OTHER EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

The Company adopted a 401(k) plan (“401K Plan"¢eif’e January 1, 2007. The 401K Plan is openltulatime employees. The Plan
permits an employee to defer a portion of the@ltahnual compensation up to the Internal Reveruei&@ annual maximum based on age and
eligibility. The Company makes contributions to #@& K Plan of up to 2.67% of the employee’s fir4t9%6 of maximum eligible
compensation, which fully vest at the time of cdnition. For the year ended December 31, 2007Ctirapany’s contributions to the 401K
Plan were approximately $22,000.

The Company has also adopted a deferred compengddin (“Pension Plan”) effective January 1, 2®mnployees are eligible for the
Pension Plan provided that they are employed an#limgpwith the Company for at least 100 days dutimgyear and remain employed as of
the last day of the year. Employees do not makériboions to the Pension Plan. On behalf of the@leyee, the Company contributes to the
Pension Plan 1) 8.0% of all compensation up tdriternal Revenue Service annual maximum and 2) ®X&éss contributions on any
incremental amounts above the social security vbage limitation and up to the Internal Revenue iSerannual maximum. Employees vest
100% in the Pension Plan after five years of serkor the year ended December 31, 2007, the Corigpeontributions to the Pension Plan
were approximately $138,000.

12. IMPACT OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Stadsl&0oard issued Statement of Financial Accountiagp@ards No. 157 (“SFAS
157"), Fair Value Measurements. SFAS 157 clarifiesprinciple that fair value should be based @natsumptions market participants would
use when pricing an asset or liability and esthblsa fair value hierarchy that prioritizes theinfation used to develop those assumptions.
Under the standard, fair value measurements waeikkparately disclosed by level within the faiueahierarchy. SFAS 157 is effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years bagmafter November 15, 2007 and interim period$inmithose fiscal years, with early adoption
permitted. The Company does not expect the adopli®@FAS 157 to materially impact the Company’sfinial position or results of
operations.
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In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement ofrféilah Accounting Standards No. 159, The Fair Vaymion for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (“SFAS 159”), which providesmpanies with an option to report selected finglressets and liabilities at fair value. The
objective of SFAS 159 is to reduce both compleititgccounting for financial instruments and theatiity in earnings caused by measuring
related assets and liabilities differently. SFAS £5tablishes presentation and disclosure requirsnaiesigned to facilitate comparisons
between companies that choose different measureatteibutes for similar types of assets and ligilesi and to more easily understand the
effect of a company’s choice to use fair valuetsrearnings. SFAS 159 also requires entities olaljsthe fair value of the selected assets and
liabilities on the face of the balance sheet. SEAS does not eliminate disclosure requirementgharoaccounting standards, including fair
value measurement disclosures in SFAS 157. Thisrstmt is effective as of the beginning of an gistitirst fiscal year beginning after
November 15, 2007. The Company has determinedchttggition of SFAS 159 will not have an impact on@wmpan’s financial position or
results of operations.

13. SELECTED QUARTERLY DATA (Unaudited)

Q1 2007+ Q2 2007* Q3 2007* Q4 2007
Total interest and related portfolio incol $ 6,534,56 $ 8,578,36: $10,483,24 $12,882,83
Net investment income and realized ge $ 489290 $ 542585 $ 6,018,17! $ 6,688,32!
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting dmeration: $13,949,00 $16,940,50 $(4,683,68) $ (63,83
Net increase (decrease) in net as

resulting from operations per sh—basic and dilute: $ 0.7¢ % 094 % (0.2 $ —
Net investment income and realized gains per —basic and dilute: $ 027 $ 03C $ 0.3¢ $ 0.37

* Certain unaudited Quarterly Data have been reiflad to conform with current presentation.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 2, 2008, the Company acquired subdtsrgtibof the assets of Scott’s Cove Capital Magagnt LLC (“Scott’s Cove”), an
asset manager focused on an event-driven credjtdbart investment strategy. As a result of theusitipn, we acquired approximately $60
million of fee paying assets under management.ddm@pany plans to integrate the Scott's Cove businéthin the Katonah Debt Advisors
asset management platform. In connection with togiigition, Katonah Debt Advisors entered into emgpient agreements with three Scott’s
Cove investment professionals, and the Companyatxpieese individuals will assist the Company mauring, raising and investing new
funds to be managed by Katonah Debt Advisors.

On January 23, 2008, the Company’s whallyned asset management company, Katonah Debt Adyidosed a new $315 million CL
Fund. The Company received a structuring fee upasirgg and Katonah Debt Advisors expects to eararggoing asset management fee based
on the par amount of the underlying investmentiiénCLO Fund. Securities issued by CLO Funds mahbhgd&atonah Debt Advisors are
primarily held by third parties. Kohlberg Capitavested approximately $29 million to acquire altlod shares of the most junior class of
securities of this latest CLO Fund.
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Exhibit

Number

3.1
3.2
4.1
4.2
4.3
10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4
10.5
10.6
10.7
10.8

10.9
10.10
10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description
Form of Certificate of Incorporation of Kohlberg @&l Corporation (the “Company”{

Form of Bylaws of the Compan{?)

Specimen certificate of the Company’s common stpek,value $0.01 per shaf®.

Form of Registration Rights Agreemefi.

Form of Dividend Reinvestment Pl&#i.

Form of the 2006 Equity Incentive Pl&#.

Form of Company Non-Qualified Stock Option Certfie.

Form of Custodian Agreement by and among Kohlbepgital Corporation and U.S. Bank National Assooiati®
Form of License and Referral Agreement betweerCiiapany and Kohlberg & Company, LL®.
Form of Overhead Allocation Agreement between tbenffany and Katonah Debt Advisors, LLE.
Form of Employment Agreement between the Compandyayl W. Pearsor?

Form of Employment Agreement between the CompanyMichael I. Wirth.®

Form of Employment Agreement between the CompandyRarJon Corles$®)

Form of Employment Agreement between the CompandyEaA. Kratzman

Form of Employment Agreement between Katonah Dehtigors and E.A. Kratzma

Form of Indemnification Agreement for Officers aDidectors of the Companif

Execution Copy of Loan Funding and Servicing Agreahdated as of February 14, 2007, by and amondpbkah Capita
Funding LLC I, Kohlberg Capital Corporation, eadtttee conduit lenders and institutional lendersrfriime to time party
thereto, each of the lender agents from time te fp@rty thereto, BMO Capital Markets Corp., asAgent, Lyon Financial

Services, Inc. (d/b/a U.S. Bank Portfolio Services)the Backup Services, and U.S. Bank Nationabgiation, as Trusteé

Execution Copy of First Amendment to Loan Funding &ervicing Agreement, dated as of May 30, 209Ard amon
Kohlberg Capital Funding LLC I, the Company, eatthe conduit lenders and institutional lendersxfriime to time party
thereto, each of the lender agents from time te frarty thereto, BMO Capital Markets Corp., asAbent, Lyon Financial

Services, Inc. (d/b/a U.S. Bank Portfolio Serviges)the Backup Servicer, and U.S. Bank NationabAgtion, as Truste)

Execution Copy of Second Amendment to Loan Fundimg) Servicing Agreement, dated as of October 17 289 and among
Kohlberg Capital Funding LLC |, the Company, ea€lthe conduit lenders and institutional lendersifriime to time party
thereto, each of the lender agents from time te fi@rty thereto, BMO Capital Markets Corp., asAgent, Lyon Financial

Services, Inc. (d/b/a U.S. Bank Portfolio Services)the Backup Servicer, and U.S. Bank Nationab8ition, as Truste&)
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10.15 Execution Copy of Third Amendment to Loan Funding &ervicing Agreement, dated as of November 2Q7 20y and amor
Kohlberg Capital Funding LLC I, the Company, ea€lthe conduit lenders and institutional lendersifriime to time party
thereto, each of the lender agents from time te f@rty thereto, BMO Capital Markets Corp., asAgent, Lyon Financial
Services, Inc. (d/b/a U.S. Bank Portfolio Servicas)the Backup Servicer, and U.S. Bank NationabAmition, as Truste

10.16 Execution Copy of Purchase and Sale Agreement detef February 14, 2007, by and among Kohlbergt&ldpunding LLC |
and the Company?

211 List of Subsidiaries

23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Reged Public Accounting Firn

31.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant tal® 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 12384adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant talR 13a-14 of the Securities Act of 1934, as adbptasuant to Section 302
of the Sarban«-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification pursuant teclion 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United Staiesle, as adopted pursui
to Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification pursuant teion 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United St&lesle, as adopted pursui

to Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

@ Incorporated by reference to the similarly letteeg@libit included in Pre-Effective Amendment Naori Form N-2, as filed on October 6,
2006 (File No. 333-136714).

@ Incorporated by reference to the similarly letteegdlibit included on Form N-2, as filed on March 2607 (File No. 333-141382).

@ Incorporated by reference to the similarly letteegflibit included in Pre-Effective Amendment Naor2 Form N-2, as filed on
November 20, 2006 (File No. 3-136714).

@) Incorporated by reference to the similarly letteegflibit included in Pre-Effective Amendment Naor8 Form N-2, as filed on
November 24, 2006 (File No. 3-136714).

) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit includethie Annual Report on Form 10-K, as filed on Ma2&h 2007 (File No. 814-00735).

®  Incorporated by reference to the similarly letteegtlibit included in Pre-Effective Amendment Noordi Form N-2, as filed on
October 18, 2007 (File No. 333-146190).

(M Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of ther€nt Report on Form 8-K, as filed on February2@)7 (File No. 814-00735).



Exhibit 10.9

KOHLBERG

CAPITAL CORPORATION

Mr. E.A. Kratzman, Il
544 North Street
Greenwich, CT 06830

Dear Mr. Kratzman:

This letter agreement will confirm the terms of yeontinuing service as an officer of Kohlberg GapCorporation (the “Company”)
under the terms and conditions that follow. Thiteleagreement supersedes the letter agreemeit Mateember 28, 2006 in its entirety and is
effective January 1, 2008.

1. Term, Position and Dutiesrour title will continue to be “Vice Presidenthd you will serve at the pleasure of the Board wé€iors
(the “Board”). This agreement will terminate in aogance with the provisions of Section 5 hereinuégree to the perform the duties as may
be reasonably assigned to you from time to timkiding, but not limited to, advising the Companyitninvestment in various collateralized
loan obligation funds, synthetic debt obligationds and other credit based funds (together, thad&l), as directed by the Board or the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

2. Compensationin consideration of your continued services asféiner of the Company but subject to (i) the prieceipt by the
Company of the necessary exemptive relief fromS@eurities and Exchange Commission and the edtaiist thereafter by the Company of
an equity incentive plan providing for the issuan€eestricted stock, (ii) the receipt of sharelaldpproval in respect of such equity incentive
plan, and (iii) the availability under such equitgentive plan of shares of restricted stock, ydlireceive, so long as you remain an officer of
the Company through the grant date, an annual gfamestricted stock having a value of Five Hundféusand Dollars ($500,000). Such
restricted stock award will vest 50% on the thinthizersary of the date of grant and 50% on thetfoanniversary of the date of grant, in each
case subject to your remaining an officer of thenfany through such date (or, if the foregoing vestichedule is not permitted under the
terms of the equity incentive plan and the exengptelief obtained from the Securities and Exchadgmmission, such other vesting schedule
as determined by the Board consistent with theirements of the equity incentive plan and such gxtema relief). Consistent with the
foregoing, the terms of any grant of restrictedktwill be as provided for in the equity incentipkan and the award agreement governing such
award. Except as explicitly provided by the Boaml, will not be entitled to receive other compeisatincluding without limitation salary or
bonuses, by reason of your service as an officdre@Company



3. Other Benefits You will not be entitled to participate in anynadits or benefit plans sponsored by the Compansebgon of your
service as an officer of the Company (though yoy bwentitled to participate in such plans by reasoyour employment with an Affiliate (i
hereinafter defined) of the Company).

4. Confidential Information and Restricted Actiesi. You are already subject to a confidentiality aod-competition agreement with
Katonah Debt Advisors (“KDA"), an Affiliate of th€ompany, that refers to and includes KDA's Affitat as part of your letter agreement
with KDA dated [ ] (as amexdfrom time to time) (“KDA Agreement”). Accordinglthe confidentiality and non-competition
provisions in that agreement already apply to \smuvice with the Company. In the event that KDA #mel Company become unaffiliated, you
agree that you will be subject to a confidentiatityd noneompetition provision with respect to the Compamttis substantially the same as
confidentiality and non-competition provisions bétKDA Agreement. For purposes of this agreemeXftjliates” means all persons and
entities directly or indirectly controlling, contted by or under common control with the Companiieve control may be by management
authority, equity interest or otherwise.

5. Termination of ServiceYour service as an officer with the Company waliminate upon the earliest to occur of (1) youumtary
resignation upon written notice to the Companyl(iding your resignation for Good Reason), (2) yiowoluntary termination of service by t
Company without “cause” upon written notice to y@), your death, or (4) your immediate involuntégymination by the Company for
“cause”. For this purpose, “cause” and “Good Reasach have the same meaning as set forth in th& KBreement. Upon such termination,
this agreement will terminate. Your restricted ktaward agreement will govern your shares of retgtti stock, if any, following termination of
employment.

6. Withholding. All payments made by the Company under this ages shall be reduced by any tax or other amowupsired to be
withheld by the Company under applicable law.

7. Applicability of Section 409A If at the time of your separation from serviceuyare a “specified employee,” as hereinafter eefin
any and all amounts payable under this agreemertrinection with such separation from service tloastitute deferred compensation subject
to Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code 016198 amended (“Section 409A"), including withduatitation by reason of the safe harbor
set forth in Treasury Regulations 1.409A-1(b)(9)@nd 1.409A-1(b)(4), as determined by the Compariis sole discretion, and that would
(but for this sentence) be payable within six merftllowing such separation from service, shaltéas be paid on the date that follows the
date of such separation from service by six (6) tim@rFor purposes of the preceding sentence, “agéparfrom service” shall be determined in
a manner consistent with subsection (a)(2)(A)(ibettion 409A and the ter“specified




employee” shall mean an individual determined &y@ompany to be a specified employee as definedhsection (a)(2)(B)(i) of

Section 409A. For the avoidance of doubt, the paytmand benefits described in this agreement ¢eaded either to comply with
Section 409A (to the extent they are subject tdhvsgction) or to be exempt from the requirementuch section (where an exemption is
available), and shall be construed accordingly.

8. Assignment Neither you nor the Company may make any assighofehis letter agreement or any interest ibyt,operation of law
or otherwise, without the prior written consenttod other; provided, however, that the Company assygn its rights and obligations under
agreement without your consent to one of its Adfiis or to any person (including any individuakpooation, limited liability company,
association, partnership, or any entity or orgaioeaother than the Company or its Affiliates) vivhom the Company shall hereafter affect a
reorganization, consolidate with, or merge intacowhom it transfers all or substantially all of firoperties or assets. This agreement shall
inure to the benefit of and be binding upon you tredCompany, and each of your and its respectigeessors, executors, administrators, t
and permitted assigns.

9. Severability. If any portion or provision of this agreementlsb@any extent be declared illegal or unenfordeddy a court of
competent jurisdiction, then the remainder of #iseement, or the application of such portion ovjgion in circumstances other than those as
to which it is so declared illegal or unenforceableall not be affected thereby, and each portimh@ovision of this agreement shall be valid
and enforceable to the fullest extent permittedigly

10. Miscellaneous This agreement sets forth the entire agreemewntelee you and the Company and replaces all pridr an
contemporaneous communications, agreements andstaidings, written or oral, with respect to thene and conditions of your service a:
officer of the Company; provided, however, thasthgreement shall not shall not constitute a wddyehe Company or any of its Affiliates of
any existing right any of them now has or might rftave under any agreement imposing obligationsoorwith respect to confidentiality,
non-competition, non-solicitation or similar obltgas with respect to conduct or events prior ®effective date of this agreement. This
agreement may not be modified or amended, andesxhrshall be deemed to be waived, unless agraéedviating by you and an expressly
authorized representative of the Board. The headamgl captions in this agreement are for conveaienty and in no way define or describe
the scope or content of any provision of this agrest. This agreement may be executed in two or mmwaterparts, each of which shall be an
original and all of which together shall constitotee and the same instrument. This is a Delawargax and shall be governed and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of Delayaiithout regard to the conflict of laws principltnereof.

11. Notices Any notices provided for in this agreement shallin writing and shall be effective when delivenegerson or deposited in
the United States ma



postage prepaid, and addressed to you at youkriastn address on the books of the Company or.drcéise of the Company, to it at its
principal place of business, attention of the Boardo such other address as either party mayifgd®cnotice to the other actually received.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blar



If the foregoing is acceptable to you, please siggletter in the space provided and return inta We will provide a countersigned copy
for your records.

Sincerely yours

Christopher Lacovar
Chairmar

Accepted and Agree:

E.A. Kratzman, Il

Date

cc: Michael I. Wirth



Exhibit 10.1C

KATONAH

Debt Advisors

Mr. E.A. Kratzman, Il
544 North Street
Greenwich, CT 06830

Dear Mr. Kratzman:

This letter will confirm the terms of your contimgi employment with Katonah Debt Advisors, LLC (ti@mpany”), under the terms
and conditions that follow. This letter supercetesletter agreement dated November 28, 2006 entisety and is effective as of January 1,
2008.

1. Term, Position and Duties

(a) Subject to earlier termination as hereaftewioled, your employment shall continue through Delsen81, 2010, and will be
automatically extended for one year on Januarp112nd on each succeeding January 1 unless psévteuminated in writing by you or an
expressly authorized representative of the Compaing.term of this agreement, as from time to tixtereded is hereafter referred to as “the
term of this agreement” or “the term hereof”. Yoilllwe employed by the Company as its Managing @oe You will report to the
Management Committee of the Company (the “Comnfittee

(b) You agree to perform the duties of your posittmd such other duties as may reasonably be askigryou from time to time
including, but not limited to: management of théirenKDA platform, structuring various types of takralized loan obligation (“CLO”) funds,
synthetic collateralized debt obligation (“CDO"fis, and other credit-based funds (collectivelyridal’) as directed by the Committee;
implementing and investing “warehouse” lines; né&gotg, documenting, and selling debt and equitusiges of Funds; and purchasing and
trading non-investment grade loans, high yield somahd other permitted securities on behalf of BuAdiditionally, you will be responsible
for overseeing, but not the day-to-day managenuénibe Katonah Scott's Cove business. You will dsaesponsible for increasing assets
under management for all of the KDA platforms whichy entail initiating and structuring strategigjaisitions and other initiatives. You also
agree that you will devote your full business tiamal your best efforts, business judgment, skill lamalwvledge exclusively to the advancement
of the business and interests of the Company aniffiliates.

(c) From time to time, you may be employed by onmore Affiliates of the Company in a similar cajpato your employment
with the Company. The terms and conditions of yemployment by such Affiliates will be the samelzes terms and

295 Madison Avenue, & Floor « New York, NY 10017
Telephone (212) 455-8300 ¢ Facsimile (212) 983-7654



conditions of your employment with the Company,eptahat your aggregate compensation and benefitaat exceed the amounts set forth
in Section 2 of this agreement. In that regard;, ploation of the compensation and benefits thatafloeable to your services to an Affiliate sl
be the responsibility of the Affiliate, though weta the Company intends to provide benefits pravideemployees generally on a centralized
basis among its Affiliates. To the extent that ywe employed by an Affiliate, references in thiseggnent to the Company shall mean the
Affiliate, where appropriate. To effectuate suchpbsgment with any Affiliate, the Affiliate will praide to you a letter confirming your
employment status. The allocation of your workiimget between duties for the Company and any of tifiiades may be adjusted from time to
time by the Company as its determines approprfegea condition to your employment with the Company the Affiliates, it is required that
you keep complete and accurate records of theytonespend performing your duties under this agredmmed the nature there«

2. Compensation and BenefitBuring your employment, as compensation foreiViges performed by you for the Company and its
Affiliates, the Company will provide you the follamg pay and benefits:

(a) Base SalaryThe Company will pay you a base salary at the @afThree Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($350)qt¢) year,
payable in accordance with the regular payroll ficas of the Company and subject to increase fiora to time by the Committee in its
discretion; provided, however, that your base ygaldll automatically increase to a rate of Four ldeed Thousand Dollars ($400,000) per year
commencing July 1, 2008.

(b) Bonus CompensatiarDuring employment, you will be considered foriscdetionary bonus of not less than Six HundretyFif
Thousand Dollars ($650,000) and not more than Ol Dollars ($1,000,000) for the 2008 fiscal yesubject to increase in subsequent
fiscal years during the term of this agreemenhigole discretion of the Committee. Bonus awaiitide determined by the Committee, ba
on your performance and that of the Company aggials established annually by the Committee aftesultation with you (and consistent
with those set forth in the Company’s annual budgmel/or strategic plan) and will be paid not lakem March 15 of the calendar year
following the year for which the bonus was earr¥alr bonus for the 2007 fiscal year will be Six Hioad Thousand Dollars ($600,000), to be
paid not later than March 15, 2008. Except as otiserprovided in Section 5 hereof, you must rentaintinuously employed by the Company
through the end of the calendar year in order teliggble for a bonus for that calendar year. Iditidn to your discretionary bonus described
above, you will be entitled to receive a one-tinoats of Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250)0@ be paid as soon as practicable
following completion by the Company of at least tafadhe CLO funds contemplated pursuant to the gageent letter with Bear Stearns dated
October 12, 2007 or an initial closing of a Creédiportunities Fund, but in no event later than &gsdfollowing completion by the Company
the second CLO fund contemplated above, and prdvigigher that you remain continuously employedhesy Company through the date of
completion of such second CLO fur




(c) Purchased EquitySubject to all policies (including any policiespglemented by the Company which restrict the abdft
officers, directors and other Affiliates to invésthe Funds), agreements, plans and conditiorisatikegenerally applicable to such investme
as determined by the Company, you will have thetrigut not the obligation, to purchase equity ofi#ls on terms equivalent to those received
by other investors.

(d) Participation in Employee Benefit Plangou will be entitled to participate in all empley benefit plans from time to time in
effect for employees of the Company generally, pktethe extent such plans are duplicative of fiemetherwise provided you under this
agreement. Your participation will be subject te thrms of the applicable plan documents and giyneeplicable Company policies.

3. Confidential Information and Restricted Actiegi.

(a) Confidential Information During the course of your employment with the @amy or its Affiliates, you have learned and will
learn of Confidential Information, as defined beJ@md you may develop Confidential Information ahalf of the Company or its Affiliates.
You agree that you will not use or disclose to Beyson (except as required by applicable law ottferproper performance of your regular
duties and responsibilities for the Company) anpf@ential Information obtained by you incidentytour employment or any other associa
with the Company or any of its Affiliates, wheth@ior or subsequent to effective date of this agre® . You understand that this restriction
shall continue to apply after your employment tevaés, regardless of the reason for such termimatio

(b) Protection of DocumentsAll documents, records and files, in any mediavbftever kind and description, relating to the
business, present or otherwise, of the Companyypaits Affiliates, and any copies, in whole arpart, thereof (the “Documents”), whether
or not prepared by you shall be the sole and exayzoperty of the Company. You agree to safegalirdocuments and to surrender to the
Company, at the time your employment terminatest such earlier time or times as the Committeg¢sodésignee may specify, all Documents
then in your possession or control.

(c) NonrCompetition. You acknowledge that in your employment with @@mpany you have had access and will have access to
Confidential Information which, if disclosed, wouddsist in competition against the Company andffiiates and that you also have
generated and will generate goodwill for the Conypamnd its Affiliates in the course of your employmheTherefore, you agree that the
following restrictions on your activities duringa@after your employment are necessary to protecgtodwill, Confidential Information and
other legitimate interests of the Company and ftdiates:

(i) While you are employed by the Company or itéilsftes and for the greater of (x) the remainiegn of this agreement
(y) one (1) year after your employment (or servigth an Affiliate, if later) terminates (in the aggate, the “Non-Competition Period”), you
agree that you will not, without the prior writteansent of the Company, directly or indirectly, gwranage, operate, join, control, finance, or
participate in the ownership, marketing, managepap#ration, control, fundraising or financing of,be connected as an officer, director,
employee, partner, principal, age




representative, consultant, or otherwise use anpgour name to be used in connection with anyiri®ss or enterprise engaged in the United
States in the business of structuring CDO or CL€uB#zation vehicles or hedge funds or other fumthéch invest in corporate debt
instruments (such vehicles and funds, collectivBiyestment Vehicles”), analyzing and acquiringhg and other assets to be held by any
Investment Vehicles, arranging for the issuancaedit and preferred securities by any Investmenidiet) acting as collateral managers for
such securitizations or funds, or performing simfilanctions.

(i) You agree that during the Non-Competition Bdriyou will not, directly or through any other Bem, (i) hire any
employee of the Company or any of its Affiliatesseek to persuade any employee of the Companyyoofdts Affiliates to discontinue
employment, (ii) solicit or encourage any customeinvestor of the Company or any of its Affiliatesindependent contractor providing
services to the Company or any of its Affiliatege¢ominate or diminish its relationship with them(iii) seek to persuade any customer or
investor or prospective customer or investor ofGlmenpany or any of its Affiliates to conduct withyane else any business or activity that
such customer or investor or prospective customanestor conducts or could conduct with the Conypar any of its Affiliates.

(d) In signing this agreement, you give the Compassurance that you have carefully read and coresldgl the terms and
conditions of this agreement, including the restsimposed on you under this Section 3. You agiigd®ut reservation that these restraints
necessary for the reasonable and proper protegtitire Company and its Affiliates and that each ewery one of the restraints is reasonab
respect to subject matter, length of time and gegaigc area. You further agree that, were you tadiveny of the covenants contained in this
Section 3, the damage to the Company and its affi§ would be irreparable. You therefore agreettea€Company, in addition to any other
remedies available to it, shall be entitled toipnglary and permanent injunctive relief against Bngach or threatened breach by you of any of
those covenants, without having to post bond. Yaitae Company further agree that, in the eventahg provision of this Section 3 is
determined by any court of competent jurisdictiofbé unenforceable by reason of its being extengtedtoo great a time, too large a
geographic area or too great a range of activitied, provision shall be deemed to be modifiedenpt its enforcement to the maximum ext
permitted by law. It is also agreed that each ef@ompany’s Affiliates shall have the right to exfall of your obligations to that Affiliate
under this agreement, including without limitatjpursuant to this Section 3.

4. Termination of EmploymentYour employment under this agreement may be teatad prior to the expiration of the term hereof
pursuant to this Section 4.

(a) The Company may terminate your employment &mse upon notice to you setting forth in reasondéteil the nature of the
cause. The following, as determined by the Compauiitg reasonable judgment, shall constitute cdoiseermination: (i) your material failure
to perform (other than by reason of disability) nwaterial negligence in the performance of, youieduand responsibilities to the Company or
any of its Affiliates; (ii) your material breach tifis agreement or any other agreement betweemyduhe Company or any of its Affiliates; or
(iiif) other conduct by




you that could be reasonably anticipated to be hdnm the business, interests or reputation ofGbenpany or any of its Affiliates. Tt
Company also may terminate your employment at sng without cause upon notice to you.

(b) This agreement shall automatically terminatthanevent of your death during employment. Inghent of your death, any
amounts owed to you under this agreement will be fwethe beneficiary designated in writing by yay if no beneficiary has been so
designated by you, to your estate. In the eventbgmome disabled during employment and, as a reselunable to continue to perform
substantially all of your duties and responsil@Btunder this agreement, the Company will conttoygay you your base salary and to provide
you benefits in accordance with Section 2(a) abtivéhe extent permitted by plan terms, for upatelve (12) weeks of disability during ai
period of three hundred and sixty-five (365) comngi®e calendar days. If you are unable to returwaok after twelve (12) weeks of disability,
the Company may terminate your employment, upoitadd you. If any question shall arise as to whetfou are disabled to the extent that
you are unable to perform substantially all of yduties and responsibilities for the Company asd\tiliates, you shall, at the Compe’s
request, submit to a medical examination by a mgsiselected by the Company to whom you or yoardjan, if any, has no reasonable
objection to determine whether you are so disahtetisuch determination shall for the purposesisfagreement be conclusive of the issue. If
such a question arises and you fail to submiteéardguested medical examination, the Compadgtermination of the issue shall be binding
you.

(c) You may terminate your employment hereundef@wod Reason” by providing written notice to ther@any of the condition
giving rise to the Good Reason no later than tH{B8) days following the occurrence of the conditiby giving the Company thirty (30) days
to remedy the condition; and, if the Company felsemedy the condition, by terminating your emphayt within ten (10) days following the
expiration of such thirty (30) day period. For posps of this letter agreement, the term “Good R€aseans, without your consent, the
occurrence of one or more of the following evefij)smaterial diminution in the nature or scope ofly responsibilities, duties or authority as
contemplated by this letter agreement; or (ii) ybeing required to relocate to a principal placemployment outside of the New York
metropolitan area; provided, however, that a chamgeporting relationships resulting from the direr indirect control of the Company (or a
successor corporation) by another entity and amyrdition of the business of the Company or anyoAffiliates or any sale or transfer of
equity, property or other assets of the Compargngrof its Affiliates shall not constitute Good Rea.

5. Severance Payments and Other Matters RelafEgrioination.

(a) In the event of termination of your employmbptthe Company without cause or a termination hy fgs Good Reason, for the
remainder of the then current term of this agregntba Company will continue to pay you your baskuy (“severance payments”) and will
continue to contribute to the premium cost of ybealth insurance on the same terms and condit®itcantributes for active employees
provided that you make a timely election underfdderal law known as “COBRA” and provided furthieat you are entitled to continue
participation in the Compa’s groug




health plan under applicable law and plan termg. Company may, in its sole discretion, elect tsedhe continuation of base salary and
contributions toward health insurance premiumagt@oint after you have received one (1) year gebsalary continuation and health
insurance contributions provided that it also re¢esayou from your remaining obligation under Sec8¢c)(i) above. The Company will also
pay you on the date of termination any base saarged but not paid through the date of terminadimh pay for any vacation time accrued but
not used to that date. In addition, the Companypei} you any discretionary bonus compensationhizhvyou are entitled in accordance with
Section 2(b) above, but in no case less than $680frorated to the date of termination and payabtee time such monies are payable to
Company executives generally. Any obligation of @@mpany to provide you severance payments or gédagnents or benefits under this
Section 5(a) is conditioned, however, upon younisig and not revoking a release of claims in threnfprovided by the Company (the
“Employee Release”), which shall be delivered ta yot later than ten (10) business days followheydate of termination and you shall be
required to execute the Employee Release and rittiorthe Company, if at all, not later than treteddetermined by the Company to be the
day of the period it must provide to you by lawctmsider the Employee Release. All severance patgmeéh be in the form of salary
continuation, payable in accordance with the nompagroll practices of the Company, and will bedinhee Company’s next regular payroll
period following the effective date of the EmployRelease (as specified in the Employee Release}hali be retroactive to the date of
termination. Notwithstanding anything else contdiirethis agreement, no bonus or severance payreother payments or benefits will be
due and payable under any provision of this Sedfai until the next regular Company payday follogithe effective date of the Employee
Release.

(b) In the event of termination of your employmbgtthe Company for cause or by you for any reas@Company will pay you
any base salary earned but not paid through treeafaermination and pay for any vacation time aedrbut not used to that date. The
Company shall have no obligation to you for anyusmoompensation, benefits continuation or severpagments.

(c) In the event of termination of your employmbmgtexpiration of the term hereof or nogrewal of this agreement, by death, o
disability, the Company will pay you (or your esfaany base salary earned but not paid througtatesof termination, pay for any vacation
time accrued but not used to that date, and amyedisnary bonus compensation to which you ardledtin accordance with Section 2(b)
above, prorated to the date of termination and lplayat the time such bonuses are payable to Compeoutives generally. The Company
shall have no obligation to you (or your estate)dioy severance payments or benefits continuation.

(d) Except for any rights you may have under Secdi@) above or under the federal law known as “@8Bto continue
participation in the Company’s group health andtaleplans at your cost, benefits shall terminatadoordance with the terms of the applicable
benefit plans based on the date of terminatioroaf ¥mployment, without regard to any continuatbbase salary or other payment to you
following termination.

(e) Provisions of this agreement shall survive #mgnination if so provided in this agreement anétessary or desirable to
accomplish the purposes of otl



surviving provisions, including without limitatioyour obligations under Section 3 of this agreeméhé obligation of the Company to make
payments to you under this Section 5 is expressiglitioned upon your continued full performancebfigations under Section 3 hereof. U}
termination by either you or the Company, all rigtduties and obligations of you and the Comparsatth other shall cease, except as
otherwise expressly provided in this agreement.

6. Definitions. For purposes of this agreement, the followingrdédns apply:

“Affiliates” means all persons and entities dirgatk indirectly controlling, controlled by or undeommon control with the Company,
where control may be by management authority, gdoierest or otherwise.

“Confidential Information” means any and all infaation of the Company and its Affiliates that is generally available to the public.
Confidential Information also includes any inforioatreceived by the Company or any of its Affilistieom any Person with any
understanding, express or implied, that it will betdisclosed. Confidential Information does natude information that enters the public
domain, other than through your breach of yourgatlons under this agreement.

“Person” means an individual, a corporation, atiédiliability company, an association, a partngrsan estate, a trust or any other entity
or organization, other than the Company or anyAffiliates.

7. Conflicting AgreementsYou hereby represent and warrant that your sgpirthis agreement and the performance of yougatibns
under it will not breach or be in conflict with anyher agreement to which you are a party or ammtd@nd that you are not now subject to any
covenants against competition or similar covenantny court order that could affect the perforneaatyour obligations under this agreem
You agree that you will not disclose to or use ehdif of the Company any proprietary informatioradghird party without that party’consen

8. Withholding. All payments made by the Company under this agest shall be reduced by any tax or other amowufsired to be
withheld by the Company under applicable law.

9. Applicability of Section 409A If at the time of your separation from serviceuyare a “specified employee,” as hereinafter @efin
any and all amounts payable under this agreemertrinection with such separation from service tloastitute deferred compensation subject
to Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code 016198 amended (“Section 409A"), including withduatitation by reason of the safe harbor
set forth in Treasury Regulations 1.409A-1(b)(9)@nd 1.409A-1(b)(4), as determined by the Compganis sole discretion, and that would
(but for this sentence) be payable within six merftllowing such separation from service, shaltéas be paid on the date that follows the
date of such separation from service by six (6) tim@rFor purposes of the preceding sentence, “agéparfrom service” shall be determined in
a manner consistent with subsection (a)(2)(A)(ipettion 409A and the term “specified employee’llshaan an individual determined by the
Company to be a specified employee as definedbaesiion (a)(2)(B)(i) of Section 409A. For the alamice of




doubt, the payments and benefits described iratfrisement are intended either to comply with Secti@BA (to the extent they are subject to
such section) or to be exempt from the requiremeissich section (where an exemption is availalaie), shall be construed accordingly.

10. Assignment Neither you nor the Company may make any assighofehis agreement or any interest in it, by @gien of law or
otherwise, without the prior written consent of titber; provided, however, that the Company maigasts rights and obligations under this
agreement without your consent to one of its Adfiis or to any Person with whom the Company sleadldfter affect a reorganization,
consolidate with, or merge into or to whom it triems all or substantially all of its propertiesamsets. This agreement shall inure to the benefit
of and be binding upon you and the Company, antl eigour and its respective successors, execwddrajnistrators, heirs and permitted
assigns.

11. Severability If any portion or provision of this agreementlsb@any extent be declared illegal or unenfordedly a court of
competent jurisdiction, then the remainder of g#gseement, or the application of such portion ovgion in circumstances other than those as
to which it is so declared illegal or unenforcealleall not be affected thereby, and each portimh@ovision of this agreement shall be valid
and enforceable to the fullest extent permittedgly

12. Miscellaneous This agreement sets forth the entire agreemewntelee you and the Company and replaces all pridr an
contemporaneous communications, agreements andstaidings, written or oral, with respect to thene and conditions of your
employment; provided, however, that this agreershatl not shall not constitute a waiver by the Campor any of its Affiliates of any
existing right any of them now has or might now dawmder any agreement imposing obligations on yitlu nespect to confidentiality, non-
competition, norsolicitation or similar obligations with respectdonduct or events prior to the effective datehif agreement. This agreem
may not be modified or amended, and no breach bhaleemed to be waived, unless agreed to in giitynyou and an expressly authorized
representative of the Committee. The headings aptians in this agreement are for convenience antyin no way define or describe the
scope or content of any provision of this agreemElnis agreement may be executed in two or morateoparts, each of which shall be an
original and all of which together shall constitotee and the same instrument. This is a Delawargax and shall be governed and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of Delayaiithout regard to the conflict of laws principltnereof.

13. Notices Any notices provided for in this agreement shallin writing and shall be effective when delivenegerson or deposited in
the United States mail, postage prepaid, and aselde® you at your last known address on the bobitse Company or, in the case of the
Company, to it at its principal place of businegtention of the Committee, or to such other addesseither party may specify by notice to the
other actually receive!



If the foregoing is acceptable to you, please siggletter in the space provided and return inta We will provide a countersigned copy
for your records.

Sincerely yours

Christopher Lacovar
Vice Presiden

Accepted and Agreel

E.A. Kratzman, lll

Date

cc: Michael I. Wirth, Kohlberg Capital Corporation



Exhibit 10.15

EXECUTION COPY

THIRD AMENDMENT TO LOAN FUNDING AND SERVICING AGREE MENT
(Kohlberg Capital Funding LLC I)

THIS THIRD AMENDMENT TO LOAN FUNDING AND SERVICING AGREEMENT , dated as of November 21, 2007 (this “
Amendment), is entered into by and among KOHLBERG CAPITAUNDING LLC I, as the borrower (in such capacitye thBorrower”),
KOHLBERG CAPITAL CORPORATION, as the servicer (inch capacity, the “ Servicéy, each of the conduit lenders and institutional
lenders from time to time a party hereto (eachLarider’ and collectively, the “ Lendery, each of the lender agents from time to time a
hereto (each, a“ Lender Agenand collectively, the “ Lender Agenty BMO CAPITAL MARKETS CORP., as the agent (in $ucapacity,
the “ Agent”), U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as the truste@n such capacity, the “ Trust&eand LYON FINANCIAL
SERVICES, INC. (d/b/a U.S. Bank Portfolio Serviges the backup servicer (in such capacity, thackp Servicef). Capitalized terms
used and not otherwise defined herein shall hawertbanings given to such terms in the Agreemerddfised below).

RECITALS

WHEREAS , the parties hereto entered into that certain LFeamding and Servicing Agreement, dated as of Fefprid, 2007 (such
agreement as amended, modified, supplemented, dvaivestated from time to time, the “Agreement”);

WHEREAS , the parties hereto desire to amend the Agreemeamrtain respects as provided herein;

NOW, THEREFORE , based upon the above Recitals, the mutual preraiseé agreements contained herein, and other gabd a
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficieoftyhich are hereby acknowledged, the partiestbeigtending to be legally bound, hereby
agree as follows:

SECTION 1. AMENDMENTS AND AGREEMENTS .
(a) Section 9.1(mdf the Agreement is hereby amended by deletingvibrel “less” and replacing it with the word “gredter

(b) The parties hereto agree that as of the dasohthe above-referenced amendment to Sectiomdshall be deemed to be in effect
all purposes under the Agreement as of FebruargQ@y.

SECTION 2. AGREEMENT IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT AS AM ENDED .

Except as specifically amended hereby, all prouisiof the Agreement shall remain in full force &fiéct. After this Amendment
becomes effective, all references to the Agreentkat;Loan Funding and Servicing Agreement,” “hdretherein,” or words of similar effect
referring to the Agreement shall be deemed to nleargreement as amended hereby. -




Amendment shall not constitute a novation of thee&gnent, but shall constitute an amendment thefédd. Amendment shall not be deemed
to expressly or impliedly waive, amend or suppletraaty provision of the Agreement other than as esgly set forth herein.

SECTION 3. REPRESENTATIONS.
Each of the Borrower and Servicer represent andanaas of the date of this Amendment as follows:

(i) it is duly incorporated or organized, validlyigting and in good standing under the laws ofutisdiction of incorporation or
organization;

(i) the execution, delivery and performance bgfithis Amendment are within its powers, have beely authorized, and do not
contravene (A) its charter, by- laws, or other aigational documents, or (B) any Applicable Law;

(iii) no consent, license, permit, approval or auiation of, or registration, filing or declaratiovith any governmental authority, is
required in connection with the execution, delivgrgrformance, validity or enforceability of thiss®endment by or against it;

(iv) this Amendment has been duly executed and/eledd by it;

(v) this Amendment constitutes its legal, valid dmulding obligation enforceable against it in aclzorce with its terms, except as
enforceability may be limited by applicable bankayp insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or $amlaws affecting the enforcement
of creditors’ rights generally or by general pripleis of equity;

(vi) it is not in default under the Agreement; and

(vii) there is no Termination Event, Unmatured Taration Event, Servicer Termination Event or UnmetuServicer Termination
Event.

SECTION 4. CONDITIONS TO EFFECTIVENESS .

The effectiveness of this Amendment is conditionpdn (i) payment of the outstanding fees and disbments of Dechert LLP, as
counsel to the Agent, and (ii) delivery of execuseghature pages by all parties hereto to the Agent

SECTION 5. MISCELLANEOUS .

(a) This Amendment may be executed in any numbeouoiiterparts (including by facsimile), and by tligerent parties hereto on the
same or separate counterparts, each of whichlshaéemed to be an original instrument but all loichv together shall constitute one and the
same agreement.

-2-



(b) The descriptive headings of the various sestimirthis Amendment are inserted for convenienaefarence only and shall not be
deemed to affect the meaning or construction ofairifie provisions hereof.

(c) This Amendment may not be amended or othermisdified except as provided in the Agreement.
(d) The failure or unenforceability of any provisibereof shall not affect the other provisionshig Amendment.

(e) Whenever the context and construction so regalf words used in the singular number hereiti fleadeemed to have been used in
the plural, and vice versa, and the masculine gestu#l include the feminine and neuter and theerezhall include the masculine and
feminine.

(H This Amendment represents the final agreemetwéen the parties and may not be contradictedislelece of prior,
contemporaneous or subsequent oral agreementsdretie parties. There are no unwritten oral agredsrieetween the parties.

(9) THIS AMENDMENT AND THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF TH E PARTIES UNDER THIS AMENDMENT SHALL
BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED AND INTERPRETED IN ACC ORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW
YORK WITHOUT REFERENCE TO ITS CONFLICT OF LAWS PROV ISIONS.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
-3-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties have caused this Amendment to beuggby their respective officers thereunto duly
authorized, as of the date first above written.

THE BORROWER: KOHLBERG CAPITAL FUNDING LLC |

By:  /s/ Michael |. Wirth
Name Michael I. Wirth
Title: Chief Financial Office!

Kohlberg Capital Funding LLC
c/o Kohlberg Capital Corporatic
295 Madison Avenue, 6th Flo
New York, New York 1001
Attention: Dayl W. Pearso
Facsimile: (212) 9¢-7654
Telephone: (212) 4'-8366

THE SERVICER: KOHLBERG CAPITAL CORPORATION
By:  /s/ Michael |. Wirth

Name Michael I. Wirth
Title: Chief Financial Office!

Kohlberg Capital Corporatia
295 Madison Avenue, 6 Floi
New York, New York 1001
Attention: Dayl W. Pearsao
Facsimile: (212) 9€-7654
Telephone: (212) 4'-8366

[SIGNATURES CONTINUED ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]
Third Amendment to LFS



LENDER: RIVERSIDE FUNDING LLC

By:  /s/ Jill A. Gordon
Name Jill A. Gordon
Title: Vice Presiden

ACKNOWLEDGED: DEUTSCHE BANK AG, NEW YORK BRANCH, as Lender Agent for
Riverside Funding LL(

By:  /s/ Daniel Pietrzal
Name Daniel Pietrzal
Title: Director

By:  /s/ Peter Chuang
Name Peter Chuan
Title: Vice Presiden

Riverside Funding LL(C

c/o Global Securitization Services, Ll
445 Broad Hollow Road, Suite 2:
Melville, NY 11747

Attention: Andrew Stidc

Facsimile No. (212) 3(-8767
Telephone No. (631) 9-7203

with a copy to:

Deutsche Bank Securities Ir

60 Wall Street, 19 Floor

New York, New York 1000!
Attention: Securitized Products Gro
Facsimile: (212) 7¢-5150
Telephone: (212) 2!-0357

[SIGNATURES CONTINUED ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]
Third Amendment to LFS



LENDER:

FAIRWAY FINANCE COMPANY, LLC

By:  /s/ Philip A. Martone

Name Philip A. Martone
Title: Vice Presiden

Fairway Finance Company, LL
c/o Lord Securities Corporatic
48 Wall Street, 27 Floor

New York, New York 1000!
Facsimile No. (212) 329012
Telephone No. (212) 3-9000

with a copy to:

c/o BMO Capital Markets Cor|

115 South LaSalle Stre

13" Floor West

Chicago, lllinois 6060:

Attention: Conduit Management Te:
Facsimile: (312) 4€-3189
Telephone: (312) 4¢-5640

[SIGNATURES CONTINUED ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

Third Amendment to LFS



THE AGENT:

BMO CAPITAL MARKETS CORP.

By:  /s/ Keith Niebruggt

Name Keith Niebrugge
Title: Managing Directo

BMO Capital Markets Cory

115 South LaSalle Stre

13" Floor West

Chicago, lllinois 6060:

Attention: Conduit Management Te:¢
Facsimile: (312) 4€-3189
Telephone: (312) 4¢-5640

[SIGNATURES CONTINUED ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

Third Amendment to LFS



THE TRUSTEE:

THE BACKUP SERVICER

U.S. BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By:  /s/ Scott T. Holme
Name Scott T. Holme:
Title: Assistant Vice Preside

U.S. Bank, National Associatic
Corporate Trust Service CDO Unit

One Federal Street, Third Flo

Boston, Massachuse

Reference: Kohlberg Capital Funding LL(
Attention: Scott Holme

Facsimile: (617) 6C-6741

LYON FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.,
d/b/a U.S. Bank Portfolio Servic

By:  /s/ John Decker
Name John Decke
Title: Senior Vice Presider

Lyon Financial Services, In

d/b/a U.S. Bank Portfolio Servici

1310 Madrid, Suite 10

Marshall, Minnesota 562&

Attention: Joe Andrie

Reference: Kohlberg Capital Funding LL(

Third Amendment to LFS



Exhibit 21.1
List of Subsidiaries®

Jurisdiction
Katonah Debt Advisors, L.L.G? Delawart
Kohlberg Capital Funding LLC Delawart
Katonah Management Holdings LL& Delawart
Katonah X Management LL@ Delawart
Katonah 2007-1 Management LL@& Delawart
Katonah 2008-11 Management LL& Delawart
Katonah Scott’'s Cove Management LIEC Delawart
KPKSI Management Holdings LL® Delawart
KPKSI Holdings LLC® Delawart

@ Excludes a 35% interest in PKSIL LLC.

@  Represents a wholly-owned portfolio company thaiosconsolidated for financial reporting purposes.
@ A wholly-owned subsidiary of Katonah Managementdiags LLC.

@ A wholly-owned subsidiary of KPKSI Management Holgis LLC.



Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement on Form S-8 of our repdated March 14, 2008, relating to
the financial statements and financial highlighHt&ohlberg Capital Corporation (which expressesiaqualified opinion and includes an
explanatory paragraph relating to the valuatiomeéstments whose fair values have been estimatedadmagement in the absence of readily
determinable fair values), and management’s rapothe effectiveness of internal control over ficiahreporting, appearing in the Annual
Report on Form 10-K of Kohlberg Capital Corporatfonthe year ended December 31, 2007.

/s/ DELOITTE& T OUCHELLP

New York, New York
March 14, 2008



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES KCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS AMENDED

[, Dayl W. Pearson, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKohlberg Capital Corporation (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durithg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaring, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presénta report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the teg’s internal control over financial reportirgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fouytlarter in the case of an annual report) thanteterially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal trmhover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrant’s Board of Direct¢os persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize apbrt financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 14, 2008 By: s/ _DAYL W. PEARSON
Dayl W. Pearson
President and Chief Executive Officel




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES KCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS AMENDED

[, Michael I. Wirth, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKohlberg Capital Corporation (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durithg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaring, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presénta report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the teg’s internal control over financial reportirgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fouytlarter in the case of an annual report) thanteterially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal trmhover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrant’s Board of Direct¢os persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize apbrt financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 14, 2008 By: s/ __MICHAEL |. W IRTH
Michael I. Wirth
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Compliance Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 1350, CHAPTER 63 OF TITLE 18, UNITED STATES CODE,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the accompanying Annual RepbKahlberg Capital Corporation (the “Company”) oarfh 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007 (the “Report”), |, Dayl W. Pearderesident and Chief Executive Officer of the @amy, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
81350, as adopted pursuant to 8906 of the Sarl@arles- Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Secwsiixchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations
of the Company.

Date: March 14, 2008 By: /s/__DavL W. PEARSON

Dayl W. Pearson
President and Chief Executive Officel




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 1350, CHAPTER 63 OF TITLE 18, UNITED STATES CODE,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the accompanying Annual RepbKahlberg Capital Corporation (the “Company”) oarfh 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007 (the “Report”), I, Michael I. WirPrincipal Financial and Accounting Officer betCompany, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. 81350, as adopted pursuant to 8906 of tHzaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Secwsiixchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations
of the Company.

Date: March 14, 2008 By: /s/__MICHAEL |. W IRTH
Michael I. Wirth
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Compliance Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)




